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abOut
AdvANCECON

SET TO SOAR
u n d e rst a n d i n g  t h e  p ot e nt i a l s 
a n d  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  b e c ko n i n g 
i n  E a st  M a l ays i a ,  ad va n c e c o n 
continues to support Malaysia’s 
infrastructure wave by enhancing 
our foothold there. at advancecon, 
our ultimate determination is to 
achieve greater heights and we 
do not rest on our laurels. 

a s  w e  c o n t i n u e  t o  e x p a n d 
o u r  c a p a b i l i t i e s ,  a d va n c e c o n 
i s  e n d e a v o u re d  t o  t ra n s f o r m 
challenges into opportunities.

t h e  j o u r n ey  of  a  m i l l i o n  m i l e s 
begins with small steps. and that 
is  precisely  what  advancecon 
sets to achieve. 



3
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

 

O
v

E
R

v
iE

W
 B

U
S

iN
E

S
S

 O
v

E
R

v
iE

W
 

 O
T

H
E

R
S

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 g

O
v

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
d

 f
iN

A
N

C
iA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

m
E

N
T

miSSiON
to be recognised as Malaysia’s 

premier earthwork and civil 
engineering services provider 

as reflected in our outstanding 
contribution to the nation’s 
infrastructure and township 

development.   

abOut aDvaNcEcON 
(cONt’D)

 

viSiON
to become the leading earthworks 

and civil engineering services 
contractor in Malaysia, specialising 

in bulk earthworks and major 
infrastructure works.

CORE vALUES
these core values form an integral part of our 

corporate culture which is geared towards 
long-term success:

Team Work
we are team players and we work together to 

achieve our common goals.
Professionalism

we act with professionalism and integrity in 
everything we do and with everyone we deal 

with.
Customer focus

we are passionate with everything we do 
and we place our customers at the heart, 

constantly delivering our best with quality and 
exceeds our customer expectations.

Solution Provider
we are real partner who consistently offer 

valuable solutions to our clients
Outstanding value

we constantly strive to push the limits and 
surpass standards of excellence at every 

opportunity.
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BOARd Of diRECTORS

Yeoh Chong Keat Independent Non-Executive chairman 

dato’ Phum Ang Kia Executive Director/group chief Executive Officer

Lim Swee Chai Executive Director/Deputy group chief Executive Officer 

ir. Yeo An Thai Executive Director/group chief Operating Officer 

Tung Kai Hung Executive Director/Operations Director of advancecon Infra Sdn bhd

mohd Zaky bin Othman Independent Non-Executive Director

fathi Ridzuan bin Ahmad fauzi Independent Non-Executive Director

AUdiT COmmiTTEE

Name designation directorship

Mohd Zaky bin Othman chairman Independent Non-Executive Director 

Yeoh chong Keat Member Independent Non-Executive chairman 

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi Member Independent Non-Executive Director

REmUNERATiON COmmiTTEE

Name designation directorship

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Yeoh chong Keat Member Independent Non-Executive chairman

Mohd Zaky bin Othman Member Independent Non-Executive Director

NOmiNATiON COmmiTTEE

Name designation directorship

Yeoh chong Keat chairman Independent Non-Executive chairman 

Mohd Zaky bin Othman Member Independent Non-Executive Director 

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi Member Independent Non-Executive Director

RiSK mANAgEmENT ANd SUSTAiNABiLiTY COmmiTTEE

Name designation directorship

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Ir. Yeo an thai Member Executive Director/group chief Operating Officer

tung Kai hung Member Executive Director/Operations Director of advancecon Infra Sdn bhd

EmPLOYEES SHARE OPTiON SCHEmE COmmiTTEE

Name designation directorship

Dato’ Phum Ang Kia Chairman Executive Director/Group Chief Executive Officer

Lim Swee Chai Member Executive Director/Deputy Group Chief Executive Officer 

Ir. Yeo An Thai Member Executive Director/Group Chief Operating Officer 

cOrPOratE  
iNfORmATiON
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COmPANY SECRETARiES

tan tong Lang 
(MaIcSa 7045482)

thien Lee Mee 
(LS 0009760)

REgiSTEREd OffiCE

Suite 10.02, Level 10, the gardens 
South tower
Mid valley city, Lingkaran Syed Putra
59200 Kuala Lumpur 
wilayah Persekutuan 
Malaysia
telephone no.: 03-2298 0263 
Facsimile no.: 03-2298 0268

HEAd OffiCE

No. 16, 18 & 20, Jalan Pekaka 8/3
Seksyen 8, Kota Damansara
47810 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
telephone no.: 03-6157 9563
Facsimile no.: 03-6157 0469
website: www.advancecon.com.my
E-mail: info@advancecon.com.my

AUdiTORS

crowe Malaysia PLt
(LLP0018817-Lca & aF1018)
chartered accountants
Level 16 tower c
Megan avenue II
12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng
50450 Kuala Lumpur
telephone no.: 03-2788 9999
Facsimile no.: 03-2788 9998

PRiNCiPAL BANKERS

alliance bank Malaysia berhad
al rajhi banking & Investment 

corporation (M) berhad
hSbc bank Malaysia bhd
hong Leong bank berhad
Public bank berhad
united Overseas bank (Malaysia) 

berhad

SHARE REgiSTRAR

boardroom Share registrars Sdn bhd
(formerly known as Symphony Share 
Registrars Sdn Bhd) 
Level 6, Symphony house
Pusat Dagangan Dana 1
Jalan PJu 1a/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
telephone no.: 03-7849 0777
Facsimile no.: 03-7841 8151/8152

STOCK EXCHANgE LiSTiNg

Main Market of bursa Malaysia 
Securities berhad
construction  
(Shariah-compliant stocks)
Stock code: aDvcON
Stock No.: 5281

dATE & PLACE Of iNCORPORATiON

9 april 1997, Malaysia

WEBSiTE

www.advancecon.com.my

LiSTiNg dATE

10 July 2017

COmPANY NO.

426965-M

cOrPOratE INFOrMatION
(cONt’D)
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Notes:-
(1)  In the process of Member’s voluntary winding up.
(2)  advancecon (Sarawak) Sdn. bhd. was incorporated on 12 October 2018.
(3)  advancecon Solar Sdn. bhd. was incorporated on 26 March 2019.

AdvANCECON  
HOLdiNgS  

BERHAd
(426965-M)

100%
AdvANCECON 
PROPERTiES 

SdN. BHd.

100%
iNSPiRASi 

HEBAT 
SdN. BHd.

100%
AdvANCECON 

TRAdiNg 
SdN. BHd. (1)

100%
AdvANCECON 

mACHiNERY 
SdN. BHd.

100%
SK-ll TiPPER  

TRUCK  SERviCES  
SdN. BHd.

100%
AdvANCECON 

ROCK 
SdN. BHd. (1)

100%
AdvANCECON 

iNfRA 
SdN. BHd.

cOrPOratE  
STRUCTURE

100%
AdvANCECON 

SOLAR 
SdN. BHd. (3)

30%
AdvANCECON  

(SARAWAK)  
SdN. BHd. (2)
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DIrEctOrS’
PROfiLE

YEOH CHONg KEAT 
Independent Non-Executive chairman

mr. Yeoh Chong Keat, a Malaysian male, aged 60, was appointed to our 
board on 1 august 2016 and is our Independent Non-Executive chairman. 
he is also the chairman of the Nomination committee and a member of the 
audit committee and remuneration committee respectively. 

Mr Yeoh graduated with a Foundation course in accountancy from city of 
birmingham Polytechnic, united Kingdom in 1978. he is a Fellow of the 
Institute of chartered accountants in England and wales, a chartered 
accountant of the Malaysian Institute of accountants, a member of the 
Malaysian Institute of certified Public accountants and a Fellow of the 
chartered tax Institute of Malaysia. 

Mr Yeoh began his career in 1978 with a training contract with Deloitte 
haskins & Sells (now known as Pricewaterhousecoopers), united 
Kingdom. after qualifying as a chartered accountant in 1982, he left 
Pricewaterhousecoopers and joined Deloitte Kassimchan, Kuala Lumpur 
as audit Supervisor and subsequently transferred to the tax Division of 
Deloitte and became a tax Manager. During his tenure with Deloitte, he was 
involved in the areas of audit, tax compliance and advisory and management  
consulting services involving corporate rescues and restructuring.

In 1988, Mr Yeoh joined PFa corporate Services Sdn bhd as its Executive 
Director, providing corporate secretarial and advisory services to 
multinationals, public listed companies and private limited companies in a 
variety of businesses and sizes.

Mr Yeoh left PFa in 2000 and founded archer corporate Services Sdn bhd, 
a company providing corporate secretarial and advisory services to public 
listed and private entities and he is the President cum chief Executive 
Officer of the Firm.

apart from advancecon holdings berhad, he is also a Director of Lien hoe 
corporation berhad and ablegroup berhad, all listed on the Main Market of 
bursa Malaysia Securities berhad. 

Mr Yeoh does not have any family relationship with any Directors and/or 
major shareholders of the company. he has no conflict of interest with the 
company and has not been convicted of any offences, within the past five 
years (other than traffic offences, if any) and there was no public sanction 
or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018.

Mr Yeoh attended all five board meetings held during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.
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DIrEctOrS’ PrOFILE
(cONt’D)
 

dATO’ PHUm ANg KiA 
Executive Director/group chief Executive Officer (“group cEO”)

dato’ Phum Ang Kia, a Malaysian male, aged 61, is our Executive Director/
group cEO. he was appointed to our board on 9 april 1997. as the co-
founder and group cEO, he is responsible for our group’s overall business 
development which includes setting our group’s direction, formulating 
corporate development plan and driving our business growth. In addition, 
he is also involved in overseeing the daily on-site operations and contracts 
as well as operations related matters.

Dato’ Phum started his family business in Soon Kim trading & Engineering 
which was subsequently incorporated as a private limited company in 
1990 under the name of Pembinaan Sin Soon Kim Sdn bhd. Subsequently, 
it changed name to advancecon Infra in 2010. During the early stage, the 
company was mainly involved in civil engineering services, construction of 
main drains, road works, sewerage systems and hiring services of heavy 
machinery and equipment. 

together with Mr Lim Swee chai, they incorporated advancecon Sdn bhd in 
1993 to expand the construction business afterwhich, advancecon group 
was established in 2010 pursuant to an internal reorganisation exercise 
undertaken. with Dato’ Phum’s wealth of experience in the construction 
industry of more than 40 years, he was the driving force in raising the 
company’s profile from a small contractor to now a Main Market public listed 
company. Dato’ Phum was also nominated to be one of the recipients under 
Master category for EY Entrepreneur of the year 2018. 

Dato’ Phum does not hold any directorship in other public listed companies. 
he is a major shareholder of the company and his brother, Mr Pham Soon Kok 
is a substantial shareholder of the company. Other than that, he does not 
have any family relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders. 
Dato’ Phum has no conflict of interest with the company and has not been 
convicted of any offences, other than traffic offences (if applicable) 
within the past five years nor has been imposed of any public sanction or 
penalties by any relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 
31 December 2018.

Dato’ Phum attended all five board meetings held during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.

Lim SWEE CHAi 
Executive Director/Deputy group chief Executive Officer (“Deputy group 
cEO”)

mr. Lim Swee Chai, a Malaysian male, aged 62, is our Executive Director/
Deputy group cEO and was appointed to the board on 9 april 1997. having 
more than 37 years of working experience in the construction industry, he 
is responsible for the group’s overall strategic management and strategic 
corporate planning. he is also involved in overseeing contracts and 
operations related matters. 

Mr Lim graduated with a Diploma in technology (building) from tunku 
abdul rahman college in 1981 and accumulated his experience in project 
management and procurement operations. he joined teguh Kaya Sdn bhd 
(“tKSb”), a construction company as contracts Manager from 1985 until 
1993 where he was responsible for the overall contract management 
functions for several housing development projects in Klang valley. 
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DIrEctOrS’ PrOFILE
(cONt’D)

 

Mr Lim left tKSb in 1993 and co-founded advancecon Sdn bhd with Dato’ 
Phum where he was mainly responsible for the overall contract management 
functions and managing office operations for the construction projects 
undertaken. advancecon group was then established in 2010 pursuant to 
an internal reorganisation exercise undertaken and he was the driving force 
for the Initial Public Offering of advancecon holdings berhad. 

Presently, Mr Lim does not hold any directorship in other public listed 
companies. he is also a major shareholder of the company. Other than 
that, he does not have any family relationship with any Directors and/or 
major shareholders. Mr Lim has no conflict of interest with the company 
and has not been convicted of any offences, other than traffic offences (if 
applicable) within the past five years nor has been imposed of any public 
sanction or penalties by any relevant regulatory bodies during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018.

Mr Lim attended all five board meetings held during the financial year ended 
31 December 2018.

iR. YEO AN THAi 
Executive Director/group chief Operating Officer (“group cOO”)

ir. Yeo An Thai, a Malaysian male, aged 46, is our Executive Director/group cOO 
and was appointed to the board on 1 august 2016. he is also a member of the 
risk Management and Sustainability committee. he is responsible for the overall 
operations of the group which include decision making on corporate affairs and 
managing site technical operational activities of the group. 

Ir. Yeo graduated with a bachelor of Engineering with honours Degree in civil 
and Structural Engineering from universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia in 1997 and 
subsequently obtained a Master of Engineering Management from universiti 
Putra Malaysia in 2015. he is a registered Project Management Professional 
with the Project Management Institute, united States since 2009, a member 
of the Institution of Engineers, Malaysia and a registered Professional Engineer 
with the board of Engineers, Malaysia since 2013. In 2014, he registered as a 
green building Index Facilitator with green building Index, Malaysia. 

Ir. Yeo began his career as a Site Engineer in gamuda berhad in 1997 and was 
promoted to be the Section head before he left gamuda berhad. he then joined 
advancecon Sdn bhd as a Site Manager in 2001 where he was responsible 
for day-to-day on site operations of all the construction projects. In 2010, 
advancecon group was established pursuant to an internal reorganisation 
exercise undertaken whereby he assumed the role as general Manager of 
Project Management before he was promoted to chief Operating Officer in 2015. 
he has 20 years of working experience in the construction industry and has 
been instrumental in the Initial Public Offering of advancecon holdings berhad. 

Ir. Yeo does not hold any directorship in other public listed companies. he does 
not have any family relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders 
of the company. he has no conflict of interest with the company and has not 
been convicted of any offences, within the past five years (other than traffic 
offences, if any) and there was no public sanction or penalty imposed by the 
relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Ir. Yeo attended all five board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 
December 2018.
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TUNg KAi HUNg, PETER 
Executive Director/Operations Director of advancecon Infra Sdn bhd 
(“aISb”)

mr. Tung Kai Hung (“mr Peter Tung”), a Malaysian male, aged 55, is our 
Executive Director/Operations Director of aISb and was appointed to our 
board on 1 august 2016. he is also a member of risk Management and 
Sustainability committee.

Mr Peter tung graduated with a Diploma in technology (building) from tunku 
abdul rahman college, Malaysia in 1986 and has extensive background in 
construction contract claims, project cost budgeting, project management 
and administration from the various positions he held before assuming his 
current position. 

In 1999, Mr Peter tung joined advancecon Sdn bhd as Senior contracts 
Executive where he was responsible for the overall contract management 
functions including overseeing the operations of submission of tenders 
and cost estimates preparation. his roles include selection of our 
subcontractors and suppliers for all our construction projects. 

In 2010, advancecon group was established pursuant to an internal 
reorganisation exercise undertaken whereby Mr Peter tung assumed the 
role of general Manager of contracts since then. he is now the Operations 
Director of aISb. 

he has more than 30 years of working experience in the construction 
industry and has been instrumental in the Initial Public Offering of 
advancecon holdings berhad. 

Mr Peter tung does not hold any directorship in other public listed 
companies. he does not have any family relationship with any Directors 
and/or major shareholders of the company. he has no conflict of interest 
with the company and has not been convicted of any offences, within the 
past five years (other than traffic offences, if any) and there was no public 
sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Mr Peter tung attended all five board meetings held during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018.

mOHd ZAKY BiN OTHmAN 
Independent Non-Executive Director 

En. mohd Zaky bin Othman, a Malaysian male, aged 62, is our Independent 
Non-Executive Director. he was appointed to our board on 1 august 2016 
and is also the chairman of the audit committee. apart from that, he is also 
a member of the remuneration committee and the Nomination committee 
respectively. 

En. Mohd Zaky graduated with bachelor of Science Degree in business 
administration (Finance) from california State university Fresno, united 
States in 1984 and subsequently obtained a Master of Science in Finance 
(corporate Finance) from golden gate university, San Francisco, united 
States in 1992. 

En. Mohd Zaky began his career as an accounts Executive in 1985 and was 
working overseas for 10 years. In 1995, he returned to Malaysia and joined 
Keretapi tanah Melayu berhad (“KtMb”) where he spent approximately 18 
years before his retirement in 2013. During his tenure with KtMb, he served 
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in various positions within KtMb group of companies. 

En. Mohd Zaky gained experience in his respective field through working for 
more than 30 years in different companies in several countries. 

En. Mohd Zaky does not hold any directorship in other public listed 
companies. he does not have any family relationship with any Directors 
and/or major shareholders of the company. he has no conflict of interest 
with the company and has not been convicted of any offences, within the 
past five years (other than traffic offences, if any) and there was no public 
sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

En. Mohd Zaky attended all five board meetings held during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018.

fATHi RidZUAN BiN AHmAd fAUZi 
Independent Non-Executive Director 

En. fathi Ridzuan bin Ahmad fauzi, a Malaysian male, aged 54, is our 
Independent Non-Executive Director. he was appointed to our board on 1 
august 2016. he is also the chairman of remuneration committee and risk 
Management and Sustainability committee respectively. apart from that, 
he is also a member of the audit committee and the Nomination committee 
respectively. 

En. Fathi ridzuan graduated with a bachelor of Science Degree in accounting and 
Financial analysis from university of warwick, coventry, united Kingdom in 1989. 

En. Fathi ridzuan began his career in 1989 where he worked in various 
accounting and finance capacities. he has accumulated vast experience in 
financial, administrative, legal, information technology, risk management and 
stockbroking operations. apart from being an independent consultant for 
Esperanza Management advisors, presently, he is also the Deputy chairman of 
FNw capital Partners Sdn bhd, a management consulting and venture capital 
management company since 2016. 

currently, En. Fathi ridzuan also sits on the board of Jiankun International 
berhad, N2N connect berhad and alloy Insurance brokers Sdn bhd. 

En. Fathi ridzuan does not have any family relationship with any Directors and/
or major shareholders of the company. he has no conflict of interest with the 
company and has not been convicted of any offences, within the past five 
years (other than traffic offences, if any) and there was no public sanction or 
penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.

En. Fathi ridzuan attended four out of five board meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2018.
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KEY SENIOr
mANAgEmENT

TEH HENg WEE 
group chief Financial Officer (“group cFO”)

Teh Heng Wee, a Malaysian male, aged 38, is our group 
chief Financial Officer. he is responsible to lead and 
oversee the entire financial management and corporate 
finance of our group, which include capital raising, 
financing, treasury, cash flow management, statutory 
financial reporting as well as risk management.  

he graduated with a bachelor of accounting & Financial 
Management with honours Degree from the university 
of Sheffield, united Kingdom in 2002. he has been a 
Fellow Member of the association of chartered certified 
accountants, united Kingdom since 2010 and a member 
of the Malaysia Institute of accountants since 2014.

he has garnered more than 15 years of experience 
in financial management. he began his career in the 
accounts Department of bina goodyear berhad. 
after 7 years of various exposures in the commercial 
environment, he joined crest builder holdings berhad 
as risk Manager primarily involved in a Public Private 
Partnership deal. he then joined advancecon group 
as Financial controller in 2010 where he planned and 
executed the group’s financial strategies/financing 
needs to firmly support its growth. he was promoted 
to chief Financial Officer in 2015 and was instrumental 
in the Initial Public Offering of advancecon holdings 
berhad. 

Presently, he does not hold any directorship in any 
publ ic l isted companies.  he does not have any 
family relationship with any Directors and/or major 
shareholders of the company. he has no conflict 
of interest with the company and has not been 
convicted of any offences,other than traffic offences 
(if applicable) within the past five (5) years nor has 
been imposed of any public sanction or penalties by 
any relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.

PUAH KiAN YEW  
Division general Manager - Earthworks

Puah Kian Yew, a Malaysian male, aged 42, is our 
Division general Manager - Earthworks. he is responsible 
for the planning, coordination and the operations of all 
heavy machinery and equipment of our group. he has 
approximately 16 years of working experience in various 
operational management in the construction industry. 
he graduated with a bachelor of Science Degree in 
building construction Management from Sheffield 
hallam university, united Kingdom in 2000. 

he began his career as a Supervisor with gabungan 
cekapbina Sdn. bhd. in 2000 where he was responsible 
for supervising on-site construction activities. In 
2006, he left gabungan cekapbina Sdn bhd and joined 
advancecon Sdn bhd as assistant Project Manager 
where he was responsible for project execution and 
management of construction projects. 

In 2010, advancecon group was established pursuant 
to an internal reorganisation exercise undertaken 
whereby he assumed the role of Project Manager 
and was subsequently promoted to Senior Manager 
of Production and Operation in 2012. he was then 
promoted to general Manager of Production and 
Operation in 2015. he is now the Division general 
Manager - Earthworks.

Presently, he does not hold any directorship in any 
publ ic l isted companies.  he does not have any 
family relationship with any Directors and/or major 
shareholders of the company. he has no conflict 
of interest with the company and has not been 
convicted of any offences,other than traffic offences 
(if applicable) within the past five (5) years nor has 
been imposed of any public sanction or penalties by 
any relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.
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Lim KOK TiONg 
Division general Manager  - Infrastructure and 
highway 

Lim Kok Tiong, a Malaysian male, aged 45, is our 
Division general Manager - Infrastructure and highway. 
he is responsible for overseeing the execution of 
construction projects undertaken by our group, which 
include project planning and project scheduling. he has 
approximately 19 years of working experience in project 
management within the construction industry.

he graduated with a bachelor of Engineering with 
first class honours Degree in civil and Structural 
Engineering from university Kebangsaan Malaysia in 
1998 and subsequently obtained a Master of business 
administration from university of Lincoln, united 
Kingdom in 2002. 

he began his career as an Engineer where he was 
involved in the design of building structure, responsible 
for the overall execution and management of steel 
works projects. Subsequently, he assumed the role of as 
a director and was responsible for project management 
and project planning in gabungan cekapbina Sdn. bhd. 
until 2006. thereafter, he joined advancecon Sdn. 
bhd. in 2006 as a Project Manager, mainly responsible 
for managing and monitoring of project execution and 
subsequently promoted to Senior Project Manager in 
2007. In 2010, advancecon group was established 
pursuant to an internal  reorganisation exercise 
undertaken whereby he assumed the role of Senior 
Project Manager before he was promoted to general 
Manager of Project Management in 2015. he is now the 
Division general Manager - Infrastructure and highway.

Lim Kok tiong is the nephew of Lim Swee chai. Other 
than that, he does not have any family relationship with 
any other Directors. Presently, he does not hold any 
directorship in any public listed companies.he has no 
conflict of interest with the company and has not been 

KEY SENIOr MaNagEMENt
(cONt’D)

 

convicted of any offences,other than traffic offences 
(if applicable) within the past five (5) years nor has 
been imposed of any public sanction or penalties by 
any relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2018.
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financial Year Ended  
31 december

2018
Rm

2017
Rm

2016
Rm

2015
Rm

2014 
Rm

Profitability

revenue 272,860,464   265,988,572  234,668,349  264,306,544   199,808,857 

Profit before taxation 15,425,397    26,735,272     37,145,763      39,978,989      29,849,671 

Profit after taxation 10,618,139     18,463,080      26,447,322      29,940,274      21,410,470 

Key Balance Sheet data

total assets 409,704,945  368,677,637   295,887,953   267,274,272   217,156,037 

total equity 180,336,532  174,607,890   105,620,629     93,673,307      63,733,033 

total borrowings 134,422,414  108,203,821     85,350,963     82,757,704     67,446,569 

Issued share capital 402,079,000  402,079,000   312,079,000       1,248,316        1,248,316 

Share information

Earnings per share (sen) 2.64                  5.18                  8.47            2,398.45            1,715.15 

Net assets per share 
attributable to owners of the 
company

0.45                  0.43                  0.34                 75.04                 51.06 

gross gearing ratio (times) 0.75                  0.62                  0.81                  0.88                  1.06 

return on equity (%) 6% 11% 25% 32% 34%

FINaNcIaL  
HigHLigHTS
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MaNagEMENt DIScuSSION &  
ANALYSiS

Dear shareholders,

2018 proved to be a challenging period for the overall Malaysian economy, as the public and private sector as well 
as the general man-on-the-street grappled with the widespread effects brought on by the change of government 
following the 14th general Election. 

resulting from this, Malaysia’s gross Domestic Product (gDP) growth only managed 4.7% expansion in 2018, 
compared to 5.9% in 2017. the construction sector bore the brunt of this transformation to register only 4.2% 
in 2018 from 6.7% in the previous year, as major Federal government-funded infrastructure projects were 
subsequently reviewed, deferred or cancelled, leading to a period of uncertainty for the overall industry.

Nonetheless, advancecon proved resilient despite the tumultuous operating environment, as evidenced by our 
continued streak of obtaining new contracts from our repeat clients. this testifies to our value proposition as a 
trusted partner and provider of integrated earthworks and civil engineering services for infrastructure players 
and top property developers in the country. 

On this note, the board of Directors is pleased to present to you the financial statements and annual report for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”).

BUSiNESS OvERviEW

advancecon is a specialist provider of earthworks and civil engineering services, primarily for township 
developments and infrastructure projects in Malaysia. 

advancecon’s wide range of earthworks services encompass excavation and fill, rock-blasting, erosion and 
sediment control plan, as well as compaction and surface finishing process. Other than that, advancecon 
specialises in civil engineering services such as road works, drainage works, bridge construction, water supply 
works and sewerage works.

to date, the group had completed earthworks and civil engineering works for notable projects nationwide, including 
various township developments such as bandar Setia alam, Eco Majestic, Setia Ecohill, Setia Eco gardens, 
tropicana aman and bandar bukit raja.

Furthermore, advancecon is also an active participant in several prominent large infrastructure and highway projects 
such as the ongoing South Klang valley Expressway, west coast Expressway and Interchanges for Section 1 and 
Section 7a, Pan borneo highway in Sarawak and the completion of trumpet Interchange and Ecohill Link connected 
to Lebuhraya Kajang Seremban (LEKaS) highway.
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OPERATiONS REviEW

In line with our growth aspirations, we marked significant operational highlights in our second year as a listed entity.

•	 D2liv2r21	an1	ma12	st2a1y	progr2ss	in	2xisting	proj20ts	

In keeping with our commitment to project delivery even in trying circumstances, advancecon successfully 
completed and handed over four projects in FY2018 namely the site clearing and earthworks for bandar Serai 
Development in rawang, bandar bukit raja in Klang, Setia Eco glades in cyberjaya and tropicana aman in Kota 
Kemuning.

•	 N2w	0ontra0ts	s20ur21	

advancecon was able to triumph in the face of the intensely competitive landscape affecting the industry as 
we continued winning new contracts with a cumulative value of rM480.1 million in FY2018. this amount was 
significantly higher or 2.2 times more than the previous year’s winnings at rM218.6 million, hence boding well 
for the group’s prospects. 

More crucially, approximately one-third or rM177.7 million of FY2018’s new wins were secured from existing 
clients to undertake subsequent phases for projects currently ongoing or completed in prior years. these repeat 
orders are namely Serenia city in Sepang, bandar bukit raja in Klang and Eco ardence in Shah alam.

advancecon’s outstanding unbilled order book stood at rM845.4 million as at 31 December 2018 that will provide 
earnings visibility for the next 24 months.

•	 Enhan021	fl22t	of	ma0hin2ry

as a result of increased order book and in anticipation of more upcoming tenders, the group had expanded its 
resources to strengthen its project implementation as shown in the table below.

description As at 
31 dec 2018

As at 
31 dec 2017

variance
%

Number of key machineries 567 432 31.3

Number of headcount 759 662 14.7

MaNagEMENt DIScuSSION & aNaLYSIS 
(cONt’D)
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fiNANCiAL OvERviEW

with the steady pace of progress billings for both ongoing and newly-secured projects, alongside the delivery 
of completed projects, the group’s revenue rose 2.6% to rM272.9 million for FY2018, compared to rM266.0 
million in the previous year. 

revenue was mainly derived from the construction services segment, which contributed 99.8% of total revenue 
or rM272.5 million, while the property investment segment contributed the balance 0.2% or rM 0.4 million. 

the group’s profit before taxation (“Pbt”), however, declined to rM15.4 million in FY2018 against rM26.7 million 
in FY2017, that represented Pbt margin of 5.6% and 10.0% respectively. correspondingly, the group reported 
lower profit after taxation (“Pat”) of rM 10.6 million in FY2018 against rM 18.5 million in FY2017, that translated 
to Pat margin of 3.9% and 6.9% respectively.

For FY2018, the group’s Pbt was adversely affected by increased depreciation charges (rM25.6 million versus 
rM21.0 million year-on-year (“y-o-y”), higher staff costs inclusive of ESOS charge (rM45.2 million versus rM40.8 
million y-o-y), increased industrial diesel costs (rM28.7 million versus rM25.5 million y-o-y) as well as higher 
finance costs, in particular hire purchase interest (rM7.7 million versus rM5.4 million y-o-y). 

In line with the reduction in Pbt, the group’s Pat for FY2018 was also impacted by slight increase in effective tax 
rate of 31.2% mainly due to the gain from disposal of property being taxed based on income tax rather than real 
Property gains tax as compared to 30.9% for FY2017.

Notwithstanding the above, the group’s balance sheet remained commendable for FY2018 as shown below:

financial Ratio fY2018 fY2017

Current Ratio 1.49 times 1.49 times

gross gearing 0.75 times 0.62 times

Net gearing 0.68 times 0.44 times

Total Equity rM 180.34 million rM 174.61 million

Net Asset Per Share rM 0.45 rM 0.43

the board of Directors of advancecon declared a first single-tier interim dividend of 1.0 sen per share in respect 
of FY2018, which was distributed to shareholders on 3 January 2019.

the dividend payout amounted to approximately rM4.0 million, which represented 38% of the group’s Pat, 
exceeding the group’s minimum dividend policy of 20%. 

MaNagEMENt DIScuSSION & aNaLYSIS 
(cONt’D)
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MaNagEMENt DIScuSSION & aNaLYSIS 
(cONt’D)
 

mARKET OUTLOOK fOR 2019

the group is cautiously optimistic in relation to the recovery of the construction sector as a whole in the second 
half of 2019. One of many reasons include the timely announcement by the state of Sarawak that a total of rM 
9 billion will be allocated for development expenditure in its 2019 budget which will be funded by the state’s 
reserves, estimated at rM 31 billion. 

the expected projects suitably match the group’s core competency in bulk earthworks and major infrastructure, 
and as such the group intends to reinforce its presence in Sarawak, having successfully entered the state via 
the award of two (2) Pan borneo Sarawak highway packages with a total contract sum of rM135.3 million, the 
first package being awarded back in year 2016. During FY2018, the group had formed an associate company, 
advancecon Sarawak Sdn bhd with a 30% equity, to explore construction opportunities with the aim to expand 
its income base in East Malaysia. 

APPRECiATiON

I wish to convey my heartfelt appreciation to the board, management team and our employees for your commitment 
towards delivering commendable results despite the challenging business environment. advancecon’s 
achievements today would not be made possible without your efforts. 

Moreover, I wish to extend my deepest gratitude to our business partners, associates, suppliers, customers and 
also valued shareholders for maintaining their confidence in us.

In our corporate history spanning more than two decades, advancecon has undergone numerous economic cycles. 
hence, we know that an obstacle does not determine the outcome of a journey; in fact, we strongly believe that 
a united team can and will eventually overcome any hurdle. going forward, we remain dedicated to reaching new 
heights as we chart our course towards becoming a leading player in Malaysia’s construction industry.

Sincerely,

dato’ Phum Ang Kia
group chief Executive Officer
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cOrPOratE gOvErNaNcE  
OvERviEW STATEmENT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements, the board of Directors (“the board”) of advancecon holdings berhad 
(“advancecon” or “the company”) is pleased to present the corporate governance (“cg”) Overview Statement 
(“Statement”) which provides key highlights on how the company complies with the principles and practices of 
the Malaysian code on cg 2017 (“Mccg”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”). this 
statement is complemented with a cg report based on a prescribed format pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of the 
Main Market Listing requirements of bursa Malaysia Securities berhad (“bursa Securities”) (“MMLr”). the cg 
report is available on the company’s website www.advancecon.com.my under the Investor relations section as 
well as via an announcement on the website of bursa Securities. this Statement should also be read in conjunction 
with the Statement on risk Management and Internal control (“SOrMIc”) and the respective board committee 
reports in the ensuing pages.

the board constantly strives to ensure that good corporate practices are carried out throughout the company 
and its subsidiaries (“the group”) as fundamental to fulfilling its responsibilities, which include protecting and 
enhancing shareholders’ value as well as the financial performance of the  group.

the board oversees the overall strategic and operational business performance and is supported by various board 
committees in discharging other specific roles.  

the board will endeavour to improve and enhance the corporate governance practices from time to time. Details 
of how the company has applied the cg code principles and complied with its practices, are set out in the cg 
report. the explanation for departure is further disclosed in the cg report.

PRiNCiPLE A: BOARd LEAdERSHiP ANd EffECTivENESS

1. Board Responsibilities

a. Roles and Responsibilities

 the board is primarily responsible for the group’s overall strategic plans for business performance, 
overseeing the proper conduct of business, succession planning of key management, risk management, 
shareholders’ communication, internal control, and statutory matters; whilst the Management is 
accountable for the execution of the expressed policies and attainment of the group’s corporate 
objectives. the demarcation complements and reinforces the supervisory role of the board. 
Nevertheless, the board is always guided by the board charter which outlines the duties and 
responsibilities and matters reserved for the board in discharging its duties. the board charter also 
acts as a source of reference and primary induction literature in providing insights to board members 
and Senior Management.

 the chairman is responsible for leadership of the board in ensuring the effectiveness of all aspects 
of its role, and is primarily responsible for leading the board in setting the values and standards of the 
company, the orderly and effective conduct of the meetings of the board and shareholders, ensuring 
the provision of accurate, timely and clear information to Directors as well as facilitating the effective 
contribution of Non-Executive Directors.

 the positions of chairman and group chief Executive Officer (“group cEO”) are held by different 
individuals with clear and distinct roles. Mr Yeoh chong Keat is the chairman while, Dato’ Phum ang Kia 
is the group cEO. the distinct and separate roles of the chairman and group cEO with clear division 
of responsibilities have ensured the balance of power and authority, such that no one individual has 
unfettered powers of decision making. 

 the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) do not engage in the day-to-day management of the 
group. they are not involved in any other relationship with the group that could reasonably be perceived 
to materially interfere with their exercise of unfettered and independent judgement. this is to enable 
the INED to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively and to avoid any conflict of interest 
situations. the INED also provide independent and objective views, assessment and suggestions in 
deliberations of the board and ensure effective check and balance in the functioning of the board. 
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PRiNCiPLE A: BOARd LEAdERSHiP ANd EffECTivENESS (COnt’d)

1. Board responsibilities (Cont’d)

b. Board Committees 

 In order to ensure orderly and effective discharge of the above functions and responsibilities of the 
board, the board has delegated specific responsibilities to the following board committees:

(i) audit committee (“ac”)
(ii)  remuneration committee (“rc”)
(iii) Nomination committee (“Nc”)
(iv) risk Management and Sustainability committee (“rMSc”)
(v)       Employees’ Shares Options Scheme (“ESOS”) committee 

 Except for ESOS committee which is governed by its by-Laws, each committee operates within clearly 
defined terms of reference (“tOr”). these committees are formed in order to enhance business and 
operational efficiency as well as efficacy. the chairman of the respective committees will report to 
the board the outcome of the committees meetings for the board’s considerations and approvals. 
the board retains full responsibility for the direction and control of the company and the group. 

c. support services 

 the board is supported by the company Secretaries, who are qualified under the companies act 2016 
(“the act”). the company Secretaries play an important role in facilitating the overall compliance with 
the act, MMLr and other relevant laws and regulations. the company Secretaries also assist the board 
and board committees to function effectively and in accordance with their tOr and best practices 
in ensuring adherence to the existing board policies and procedures. the roles and responsibilities 
of the company Secretaries have been formalised in the board charter which provides reference for 
company Secretaries in the discharge of their roles and responsibilities. 

 the company Secretaries have also been continuously attending the necessary training programmes, 
conferences, seminars and/or forums so as to keep themselves abreast with the current regulatory 
changes in laws and regulatory requirements that are relevant to their profession and enabling them 
to provide the necessary advisory role to the board. 

  the board also have access to the advice of both external and internal auditors of the company and 
any other independent professional advisers. 

d. Board Charter 

 the board’s functions are governed and regulated by the board charter,  Memorandum and articles of 
association (M&a) of the company  and the various applicable legislation, MMLr and other regulations 
and codes. the board charter can be found on the company’s website at www.advancecon.com.my. 
the board charter provides reference for directors in relation to the board’s role, powers, duties and 
functions. the charter also outlines processes and procedures for the board to be effective and 
efficient. 

e. Code of Conduct and ethics (“Code”)

 the company’s code is to govern the standards of ethics and good conduct expected from Directors, 
Management and employees in discharging their duties and responsibilities and would help to prevent 
misconduct and unethical practices and consequently, this would support the delivery of long-
term sustainable success of the company. the code is published on the company’s website, www.
advancecon.com.my.
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

1. Board responsibilities (Cont’d)

f. whistleblowing policy

 the Group acknowledges the importance of lawful and ethical behaviours in all its business activities 
and is committed to adhering to the values of transparency, integrity, impartiality and accountability in 
the conduct of its business and affairs in its workplace. the Group has in place a whistleblowing policy 
which serves as an avenue for all employees of Advancecon and members of the public to disclose 
any improper conduct within Advancecon. 

 the policy is designed to facilitate employees and members of the public to disclose any improper 
conduct (misconduct or criminal offence) through internal channel. Such misconduct  or criminal 
offences include  fraud, bribery, abuse of power, conflict of interest, theft or embezzlement, misuse 
of Advancecon’s property, non compliance with procedure and sexual harassment.

 the above list is not exhaustive and includes any act or omissions, which if proven, will constitute 
an act of misconduct under Advancecon’s Code of Conduct and Ethics or any criminal offence under 
relevant legislations in force.

 Employees have free access to the AC Chairman and may raise concerns of non-compliance to him. the 
whistleblowing policy, underlining its protection and reporting channels, is available on the Company’s 
website at www.advancecon.com.my.

2. Board Composition 

 the current Board composition is in compliance with the M&A and exceeds the minimum one-third requirement 
of Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) as set out in the MMLR. the Directors’ profiles are enclosed 
from pages 7 to 11 of this Annual Report (“AR”). 

 the INED are considered by the Board to be independent of management and free of any business or other 
relationship or circumstance that could materially interfere with the exercise of objective, unfettered or 
independent judgement. 

 the Board regularly reviews the composition of the Board and Board Committees to ensure appropriate 
balance as well as relevant skills and experience.

a. Balance, diversity and skills

 According to the Company’s Board Diversity policy, the Board recognises the benefit of gender diversity. 
the appointment of Directors are based on objective criteria, merit and with due regard for diversity 
in skills, experience, age, cultural background and gender. therefore, the Board believes that a truly 
diverse and inclusive Board will leverage the differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, 
regional and industry experience, cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity and gender. 
this will ensure that Advancecon retains its competitive advantage.

 During the FY2018, the Board comprises four Executive Directors and three INED. the existing Directors’ 
age distribution falls within the respective age group and is as follows:

age group 41-50 51-60 61 & above

number of directors 1 3 3
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

2. Board Composition (Cont’d)

a. Balance, diversity and skills (Cont’d)

the current diversity of the existing board is as follows:

number of
directors

race/ethnicity nationality

malay Chinese indian Others malaysian foreign

2 5 0 0 7 0

b. re-election and re-appointment of directors

 In compliance with the  company’s articles of association (“articles”), one-third of the Directors, who 
have been the longest in office since their last election shall retire by rotation at each annual general 
Meeting (“agM”) and that a Director who is appointed during the year shall retire at the next agM. 
the articles further provides that at least one-third of the Directors for the time being or the number 
nearest to one-third shall retire from office. 

 the board, via Nc, reviews the Directors who are subject to re-election or re-appointment at the agM by 
giving due regard to his/her performance and the ability to continue to contribute to the board in terms 
of knowledge, skills and experience required, and submits its recommendation to the shareholders 
for their approval. 

c. independence assessment of independent directors

 Independent Directors bring independence and objective judgment to the board and this mitigates 
risks arising from conflict of interest or undue influence from interested parties. Nevertheless, the 
existence of Independent Directors on the board by itself does not ensure the exercise of independence 
and objective judgment as independent judgment can be compromised by, amongst others, familiarity 
or close relationship with other board members or major shareholders. 

 the Nc undertakes an assessment of the Independent Directors annually. In assessing the 
independence of Independent Directors, the Nc had concluded that all the Independent Directors 
have met the independence requirements  based on the criteria prescribed by bursa Securities. 

d.  tenure of independent directors

 under the Mccg, the tenure of an Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine 
years. upon completion of the nine years, an Independent Director may continue to serve on the board 
subject to the Director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. 

 For the FY2018, none of the INED had served the company exceeding a cumulative term limit of nine 
years as per the recommendations of the Mccg.
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

2. Board Composition (Cont’d)

e.  Criteria for recruitment and annual assessment of directors

 the Nc is responsible for screening and conducting an initial selection, which includes an external 
search, before making a recommendation to the board, taking into account the mix of skills, 
competencies, experience and other qualities required to discharge their duties and responsibilities. 
Nc may obtain the services of professional recruitment firms to source for candidates for directorship 
or seek independent professional advice whenever necessary. 

 the board assisted by Nc undertakes an annual assessment on the effectiveness of the board as 
a whole, its committees, contribution of each individual Director and the Independent Directors in 
relation to their skills, experience and core competencies. the assessment is conducted through 
questionnaires circulated to the board. Outcomes of the evaluations are generated based on the 
Directors’ feedback on the questionnaires. upon assessment, the Nc will consider and recommend 
measures to upgrade the effectiveness of the board and its committees. all assessments and 
evaluations carried out by the Nc in the discharge of its function are properly documented.

f.  Board meetings and attendance

 the board meets at least four times a year and has a formal schedule of matters reserved for it. 
additional meetings are held as and when necessary. During the FY2018, five meetings were held in 
which the board deliberated upon and considered various issues including the groups’ financial results, 
performance of the group’s business, major investment, policies and strategic issues affecting the 
group’s business.

 During the FY2018, the board held a total of five meetings and the details of the attendance are as 
follows:-

director attendance in fY2018

Yeoh chong Keat 5 / 5

Dato’ Phum ang Kia 5 / 5

Lim Swee chai 5 / 5

Ir. Yeo an thai 5 / 5

tung Kai hung 5 / 5

Mohd Zaky bin Othman 5 / 5

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi 4 / 5

 the Directors have full and unrestricted access to all information pertaining to the advancecon 
group’s business and affairs to enable them to discharge their duties. at least seven days prior to each 
board meeting, all Directors receive the agenda together with a comprehensive set of board papers 
encompassing qualitative and quantitative information relevant to the business of the meeting. this 
allows the Directors to obtain further explanations or clarifications require from the Management 
or the company Secretary well ahead of the meeting date, where necessary, in order to be properly 
briefed before each meetings.  urgent papers may be presented for tabling at the board meetings 
under supplemental agenda.
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

2. Board Composition (Cont’d)

g. directors’ training 

 the boards recognise the importance of attending and participating in conferences, seminars and 
training programme in order to broaden their perspectives and to keep abreast of developments in 
the marketplace, new statutory and regulatory requirements which would enable them to fulfill their 
responsibilities. 

 During the FY 2018, the Directors attended the following trainings:

director training attended

Yeoh chong Keat •	 Au16t	Comm6tt22	Con32r2n02-Int2rna9	Au16t6n4	6n	t52	A42	o3	D6srupt6on	
by Simon tay Pit Eu, Dato’ Lock Peng Kuan, Lee tuck heng, Devanesan 
Evanson, alex Ooi, Dr Farouck abdullah (Malaysian Institute of 
accountants)

•	 Corporat2	 R2s0u2	 M205an6sm	 an1	 Dut62s	 &	 R2spons6b696t62s	 o3	
company Directors & Officers under companies act 2016 by Dr. 
cheah Foo Seong (Norvic corporate Services Sdn bhd)

•	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	
the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

Dato’ Phum ang Kia •	 T52	G9oba9	L2a12rs56p	Summ6t	ćąĆč	by	B699	Hyb29,	Ju962t	Funt,	Mar0us	
buckingham, Dato’ Dr. Daniel ho and andy Stanley (chin hin group)

•	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	
the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

Lim Swee chai •	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	
the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

Ir. Yeo an thai •	 ISO	ĎąąĆ:ćąĆĊ	Awar2n2ss	by	CK	S228	(As02n1a	Consu9t6n4	S1n	B51)
•	 CG	Br6236n4	S2ss6on	by	Mo51	Asr6	A5ma1	(Bursa	Ma9ays6a)
•	 T52	G9oba9	L2a12rs56p	Summ6t	ćąĆč	by	B699	Hyb29,	Ju962t	Funt,	Mar0us	

buckingham, Dato’ Dr. Daniel ho and andy Stanley (chin hin group)
•	 PMIMY	Int2rnat6ona9	Sympos6um	ćąĆč	by	Kr6s5nan	Sr6n6vasan,	Dr	V6ra7	

Perera, Sarah Schutte, cynthia Zhai, Ybhg. Prof. Datuk Dr Leow chee 
Seng, Maruthamutu Subramaniam, Dr Mazalan abbas, tya adhitama, 
rene hillig, Sim bock San and herley abdul hamid (the Project 
Management Institute, Malaysia chapter)

•	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	
the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

•	 AI	on	C9ou1:	Mu9t6-16m2ns6ona9	ana9ys6s;	b2n05mar86n4	a4a6nst	6n1ustry	
and system generated action plans! by M. Nazri (Malaysian Investor 
relations association)
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

2. Board Composition (Cont’d)

g. directors’ training (Cont’d)

director training attended

tung Kai hung •	 ISO	ĎąąĆ:ćąĆĊ	Awar2n2ss	by	CK	S228	(As02n1a	Consu9t6n4	S1n	B51)
•	 A1vo0a0y	pro4ramm2	on	CG	ass2ssm2nt	us6n4	t52	r2v6s21	As2an	

cg scorecard methodology (Minority Shareholder watchdog group)
•	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	

the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

Mohd Zaky bin Othman •	 CG	Br6236n4	S2ss6on	by	Mo51	Asr6	A5ma1	(Bursa	Ma9ays6a)
•	 Au16t	Comm6tt22	Con32r2n02-Int2rna9	Au16t6n4	6n	t52	A42	o3	D6srupt6on	

by Simon tay Pit Eu, Dato’ Lock Peng Kuan, Lee tuck heng, Devanesan 
Evanson, alex Ooi, Dr Farouck abdullah (Malaysian Institute of 
accountants)

•	 Corporat2	 R2s0u2	 M205an6sm	 an1	 Dut62s	 &	 R2spons6b696t62s	 o3	
company Directors & Officers under companies act 2016 by Dr. 
cheah Foo Seong (Norvic corporate Services Sdn bhd)

•	 A1vo0a0y	pro4ramm2	on	CG	ass2ssm2nt	us6n4	t52	r2v6s21	As2an	
cg scorecard methodology (Minority Shareholder watchdog group) 

•	 Corporat2	L6ab696ty	Prov6s6on-O332n02s	by	2mp9oy22s	&	Ot52rs	an1	
the implications on Directors, Partners and Management by Lee Min 
On

•	 Pow2r	Ta98	-	W699	T52	Bus6n2ss	Ju142m2nt	Ru92	H29p	D6r20tors	S922p	
better at Night? by Prof chee Keong Low, Philip t.N. Koh (Institute of 
corporate Directors Malaysia)

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad
Fauzi

•	 Imp92m2nt6n4	 T52	 Compan62s	 A0t	 ćąĆċ	 &	 T52	 MCCG	 ćąĆČ	 by	
raymond corray and Devanesan Evanson (bursatra Sdn bhd)

•	 Au16t	Comm6tt22	Con32r2n02-Int2rna9	Au16t6n4	6n	t52	A42	o3	D6srupt6on	
by Simon tay Pit Eu, Dato’ Lock Peng Kuan, Lee tuck heng, Devanesan 
Evanson, alex Ooi, Dr Farouck abdullah (Malaysian Institute of 
accountants)

•	 Corporat2	 R2s0u2	 M205an6sm	 an1	 Dut62s	 &	 R2spons6b696t62s	 o3	
company Direcotrs & Officers under companies act 2016 by Dr. 
cheah Foo Seong (Norvic corporate Services Sdn bhd)
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prinCiple a: BOard leadership and effeCtiveness (COnt’d)

3.  remuneration

a. directors’ remuneration

 the board has in place a remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management which is designed 
to support and drive business strategy and long-term objectives of advancecon group. In this regard, 
the rc is responsible to formulate and review the remuneration for Directors and Senior Management of 
the company to ensure the same remain competitive, appropriate and in alignment with the prevalent 
market practices. 

 the remuneration packages for Executive Directors are based on the industry practice and comprises 
elements such as basic salary, allowances, bonuses and other benefits-in-kind. 

 In the case of the INED, the level of remuneration shall be linked to their experience and the level of 
responsibilities undertaken. the remuneration package for INED shall be determined by the board as a 
whole. the Director concerned shall be abstained from deliberation and voting on decisions in respect 
of his individual remuneration package. 

 the remuneration paid and payable for FY2018 by the company and the group are as follows:

Company subsidiaries

director

directors’ 
fees
(rm)

salaries
(rm)

Bonus
(rm)

Other
benefits

(rm)

defined
contribution

plan 
(rm)

salary
(rm)

Bonus
(rm)

Other 
benefits

(rm)

defined 
contribution

(rm)
total
 (rm)

Yeoh chong Keat 88,200 3,500 91,700

Dato’ Phum ang Kia 1,008,240 168,000 656 77,276 1,254,172

Lim Swee chai 819,240 136,500 616 54,636 1,010,992

Ir. Yeo an thai 649,440 108,200 90,888 848,528

tung Kai hung 378,240 63,000 49,152 490,392

Mohd Zaky bin Othman 63,000 3,500 66,500

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi 63,000 3,500 66,500

b. remuneration of senior management

 Senior Management are those primarily responsible for managing the business operations and corporate 
divisions of the group. the board had deliberated and decided not to disclose on a named basis the 
top five Senior Management’s remuneration in bands of rM50,000 in order to allay valid concerns of 
intrusion on staff confidentiality as well as maintaining the company’s ability to retain talented senior 
management in view of the competitive employment environment, in particular for the group’s nature 
of business.
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prinCiple B: effeCtive audit and risK management

1.  aC

 the ac of the company comprises three members, all of whom are INED:

•	 Mo51	Za8y	B6n	Ot5man,	C5a6rman	(INED)
•	 Y2o5	C5on4	K2at,	M2mb2r	(In12p2n12nt	Non-Ex20ut6v2	C5a6rman)	
•	 Fat56	R61zuan	B6n	A5ma1	Fauz6,	M2mb2r	(INED)	

 the members of the ac possess a mix of skill, knowledge and appropriate level of expertise and experience 
to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities pursuant to the tOr of the ac. In addition, the 
ac members are financial literately and are able to understand, analyse and challenge matters under purview 
of the ac including the financial reporting process. 

 the board is assisted by the ac to among others, oversee the group’s and company’s financial reporting 
process and the quality of financial reporting and ensuring that the financial statements comply with the 
provisions of     Malaysian Financial reporting Standards and International Financial reporting Standards in 
Malaysia.

  besides overseeing the group’s accounting and financial reporting process, ac is also responsible to 
assist the board to review the nature, scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness and 
the independence and objectivity of the external auditors, to oversee and monitor the group internal audit 
functions, reviews any related party transactions, and other activities such as governance matters. a full 
ac report detailing its composition and a summary of activities during the FY2018 is set out in pages 39 
to 41 of this annual report. 

 the performance of the ac is reviewed annually by the Nc. the evaluation covered aspects such as the 
members’ financial literacy levels, its quality and composition, skills and competencies and the conduct 
and administration of the ac meetings. 

 based on the evaluation, the Nc concluded that the ac has been effective in its performance and has carried 
out its duties in accordance with its tOr during FY2018.

a. assessment of suitability, Objectivity and independence of external auditors

	 T52	AC	5a1	6n	January	ćąĆĎ	un12rtoo8	an	annua9	ass2ssm2nt	o3	t52	su6tab696ty	an1	6n12p2n12n02	o3	
the external auditors, Messrs crowe Malaysia PLt (“crowe”). being satisfied with crowe’s performance, 
technical competency and audit independence as well as fulfilment of criteria as set out in Paragraph 
15.21 of the MMLr, the ac recommended the reappointment of crowe, who have consented to act, 
as external auditors of the company for FY2018. the ac was also satisfied that the provision of the 
non-audit services by crowe for FY2018 did not in any way impair their objectivity and independence 
as external auditors of the company. Subsequently, the board at its meeting held on 18 april 2019 
concurred with the ac on its recommendation for the shareholders’ approval to be sought at the 
forthcoming agM on the reappointment of crowe as external auditors of the company for FY2019.
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prinCiple B: effeCtive audit and risK management (COnt’d)

1.  aC (Cont’d)

b.   assessment of internal auditor

 the group has appointed Messrs Sterling business alignment consulting Sdn bhd (“Internal auditor”) 
to provide outsourced internal audit function for the group. the Internal auditor reports directly to 
the ac and the Internal audit function is independent from the management. they provide reasonable 
assurance of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the group. 

 the following are the activities undertaken by the ac during the financial year under review:-

(i)  reviewed and approved the Internal audit Plan for FY2018 proposed by the Internal auditors to 
ensure the adequacy of the scope, coverage of works and that it has the necessary authority 
to carry out its works. 

(ii)  reviewed the Internal audit reports together with the recommendations from the Internal 
auditors. the ac considered the Internal auditors’ recommendations taken into account 
Management’s responses and upon which approved the Internal auditors’ proposals for 
rectification and implementation of the agreed remedial actions for improvement. 

(iii)  undertook assessment of the performance of the internal auditors and reviewed its effectiveness 
of the audit processes. 

2.  risk management and internal Control framework 

 the board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring a sound system of internal controls and risk 
management. the company has a risk management and internal control framework in place that provide 
the foundations and organisational arrangement on how we manage risks across the group, safeguard 
shareholders’ interests and the group’s assets. 

 the board fulfills its responsibilities in the risk governance and oversight functions through its rMSc in 
order to manage the overall risk exposure of the group. the rMSc identified significant risks and ensuring 
the implementation of appropriate system to manage the overall risk exposure of the group, whilst the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls were reviewed by the ac in relation to internal audit 
function of the group. 

 the Statement on risk Management and Internal control which provides an overview of the state of the 
internal control and risk management within advancecon group, set out in pages 30 to 32 of this annual 
report. 

cOrPOratE gOvErNaNcE OvErvIEw StatEMENt 
(CONt’D)
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prinCiple C: integritY in COrpOrate repOrting and meaningful relatiOnship with 
staKehOlders

1.  Communication with stakeholders

 the board recognises the importance of maintaining transparency and accountability to their stakeholders. as 
such, the board actively engages all its stakeholders through various platforms including the announcements 
via bursa LINK, disclosures on bursa Securities’ website, company’s website and engagement through the 
investor relations function. the company has also established an investor relations function and engage 
external service providers to enable continuous communication between the company and its stakeholders.

 all corporate disclosures take into account the prevailing legislative restrictions and requirements as well as 
investors’ need for timely release of price-sensitive information such as the financial performance results 
and significant corporate proposals. 

 In all circumstances, the company is conscious of the timeliness in providing material information about the 
group and continually stress the importance of timely and equal dissemination of information to stakeholders.

2.  Conduct of general meetings 

 advancecon’s agM is an important means of communicating with its shareholders. the notice of agM 
together with the annual report and details of the resolutions proposed are sent out to the shareholders 
at least twenty-eight days before the date of the agM which is beyond the requirements of the act and in 
compliance with Mccg. 

 the board took note that the presence of all Directors will provide opportunity for shareholders to effectively 
engage each Director. besides, having the chair of the board subcommittees present facilitates these 
conversations and allows shareholders to raise questions and concerns directly to those responsible. 
barring unforeseen circumstances, all Directors as well as the chairman of respective board committee 
will present at the twenty-Second agM of the company to enable the shareholders to raise questions and 
concerns directly to those responsible. 

	 A99	t52	r2so9ut6ons	s2t	out	6n	t52	Not602	o3	t52	Tw2nty-F6rst	AGM	5291	on	ćČ	Jun2	ćąĆč	w2r2	put	to	vot2	by	
poll and were duly passed. the outcome of the agM was announced to bursa Securities on the same day.

 this corporate governance Overview Statement has been approved by the board of Directors at its meeting 
on 18 april 2019.

cOrPOratE gOvErNaNcE OvErvIEw StatEMENt 
(CONt’D)
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StatEMENt ON  
risK management and internal COntrOl

intrOduCtiOn

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing requirements of bursa Malaysia Securities berhad 
(“Listing requirements”), the board of Directors (“the board”)  is pleased to present the Statement on risk 
Management and Internal control of the company and its subsidiaries (“the group”)  which has been prepared in 
tandem with the Statement on risk Management and  Internal control: guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers(the 
guidelines) as well as in compliance with the principles and best practices relating to risk management and internal 
control as stipulated in the Malaysian code on corporate governance(“Mccg”)

BOard respOnsiBilitY

the board acknowledges and affirms its overall responsibility for the group’s risk management and internal 
control system within the group and to continuously review and evaluate its adequacy and effectiveness. the 
risk management system is designed to manage the group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than 
to totally avoid or eliminate the risks that are inherent to the group’s activities.

the board recognises the importance of establishing a sound system of internal control. In view of the limitations 
that are inherent in any system of internal control, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against 
material misstatement of financial information, loss or fraud. the board regularly receives and reviews reports 
on internal control and is of the view that the system of internal control is adequate to safeguard shareholders’ 
interests and the group’s assets.

the audit committee (“ac”) and risk Management and Sustainability committee (“rMSc”) have been delegated 
and empowered to implement the internal control practices and risk management within the group. the role of 
Management is to implement the board’s policies and guidelines on risks and controls, to identify and evaluate 
the risks faced and to operate a suitable system of internal controls to manage these risks. 

risK management prOCess

advancecon risk Management Framework which was developed based on ISO 31000: 2009 was adopted on 17 
November 2017. It has been renamed Enterprise risk Management (“ErM”) which is in line with the framework 
of the Institute of Internal auditors of Malaysia and committee Of Sponsoring Organisations (“cOSO”). the ErM 
adopted comprises wide range of techniques for managing risk in a holistic way that correctly identifies risks 
and prioritises the appropriate responses. It is also to ensure that risk management is aligned across the group’s 
management organisational structure.the process of identifying, evaluating, monitoring and managing significant 
risk is embedded in the various work processes and procedures of the respective operational functions and 
management team. any significant issues and controls implemented were discussed at the regular operations 
and management meetings.

the rMSc  is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director and comprises Senior Management of the group 
where they develop a risk management information in which new risks are identified, mitigation plans and changes 
in risk profile (if any) are discussed on an annual basis with the assistance of our independent Internal auditor (Ia).   
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KeY elements Of internal COntrOls

the key elements of the group’s system of internal controls are described below:

•	 Boar1	Committ22s

 the delegation of responsibilities to the various committees of the board is clearly defined. at present, 
the committees which are established are the audit committee, Nomination committee, remuneration 
committee, rMSc and ESOS committee. 

•	 Organisational	Stru0tur2

 the group has a defined organisational structure that is aligned with its business and operational 
requirements. Defined lines of accountability, delegation of responsibility and level of authorisation for all 
aspects of the business have been laid down and communicated throughout the group.

•	 Poli0i2s	an1	Pro021ur2s

 there are policies and procedures in place to ensure adequacy of controls, and compliance with relevant laws 
and regulations. these policies and procedures are periodically reviewed and updated to reflect changes 
in business structure and processes. certain companies within the group have obtained ISO 9001:2015 
accreditation for operational purposes. these certifications demonstrate our ongoing commitment to drive 
for excellence and continuous quality improvement. 

•	 Int2rnal	Au1it

 the internal audit function carries out quarterly internal audit reviews to ascertain the adequacy of and 
to monitor the effectives of operational, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, safe guarding 
of assets and reliability of financial information. where weaknesses have been identified as a result of 
the reviews, improvement measures are recommended to strengthen controls; and follow-up audits are 
conducted by the internal auditors to assess the status of the implementation thereof by the Management.

•	 Boar1	M22tings

 During the ac and board meetings, quarterly results, annual financial statements, related party transactions 
and updates on business development are reviewed.

•	 Training	an1	D2v2lopm2nt	Programm2s

 training and development programmes are established to ensure that staff are constantly kept up-to-date 
with the constant technologically changing environment in order to be competent in the industry in line with  
the group’s business objectives.

StatEMENt ON rISK MaNagEMENt aND INtErNaL cONtrOL 
(CONt’D)
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internal audit funCtiOns

the Internal audit function has been outsourced to an independent external service provider, Sterling business 
alignment consulting Sdn bhd to provide independent assurance to the audit committee.

the Internal auditors adopt the risk-based internal audit approach to develop its audit plan which addresses the 
critical business processes, internal control gaps, effectiveness and adequacy of the existing state of internal 
control and recommend possible improvements to the internal control process.

On a quarterly basis, the Internal auditors report to the audit committee on areas for possible improvement, and 
the Management’s response to such recommendations. Follow-up audits were also carried out and the outcome 
was reported to the ac to ensure weaknesses identified have been or are being addressed.

During the financial year, the Internal auditors reviewed the adequacy and the integrity of the group’s key functions’ 
internal control system including system for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and 
guidelines.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the total cost incurred for the outsourced internal audit function 
was rM68,000.

assuranCe frOm the management

In line with the guidelines, the group chief Executive Officer and group chief Financial Officer have provided 
assurance to the board stating that the group’s risk management and internal control system have operated 
adequately and effectively in all material aspects to meet the group’s objectives during the period under review.  

review Of the statement BY eXternal auditOrs

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.23 of the Listing requirements, the External auditors have reviewed this Statement on risk 
Management and Internal control for inclusion in this annual report. their reviews were performed in accordance with 
Malaysian approved Standard on assurance Engagements, ISaE 3000 (revised), assurance Engagement Other than 
audits or reviews of historical Financial Information and audit and assurance Practice guide 3 (aaPg 3): guidance for 
auditors on Engagements to report on the Statement on risk Management and Internal control included in the annual 
report issued by the Malaysian Institute of accountants. based on their reviews, nothing has come to their attention that 
causes them to believe that this Statement is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures 
required by paragraph 41 and 42 of the Statement on risk Management and Internal control: guidelines for Directors 
of Listed Issuers and Practices 9.1 and 9.2 of the Malaysian code on corporate governance 2017 to be set out, nor is 
factually inaccurate.

COnClusiOn

For the financial year under review and up to the date of issuance of the statement in the annual report, the 
risk Management & Sustainability committee has discussed on the content of this statement and  further 
recommended it for the board’s approval. Subsequently,the board is pleased to report that the state of the internal 
control system and risk management practices are able to meet the objectives of the group and to facilitate good 
corporate governance. 

the statement has been approved by the board of Directors at its meeting on 18 april 2019.

StatEMENt ON rISK MaNagEMENt aND INtErNaL cONtrOL 
(CONt’D)
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SuStaINabILItY  
statement

this is our second year of reporting the group’s sustainability initiatives. In light of the group’s commitment to 
inculcate the culture of sustainability into our business operations, we continue to identify and formulate efforts 
and initiatives that will facilitate our sustainability goals and aspirations in the long term. Moving forward, we 
endeavour to continuously improve our sustainability reporting mechanisms taking into account our business 
practices that influences our economic performance (Economic), usage of natural resources (Environment) and 
impact on society (Social).

Our Sustainability task Force committee comprising key Senior Management team was set up in December 
2017 as this is our commitment to uphold and execute efforts that supports our sustainability agenda based 
on the materiality assessment matters duly identified by the task Force committee. we have also changed our 
Comm6tt22	nam2	to	Susta6nab696ty	St22r6n4	Comm6tt22	6n	January	ćąĆĎ	to	r26n3or02	our	0omm6tm2nt	towar1s	
sustainability initiatives.

governance structure – sustainability steering Committee

we constantly engage with our internal stakeholders (employees and Management) and external stakeholders 
(clients and investors) to gauge the level of priority. 

the diagram below indicates our Economic, Environment and Social (EES) matters for this year’s reporting purpose.

BOd

 risK management &
 sustainaBilitY COmmittee  

  steering COmmittee
(led by group chief Operating Officer)

 Division general 
Manager - Earthworks

 Division general 
Manager- Infrastructure 

& highway
 Operations  Directorgroup cFO 

materialitY matriX   

high

highlOw Internal Stakeholders (Management, Employees)
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Our engagement with our stakeholders is through series of activities and frequency with the aim of understanding 
our stakeholders needs and ultimately create a long term value.

stakeholders engagement methods frequency material matters

Employees training

Safety briefings

Induction training

team building and
annual Dinner

annual Performance review

Sports club

as and when required

Every new recruit for
site office

Every new recruit

annually

annually

2 months once

talent / human capital

health & Safety
talent / human capital

talent / human capital

talent / human capital

talent / human capital

talent /human capital

customers Feedback form & ISO 9001:2015
(Quality Management System)

annually and at the 
completion of each
project

customer Satisfaction

Investors / 
Shareholders

annual general Meeting (agM)
and/ or
Extraordinary general Meeting (EgM)

I n v e s t o r s  b r i e f i n g ,   m a r ke t i n g 
roadshows
/investors conference

corporate website

annually

as and when required

twice a year and as and
when required

regular update

Economic Performance /
corporate governance

regulators Filing and burSa announcements regularly corporate governance

communities Scheduled waste Management

ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental
Management System)

Fund raising event in support of
cancer awareness

Fund raising in aid of an employee who
was undergoing cancer treatment

burSa bull charge 2018

regularly

On-going compliance
t o  a c h i e v e  f u l l 
certification

as and when required

as and when required

Yearly

Environment

Environment

Social

Social

Social

economic

as far as possible, the group strives to attract local suppliers in our effort to boost the local economy. the 
group has more than 350 active suppliers and our procurement standards are guided by ISO 9001:2015 Quality 
Management System where we aim to achieve a fair procurement process. 

to spur sustainable economic growth within the group, we are aware of the need to formulate business models that 
consider long term revenue generation for our shareholders as well as establishing sustainable market presence. 
the group has consistently delivered strong financial performance over the years. the group recorded a revenue 
of rM 272,860,464 and profit after tax of rM 10,618,137 for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.  

SuStaINabILItY StatEMENt
(CONt’D)
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environmental

to ensure sound environmental practices, the group consistently strives to improve its waste management and 
the group is subject to periodic assessments by the relevant authorities and this ensures that the group operates 
in an environmentally responsible manner. 

Site workers were briefed on waste management procedures:-

•	 Wast2	Manag2m2nt	

 Our environmental commitments are embedded within Environmental Management system (ISO 14001) 
and we target to achieve full certification of ISO 14001:2015 by the end of 2019.  

 Efforts are on-going since we last reported that all scheduled waste generated from our project as well as 
from our corporate office are segregated and transported to designated disposal sites appropriately. 

•	 H2alth	an1	Saf2ty

 In our commitment towards health, safety and environment (hSE), 
trainings involving hazard Identification, risk assessment and risk 
control (hIrarc) have been on going in our concerted effort to achieve 
Occupational health and Safety Management System ISO 45001:2018 
certification. 

 we also aim to obtain cIDb Safety and health assessment System In 
construction (ShaSSIc) award for all our current projects which have 
more than rM50 million project value. ShaSSIc will be a benchmark for 
the level of Safety and health performances in our Projects.

sOCial 

talent / human Capital

we continue to build talents as being a service-based company, human capital 
is most important assets as their level of commitment and productivity are 
key factors to our continued success and overall performance. 

as such, we continuously seek to attract the right skills and talents to meet 
the needs of the group. gender diversity is also an important component in 
strengthening our human capital. a diverse and inclusive workforce enriches 
our knowledge and broadens our skillsets by harnessing the various perspective 
in an organisation. 

at the end of 2018, advancecon has 759 employees. this represents an 
increase of 97 (14.65%) compared to 662 employees in the previous year. 

Out of 759 employees, a total of 678 (89%) are male and 81 (11%) are female 
as construction sector is a male dominated industry.

SuStaINabILItY StatEMENt
(CONt’D)

 

 81 (11%)678 (89%)

Site workers observing safety briefing

Diverse and inclusive workforce
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(a) employee composition based on age group

 Our employees are the backbone of our business and ensure our continuous growth. hence, priority is given 
to our workforce when it comes to recruiting the right talent and talent development at the group. 

 we have no issue in our succession planning as 31 % of our Employee age group are below 30 years of age 
and 34% are from the age of 30 to 39 years old. In summary,  65% of our employees are below 39 years old 
whilst 35% are 40 years and above. 

(b) training & education

 we have always been creating opportunities to grow and develop our people to reach their fullest potential. 
with this in mind, we invest in our employees by training them with in-demand skillsets and competence 
through in-house trainings and external trainings conducted by relevant professional bodies as well as 
government agencies like cIDb. In an industry known for its challenging working environment, we take 
occupational health and safety very seriously. we ensure our employees are trained and equipped with the 
health and safety knowledge for a conducive working environment.

 For financial year ended 31 December 2018, we incurred a total of rM198,000 in trainings and this is 
equivalent to rM839 per employee.

 Series of trainings to equip employees with health safety measures:-

employee age group

<30 30 - 39 40 - 49 >50

3
1

% 3
4

%

2
3

%

1
2

%

<30 30 - 39 40 - 49 >50

SuStaINabILItY StatEMENt
(CONt’D)
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Community

the group is committed in community programme investment and other initiatives to contribute towards the 
betterment of local communities. 

•	 Ch2qu2	1onation	to	2mploy22

 On 14 February 2018, the company had raised some funds and the total 
collection from the employees was rM23,000. the amount raised was 
for the benefit of one of our long serving employees, Ms Lee Yim Phaik.

 Ms Lee was diagnosed with Stage 4 cancer, and we hope the contribution 
will assist her in her treatment.

•	 MAKNA	–	Br2ast	Can02r	awar2n2ss	0ampaign

 Every year, thousands of Malaysians from all walks of life are diagnosed with cancer. their lives are changed 
tremendously as they need to endure both the physical suffering and emotional uncertainty brought about 
by the disease. Often, cancer patients from poor financial backgrounds die not because the disease is 
incurable, but because they cannot afford the treatment. 

 In this regards, during the month of October 2018, Malaysian women empowerment organization, Project 
w  launched fundraising pledges in conjunction with the Pink Pride breast cancer awareness campaign.

 the campaign, initiated alongside MaKNa charity and 50gram, was aimed at arousing health awareness and 
to raise funds towards supporting breast cancer survivors. 

 MaKNa was founded to support cancer patients and their love ones in every way, whether it is providing 
patients with basic, daily necessities or enabling them to undergo important life saving treatments.

 through the event, Project w has brought in support from international brands such as Mamonde by 
amorepacific, and public listed company, advancecon holdings berhad. 

 the pledges were also made in the form of purchases of mini flower bouquet stands provided by 50gram.

 Contribution towards Yayasan mrCB’s Charity squash 2018.  

 Yayasan Mrcb with the collaboration with Squash racquet association of Malaysia (SraM) have organized 
Ma9ays6an	Op2n	Squas5	C5amp6ons56p	ćąĆč,	w5605	was	5291	on	Sun1ay,	ććn1	Ju9y	ćąĆč	at	t52	Nat6ona9	
Squas5	C2ntr2,	Bu86t	Ja969.	

Ir. Yeo handing total contribution to Ms. Lee

SuStaINabILItY StatEMENt
(CONt’D)

 



38
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   
annual repOrt 2018

 

O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 

 O
t

h
e

r
s

 C
O

r
p

O
r

a
t

e
 g

O
v

e
r

n
a

n
C

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

C
ia

l
 s

t
a

t
e

m
e

n
t

 we participated in the said fund raising event and the funds generated were donated to SraM for their Sport 
Educational activities which involved the underprivileged group and children with disabilities which is also in 
line with Yayasan Mrcb’s objectives.  the fund raised was used to improve the lives of the underprivileged 
and needy communities such as the needy students in the 6 schools adopted by Mrcb, the disabled youth 
empowerment programme and SraM for their Sport Educational activities involving the underprivileged 
group and children with disabilities.  

•	 BURSA	Bull	Charg2	ćąĆ8

 as we are in our second year of listing, we continue to support burSa bull charge event and this time the 
event was held on 27 September 2018.

 Our contributions towards burSa bull charge event was channelled towards registered underprivileged 
homes and orphanages with Yayasan burSa Malaysia. the donations received help them to purchase 
necessities and defray their living expenses. 

 we are proud of having the privilege to serve various segments of the community towards providing social 
empowerment and helping to make a positive difference for people across all walks of life. 

    

team advancecon with Yb Ong Kian Ming, Deputy Minister of 
International trade and Industry

team advancecon with Dato’ Seri tajuddin, the then cEO of bursa 
Malaysia berhad

SuStaINabILItY StatEMENt
(CONt’D)
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auDIt cOMMIttEE  
repOrt

the board of Directors (“the board”) of advancecon holdings berhad (“the company”) is pleased to present the 
audit committee (“ac”) report for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”).

aC Composition and attendance 

the ac comprises three members and all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”), which meets 
the requirements of Paragraphs 15.09(1)(a) and (b) of the Main Market Listing requirements of bursa Malaysia 
Securities berhad (“bursa Securities”) (“MMLr”). 

the ac currently comprises the following members:
1. Mohd Zaky bin Othman (chairman, INED)
2. Yeoh chong Keat (Member, Independent Non-Executive chairman)
3. Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi (Member, INED)

In FY2018, the ac had met five times and had private discussions with the External auditors and Internal auditors 
without the presence of Executive Directors’ and Management’s presence. the Executive Directors, group chief 
Financial Officer, External auditors, Internal auditors and other board members attended the ac meetings upon 
invitation, as and when necessary. the attendance record of ac members is as follows:

name meeting attendance

Mohd Zaky bin Othman 5 / 5

Yeoh chong Keat 5 / 5

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi 4 / 5

During the FY2018, the ac had engaged with the external auditors to review the key audit issues and audit 
concerns affecting the company. 

Minutes of each ac meeting were noted by the board via distribution to each board member and the chairman of 
the ac on key issues discussed in the ac meeting at each board meeting. 

terms Of reference (“tOr”) of the aC

the ac had discharged its functions and carried out its duties as set out in the tOr of the ac. 

the tOr of the ac is available for reference on the company’s website at www.advancecon.com.my.



40
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   
annual repOrt 2018

 

O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 

 O
t

h
e

r
s

 C
O

r
p

O
r

a
t

e
 g

O
v

e
r

n
a

n
C

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

C
ia

l
 s

t
a

t
e

m
e

n
t

summary of activities of the aC during the fY2018 

During the FY2018, the summary of the activities carried out by the ac was as follow:

1.  Financial reporting

(a)  reviewed the unaudited financial results of the group and annual audited financial statements 
of the group before recommending the same for board’s approval for release to bursa Securities. 
Discussions were focused particularly on any change in the accounting policies and its implementation; 
significant and unusual events arising from the audit; the going concern assumption; compliance 
with accounting standards and other statutory requirements; significant matters highlighted in the 
financial statements; and significant judgements made by Management. 

2.  Internal audit 

(a)  reviewed and approved the Internal audit Plan for FY2018 proposed by the Internal auditors (“Sterling”) 
to ensure the adequacy of the scope, coverage of works and that Sterling has the necessary authority 
to carry out its works. 

(b)  reviewed the Internal audit reports together with the recommendations from Sterling. the ac 
considered the Internal auditors’ recommendations taken into account Management’s responses 
and upon which approved the Internal auditors’ proposals for rectification and implementation of the 
agreed remedial actions for improvement. 

(c)  undertook assessment of the performance of the Internal auditors and reviewed its effectiveness 
of the audit processes. 

3.  External audit

(a)  Discussed and deliberated the External auditors’ audit Planning which covers engagement and 
reporting requirements, audit approach, areas of audit emphasis, communication with management, 
engagement team, reporting and deliverables, accounting standards update, tax update, amendments 
to MMLr, sample draft Independent auditor’s report, indicators of going concern and enforcement 
of companies act 2016. 

(b)  Discussed and deliberated on the External auditors’ audit review Memorandum and deficiencies in 
internal control based on observations made during the course of audit.  

(c) reviewed the draft audited consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2017 before recommending the same to the board for approval. 

(d)  had discussions with the External auditors and Internal auditors without the presence of the 
Management to discuss on the matters in regards to the audit and financial statements. 

(e)  Evaluated and reviewed the performance and independence of the External auditors and make 
recommendation to the board on their re-appointment and remuneration to the board for ensuing year. 

4.  related Party transactions (“rPt”)

(a)  reviewed and recommended on quarterly basis the rPt presented by Management to the board for 
approval, to ensure that these transactions are undertaken in the best interest of the company, fair, 
reasonable and on normal commercial terms as well as not detrimental to the interest of the minority 
shareholders. 

(b) Monitored the thresholds of the rPt and recurrent related party transactions (“rrPt”) to ensure 
compliance with MMLr. For FY2018, the ac noted that there were no rrPt within the group.

auDIt cOMMIttEE rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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summary of activities of the aC during the fY2018 (Cont’d)

5.  annual reporting

 reviewed the ac report and Statement on risk Management and Internal control to ensure adherence to 
the relevant statutory requirements and recommended the same to the board for approval. 

6. Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)

 reviewed and verified the options allocations pursuant to the ESOS of the company during the financial 
year under review. the ac was satisfied that the allocation of options during the FY2018 was in compliance 
with the criteria set out in the ESOS by-Laws and by the ESOS committee.

7.  Others 

(a)  reviewed the Discretionary authority Limit of the company. 
(b)  reviewed the whistle-blowing Policy of the company. 

training

During the FY2018, all of the ac members have attended various seminars, training programme and conferences. 
the list of trainings attended is disclosed in the corporate governance Overview Statement on pages 19 to 29 
of this annual report. 

internal audit function 

the company engaged the services of an independent professional firm i.e., Sterling business alignment consulting 
Sdn bhd (“Sterling”) to carry out the internal audit functions of the group in order to assist the ac in discharging 
its duties and responsibilities. the Internal auditors are empowered by the ac to provide objective evaluation of 
risks and controls in the auditable activities to ensure a sound system of internal controls. the Internal auditors 
adopts a risk based audit methodology to develop its audit plan and activities. the internal audit functions of the 
group are carried out according to the internal audit plan as approved by the ac. greater focus and appropriate 
review intervals are set for higher risk activities, material internal controls, including compliance with the company’s 
policies, procedures and regulatory requirements.

During the FY2018, the Internal auditors have performed their internal audit according to the approved internal 
audit plan.  Internal audit reports were issued to the ac in each quarter and tabled during ac meetings. the Internal 
audit reports were also issued to the respective operations management, incorporating audit recommendations 
and Management responses. the Internal auditors conducted follow-up audits to ensure the recommendations 
were implemented appropriately. Further details of the internal audit function and its activities are provided in the 
Statement on risk Management and Internal control, set out in pages 30 to 32 of this annual report. 

the cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the FY2018 was rM68,000 (FY2017: rM26,000).

auDIt cOMMIttEE rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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StatEMENt OF  
direCtOrs’ respOnsiBilitY
IN rESPEct OF auDItED FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018

the Directors are required by the companies act 2016 (“the act”) and the Main Market Listing requirements of bursa 
Malaysia Securities berhad to prepare the financial statements for each financial year in accordance with applicable 
Malaysian Financial reporting Standards, the International Financial reporting Standards and requirements of the act 
in Malaysia. 

the Directors are responsible to ensure that the audited financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the group and the company for the financial year. where there are new 
accounting standards or policies that become effective during the year, the impact of these new treatments would be 
stated in the notes to the financial statements, accordingly. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have: 

•		 a1opt21	appropr6at2	an1	r292vant	a00ount6n4	po96062s	an1	app9621	t52m	0ons6st2nt9y;	

•		 ma12	7u142m2nts	an1	2st6mat2s	t5at	ar2	r2asonab92	an1	pru12nt;	

•		 2nsur21	t5at	a99	app960ab92	a00ount6n4	stan1ar1s	5av2	b22n	3o99ow21;	an1	

•		 pr2par21	 36nan06a9	 stat2m2nts	 on	 a	 “4o6n4	 0on02rn”	 bas6s	 as	 t52	 D6r20tors	 5av2	 a	 r2asonab92	 2xp20tat6on,	
having made enquiries, that the group and the company have adequate resources to continue operations for the 
foreseeable future.

the Directors are responsible to ensure that the group and the company keep accounting records which disclose the 
financial position of the group and of the company with reasonable accuracy, enabling them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the act. 

the Directors have overall responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the 
assets of the group and of the company to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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aDDItIONaL cOMPLIaNcE  
infOrmatiOn

1. utilisatiOn Of prOCeeds frOm COrpOrate prOpOsals

 as at 31 December 2018, the gross proceeds from the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) amounting to 
approximately rM56.70 million was partially utilised from the date of listing in the following manner: 

no details of utilisation

allocation of ipO 
proceeds upon 

listing (1)

allocation of ipO
proceeds upon

listing (revised)

actual
utilisation of
ipO proceeds

unutilised
ipO proceeds

estimated
timeframe for

utilisation
(upon listing)

rm’000 rm’000 rm’000 rm’000

i. total Capital expenditures:- 29,700 29,190 (12,960) 16,230 within 36 months

(a) Purchase of
 new construction
 machinery and
 equipment

15,100 15,100 (12,960) 2,140 within 24 months

(b) construction of new
  workshop

14,600 14,090 (2) – 14,090 within 36 months

ii. repayment of bank borrowings 12,500 12,455 (2) (12,455) – within 6 months

iii. working capital 10,700 11,255 (2) (11,255) – within 24 months

iv. Estimated listing expenses 3,800 3,800 (3,800) – upon Listing

56,700 56,700 (40,470) 16,230

Notes: 

(1) 	 As	p2r	IPO	Prosp20tus	1at21	ĆĎ	Jun2	ćąĆČ.	

(2)  On 29 august 2018, the board announced to re-allocate the utilisation of construction of new workshop 
and repayment of bank borrowings to day-to-day working capital expenses for payment to suppliers.

2. audit and nOn-audit fees

 the amount of audit fees and non-audit fees paid/payable to the company’s external auditors and a firm 
affiliated to the external auditors’ firm by the group and the company for the financial year ended 31 
December 2018 are as follows:

type of fee group (rm) Company (rm)

audit Fees 167,000 38,000

Non-audit Fees

- review of Statement of risk Management and Internal control 5,000 5,000

total 172,000 43,000

3. material COntraCts

 During the year under review, the company and its subsidiaries did not enter into any material contracts 
involving Directors’ and major shareholders’ interest. 
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4. emplOYees share OptiOn sCheme (“esOs”)

	 T52	s5ar25o912rs	o3	t52	Company	5a1	v6a	an	Extraor16nary	G2n2ra9	M22t6n4	5291	on	Ćč	January	ćąĆč	approv21	
up to 15% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the company at any point of time during the 
duration of the ESOS. the ESOS is for a duration of five years commencing from the date of implementation 
on 6 March 2018, unless extended further.

 the total number of options granted to the eligible Directors and employees of the group and the outstanding 
options as at 31 December 2018 was set out in the table below:

description number of options as 
at 31 december 2018

granted during the financial year 20,000,000

Exercised during the financial year –

Forfeited during the financial year (380,000)

Outstanding options exercisable during the financial year 19,620,000

 the total number of options granted to the Directors and Senior Management, and outstanding options as 
at 31 December 2018 was set out in the table below:

for the financial year ended
31 december 2018 directors

senior
management

Other 
eligible

employees total

Number of options granted 3,800,000 6,200,000 10,000,000 20,000,000

Number of options vested – – – –

Number of options forfeited – – (380,000) (380,000)

Number of options outstanding 3,800,000 6,200,000 9,620,000 19,620,000

the percentage of options granted to Directors and Senior Management was as follows:

description since commencement up to 31 december 2018

aggregate maximum allocation applicable to Directors
and Senior Management

10,000,000

actual percentage granted 50%

 the number of options granted to Independent Non-Executive Directors in respect of financial year ended 
31 December 2018 was as follows:

directors number of options granted

Yeoh chong Keat –

Mohd Zaky bin Othman –

Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi –
 

5. COntraCt relating tO lOans 

 there were no contracts relating to loans entered into by the company involving Directors’ and major 
shareholders’ interest. 

6. related partY transaCtiOns 

 a list of the significant related party transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, and between 
the group and other related parties for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is set out on page 114 
of the annual report.

aDDItIONaL cOMPLIaNcE INFOrMatION 
(CONt’D)
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DIrEctOrS’   
repOrt

the directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the group and of the company for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

prinCipal aCtivities

the company is principally engaged in the businesses of provision of management services and hiring of machineries. 
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

results

     the group the Company
     rm  rm

Profit after taxation for the financial year   10,618,139 2,475,853

attributable to:-     
Owners of the company    10,618,139 2,475,853

dividends

Dividend paid by the company since 31 December 2017 is as follows:-
 
     rm

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018

A	36rst	6nt2r6m	s6n492-t62r	16v612n1	o3	Ć	s2n	p2r	or16nary	s5ar2,	pa61	on	Ĉ	January	ćąĆĎ	 	 ĉ,ąĆČ,ćċą	

the directors do not recommend the payment of any further dividends for the financial year.

reserves and prOvisiOns

there were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed 
in the financial statements.

issues Of shares and deBentures

During the financial year:- 

(a) there were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the company; and

(b) there were no issues of debentures by the company.
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treasurY shares

During the financial year, the company purchased 1,161,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open market at an 
average price of rM 0.29 per share. the total consideration paid for the purchase was rM339,077 including transaction 
costs. the shares purchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127(6) of the companies act 
2016 and are presented as a deduction from equity.

as at 31 December 2018, the company held as treasury shares a total of 1,161,000 of its 402,079,000 issued and fully 
paid-up ordinary shares. the treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of rM 339,077. the details on the treasury 
shares are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

OptiOns granted Over unissued shares

During the financial year, no options were granted by the company to any person to take up any unissued shares in the 
company except for the share options granted pursuant to the company’s Employee Share Option Scheme below.

emplOYee share OptiOn sCheme

the Employee Share Option Scheme of the company (“ESOS”) is governed by the ESOS by-Laws and was approved by 
s5ar25o912rs	on	Ćč	January	ćąĆč.	T52	ESOS	6s	to	b2	6n	3or02	3or	a	p2r6o1	o3	Ċ	y2ars	23320t6v2	3rom	ċ	Mar05	ćąĆč.

the details of the ESOS are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.
 

Bad and dOuBtful deBts

before the financial statements of the group and of the company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for impairment 
losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debts and that adequate allowance had 
been made for impairment losses on receivables.

at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of bad 
debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the group and 
of the company.

Current assets

before the financial statements of the group and of the company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps 
to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, including their 
value as shown in the accounting records of the group and of the company, have been written down to an amount which 
they might be expected so to realise.

at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed 
to the current assets in the financial statements misleading.

valuatiOn methOds

at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render adherence 
to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the group and of the company misleading or inappropriate.

DIrEctOrS’ rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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COntingent and Other liaBilities

at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(a) any charge on the assets of the group and of the company that has arisen since the end of the financial year 
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability of the group and of the company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability of the group and of the company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable 
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may 
substantially affect the ability of the group and of the company to meet their obligations when they fall due.

Change Of CirCumstanCes

at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report 
or the financial statements of the group and of the company which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading.

items Of an unusual nature

the results of the operations of the group and of the company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of the 
directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction 
or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the 
operations of the group and of the company for the financial year in which this report is made.

direCtOrs

the names of directors of the company who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows:-

Dato’ Phum ang Kia
Lim Swee chai
Ir. Yeo an thai
tung Kai hung
Yeoh chong Keat 
Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi
Mohd Zaky bin Othman

Dato’ Phum ang Kia and Lim Swee chai are the directors of the company’s subsidiaries who served during the financial 
year until the date of this report.

DIrEctOrS’ rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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direCtOrs’ interests

according to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the financial 
year in shares of the company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows: 

 number of Ordinary shares
  at   at
  1.1.2018 Bought sold 31.12.2018

the Company    
    
Direct Interests    
    
Dato’ Phum ang Kia   95,563,750 1,000,000 – 96,563,750
Lim Swee chai   51,488,250 1,550,000 – 53,038,250
Ir. Yeo an thai   14,875,250 – – 14,875,250
tung Kai hung  14,875,250  – 2,000,000 12,875,250
Yeoh chong Keat  25,000  – – 25,000
Fathi ridzuan bin ahmad Fauzi   25,000 – – 25,000

 number of Options under esOs
  at   at
  1.1.2018 granted exercised 31.12.2018

the Company    

Direct Interests    
    
Dato’ Phum ang Kia   – 1,000,000 – 1,000,000
Lim Swee chai   – 1,000,000 – 1,000,000
Ir. Yeo an thai   – 900,000 – 900,000
tung Kai hung  – 900,000 – 900,000

by virtue of his shareholding in the company, Dato’ Phum ang Kia is deemed to have interests in shares in its related 
corporations during the financial year to the extent of the company’s interest, in accordance with Section 8 of the 
companies act 2016.

the other director holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares, options over unissued shares 
of the company or its related corporations during the financial year.

direCtOrs’ Benefits 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other 
than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by directors shown in 
the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the company or related corporations) by reason 
of a contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a 
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which may 
be deemed to arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with companies in which certain 
directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 34(b) to the financial statements.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the group or the company a party to any arrangements whose object 
is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the company or 
any other body corporate other than the share options granted to certain directors pursuant to the ESOS of the company.

DIrEctOrS’ rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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direCtOrs’ remuneratiOn

the details of the directors’ remuneration paid or payable to the directors of the group and of the company during the 
financial year are disclosed in Note 33 (a) to the financial statements.

indemnitY and insuranCe COst 

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for the directors and a 
principal officer of the group and of the company were rM10,000,000 and rM17,500 respectively. No indemnity was 
given to or insurance effected for auditors of the company.

suBsidiaries

the details of the company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

signifiCant events during the finanCial Year 

the significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.

signifiCant events OCCurring after the repOrting periOd 

the significant events occurring after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

auditOrs

the auditors, Messrs. crowe Malaysia PLt (converted from a conventional partnership, crowe Malaysia which was 
previously known as crowe horwath), have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

the auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.

SIgNED IN accOrDaNcE wIth a rESOLutION OF thE DIrEctOrS DatED 

dato’ phum ang Kia

lim swee Chai

DIrEctOrS’ rEPOrt 
(CONt’D)
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StatEMENt bY
direCtOrs

PurSuaNt tO SEctION 251(2) OF tHE COMpANIES ACt 2016

we, dato’ phum ang Kia and lim swee Chai, being two of the directors of advancecon holdings Berhad, state that, 
in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 137 are drawn up in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company 
as of 31 December 2018 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE wItH A RESOLUtION OF tHE DIRECtORS DAtED 

dato’ phum ang Kia lim swee Chai

I, teh heng wee, MIA Membership Number: 38286, being the Group Chief Financial Officer primarily responsible for the 
financial management of advancecon holdings Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements 
set out on pages 56 to 137 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration 
conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovementioned
teh Heng wee
at Kuala Lumpur 
in the Federal territory
on this

  teh heng wee
Before me

lai din (w668)
Commissioner for Oaths

StAtUtORY
deClaratiOn

pURSUANt tO SECtION 251(1)(b) OF tHE COMpANIES ACt 2016
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INDEPENDENt
auditOrs’ repOrt
tO thE MEMbErS OF aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD

repOrt On the audit Of the finanCial statements 

Opinion

we have audited the financial statements of advancecon holdings berhad, which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at 31 December 2018 of the group and of the company, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the group and of the company 
for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies, as set out on pages 56 to 137.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and 
of the company as at 31 December 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year 
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial reporting Standards, International Financial reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the companies act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence and Other ethical responsibilities

we are independent of the group and of the company in accordance with the by-Laws (on Professional Ethics, conduct 
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of accountants (“by-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards board 
for accountants’ code of Ethics for Professional accountants (“IESba code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the by-Laws and the IESba code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the group and of the company for the current financial year. these matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the group and of the company as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

revenue recognition for Construction Contracts
refer to Note 28 to the financial statements

Key audit matter how our audit addressed the Key audit matter

revenue recognition for construction contracts, 
due to the contracting nature of the business, 
involves significant judgements. this includes 
the determination of the total budgeted contract 
costs and the calculation of percentage of 
completion which affects the quantum of revenue 
to be recognised. In estimating the revenue to 
be recognised, the management considers past 
experience and certification by customers and 
independent third parties, where applicable.

we determined this to be a key audit matter due 
to the complexity and judgemental nature of the 
budgeting of contract costs and the determination 
of revenue recognised.

Our procedures included, amongst others:-

•	 R2a1	a99	82y	0ontra0ts	an1	16s0uss21	w6t5	mana42m2nt	to	
obtain an understanding of the terms and risks to assess 
our consideration of whether revenue was appropriately 
recognised;

•	 T2st21	0osts	6n0urr21	to	1at2	to	support6n4	1o0um2ntat6on	
such as contractors’ claim certificates;

•	 Ass2ss21	t52	mana42m2nt’s	assumpt6ons	6n	12t2rm6n6n4	
the percentage of completion of projects, estimations 
of revenue and costs, provisions for foreseeable losses, 
liquidated and ascertained damages as well as recoverability 
of billed receivables;

•	 Ass2ss21	t52	r2asonab92n2ss	o3	p2r02nta42	o3	0omp92t6on	
by comparing to certification by external parties; and 

•	 R2v62w21	 2st6mat21	 pro36t	 an1	 0osts	 to	 0omp92t2	 an1	
adjustments for job costing and potential contract losses.
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Key audit matters (Cont’d)

impairment assessment of trade receivables 
refer to Note 10 to the financial statements

Key audit matter  how our audit addressed the Key audit matter

the group carries significant trade receivables 
and is exposed to credit risk, or the risk of 
counterparties defaulting. the assessment of the 
adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses 
involved judgement, which includes analysing 
historical bad debts, customer concentrations, 
customer creditworthiness, current economic 
trends and changes in the customer payment 
terms.

Our procedures included, amongst others:-

• Obtained an understanding of:-
• the group’s control over the receivable collection 

process;
• how the group identifies and assesses the impairment 

of receivables; and 
• how the group makes the accounting estimates for 

impairment.
• reviewed the ageing analysis of receivables and testing 

the reliability thereof;
• reviewed subsequent cash collections for major receivables 

and overdue amounts;
• Made inquiries of management regarding the action plans 

to recover overdue amounts;
• compared and challenged management’s view on the 

recoverability of overdue amounts to historical patterns 
of collection;

• E x a m i n e d  o t h e r  e v i d e n c e  i n c l u d i n g  c u s t o m e r 
correspondences, proposed or existing settlement plans, 
repayment schedules, etc.; and

• Evaluating the reasonableness and adequacy of the 
allowance for impairment recognised.

information Other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

the directors of the company are responsible for the other information. the other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the group and of the company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the group and of the company does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the group and of the company, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements of the group and of the company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENt auDItOrS’ rEPOrt 
tO thE MEMbErS OF aDvaNcECON HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONt’D)
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responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

the directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the group and of the company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial reporting Standards, International Financial reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the companies act 2016 in Malaysia. the directors are also responsible for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the group 
and of the company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the group and of the company, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or 
the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the group and the company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on auditing will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

as part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. we also:-

•	 I12nt63y	an1	ass2ss	t52	r6s8s	o3	mat2r6a9	m6sstat2m2nt	o3	t52	36nan06a9	stat2m2nts	o3	t52	Group	an1	o3	t52	Company,	
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obta6n	an	un12rstan16n4	o3	 6nt2rna9	0ontro9	 r292vant	to	t52	au16t	 6n	or12r	to	12s64n	au16t	pro021ur2s	t5at	ar2	
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
group’s and the company’s internal control.

•	 Eva9uat2	t52	appropr6at2n2ss	o3	a00ount6n4	po96062s	us21	an1	t52	r2asonab92n2ss	o3	a00ount6n4	2st6mat2s	an1	
related disclosures made by the directors.

•	 Con09u12	on	t52	appropr6at2n2ss	o3	t52	16r20tors’	us2	o3	t52	4o6n4	0on02rn	bas6s	o3	a00ount6n4	an1,	bas21	on	
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the group and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements of the group and the company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. however, 
future events or conditions may cause the group and the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Eva9uat2	t52	ov2ra99	pr2s2ntat6on,	stru0tur2	an1	0ont2nt	o3	t52	36nan06a9	stat2m2nts	o3	t52	Group	an1	t52	Company,	
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the group and of the company represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obta6n	 su336062nt	 appropr6at2	 au16t	 2v612n02	 r24ar16n4	 t52	 36nan06a9	 6n3ormat6on	 o3	 t52	 2nt6t62s	 or	 bus6n2ss	
activities within the group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the group. we are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. we remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENt auDItOrS’ rEPOrt 
tO thE MEMbErS OF aDvaNcECON HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONt’D)
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auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Cont’d)

we communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the group and of the company for the current financial year and are therefore the 
key audit matters. we describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other matters

this report is made solely to the members of the company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the companies 
act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. we do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of 
this report.

Crowe malaysia plt Chin Kit seong
LLPąąĆččĆČ-LCA	&	AF	ĆąĆč	 ąĈąĈą/ąĆ/ćąćĆ	J
chartered accountants chartered accountant

Kuala Lumpur

INDEPENDENt auDItOrS’ rEPOrt 
tO thE MEMbErS OF aDvaNcEcON HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONt’D)
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StatEMENtS OF
finanCial pOsitiOn
at 31 DEcEMbEr 2018

 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
 note rm rm rm rm
   (restated)

assets

NON-currENt aSSEtS
Investments in subsidiaries 5 – – 11,209,389 10,328,312
Investment in an associate 6 – – 30 –
Property, plant and equipment 7 151,196,756 151,367,890 6,869,174 6,895,481
Investment properties 8 39,222,108 32,927,635 – –
Other investments  50,315 – – –
Deferred tax assets 19 160,149 – 160,149 –
Finance lease receivables 9 2,748,578 1,691,881 – –
trade receivables 10 – 155,675 – –

  193,377,906 186,143,081 18,238,742 17,223,793

currENt aSSEtS
contract assets 11 79,097,980 84,106,836 – –
Finance lease receivables 9 890,840 399,149 – –
trade receivables 10 66,928,323 38,574,188 – –
Other receivables, deposits and
 prepayments 12 25,004,362 7,993,583 4,091,704 587,010
Amount owing by subsidiaries 13 – – 79,274,972 73,991,583
Amount owing by an associate  5,288 – 3,788 –
Short-term investments 14 4,194,411 2,293,570 636,644 –
Current tax assets  1,509,428 2,270,569 24,541 –
Deposits with licensed banks 15 32,637,176 22,315,291 248,314 4,841,101
Cash and bank balances  7,708,889 24,581,370 276,477 2,574,423

  217,976,697 182,534,556 84,556,440 81,994,117

tOtAL ASSEtS  411,354,603 368,677,637 102,795,182 99,217,910

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
 note rm rm rm rm
   (restated)

eQuitY and liaBilities

EQuItY
Share capital 16 85,752,871 85,752,871 85,752,871 85,752,871
treasury shares 17 (339,077) – (339,077) –
reserves 18 1,116,498 – 1,116,498 –
retained profits  95,455,898 88,855,019 6,570,231 8,111,638

tOtaL EQuItY  181,986,190 174,607,890 93,100,523 93,864,509

NON-currENt LIabILItIES
Deferred tax liabilities 19 4,909,076 6,624,084 – 20,724
Long-term borrowings 20 78,790,418 64,746,151 4,216,150 464,524

  83,699,494 71,370,235 4,216,150 485,248

currENt LIabILItIES
contract liabilities 11 20,679,138 8,976,387 – –
trade payables 23 49,147,250 44,793,675 15,808 27,964
Other payables and accruals 24 15,921,253 25,278,026 1,022,543 4,325,499
amount owing to subsidiaries 13 – – 110,883 250,059
Dividend payable 25 4,017,260 – 4,017,260 –
current tax liabilities  272,022 193,754 – 144,631
Short-term borrowings 26 51,176,455 40,556,315 312,015 120,000
bank overdrafts 27 4,455,541 2,901,355 – –

  145,668,919 122,699,512 5,478,509 4,868,153

tOtaL LIabILItIES  229,368,413 194,069,747 9,694,659 5,353,401

tOtaL EQuItY aND LIabILItIES  411,354,603 368,677,637 102,795,182 99,217,910

StatEMENtS OF FINaNcIaL POSItION 
at 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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StatEMENtS OF
prOfit Or lOss and Other COmprehensive inCOme
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018

 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
 note rm rm rm rm

rEvENuE 28 272,860,464 265,988,572 7,941,089 12,410,000

cOSt OF SaLES  (232,949,282) (215,060,939) (30,175) (234,267)

grOSS PrOFIt  39,911,182 50,927,633 7,910,914 12,175,733

OthEr INcOME  10,027,133 5,874,699 209,482 585,740

  49,938,315 56,802,332 8,120,396 12,761,473

aDMINIStratIvE ExPENSES  (24,046,787) (21,347,458) (5,502,133) (1,886,316)

OthEr ExPENSES  (2,260,533) (3,316,278) (166,838) (181,803)

FINaNcE cOStS  (7,762,518) (5,403,324) (177,906) (47,221)

IMPaIrMENt LOSSES ON
 FINANCIAL ASSEtS  (433,050) – – –

SHARE OF RESULt OF AN EQUItY
 ACCOUNtED ASSOCIAtE 6 (30) – – –

pROFIt BEFORE tAXAtION 29 15,425,397 26,735,272 2,273,519 10,646,133

INCOME tAX EXpENSE 30 (4,807,258) (8,272,192) 202,334 (79,583)

pROFIt AFtER tAXAtION  10,618,139 18,463,080 2,475,853 10,566,550

OtHER COMpREHENSIVE  INCOME  – – – –

tOtAL COMpREHENSIVE INCOME
 FOR tHE  FINANCIAL YEAR  10,618,139 18,463,080 2,475,853 10,566,550

pROFIt AFtER tAXAtION
 AttRIBUtABLE tO:-
 Owners of the Company  10,618,139 18,463,080 2,475,853 10,566,550

tOtAL COMpREHENSIVE
 INCOME AttRIBUtABLE tO:-
 Owners of the Company  10,618,139 18,463,080 2,475,853 10,566,550

Earnings per share (Sen)
- Basic 37 2.64 5.18
- Diluted 37 2.64 5.18

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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StatEMENtS OF
Changes in eQuitY

FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

    non-
    distributable
     employee
    share distributable
  share treasury  Option retained
  Capital shares reserve profits total
 note rm rm rm rm rm

the group

balance at 1.1.2017   31,207,900 – – 74,412,729 105,620,629

Profit after taxation/
 total comprehensive income
 for the financial year  – – – 18,463,080 18,463,080

Contribution by and distributions
 to owners of the Company:
  - Issuance of shares 16 56,700,000 – – – 56,700,000
  - Dividend 31 – – – (4,020,790) (4,020,790)
  - Share issue expenses 16 (2,155,029) – – – (2,155,029)

Balance at 31.12.2017/
 1.1.2018  85,752,871 – – 88,855,019 174,607,890

profit after taxation/
 total comprehensive
  income for the financial year  – – – 10,618,139 10,618,139

Contribution by and distributions
 to owners of the Company:
  - purchase of treasury
   shares 17 – (339,077) – – (339,077)
  - Recognition of share
   option expenses 18 – – 1,116,498 – 1,116,498
  - Dividend 31 – – – (4,017,260) (4,017,260)
 
Balance at 31.12.2018  85,752,871 (339,077) 1,116,498 95,455,898 181,986,190
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    non-
    distributable
     employee
    share distributable
  share treasury  Option retained
  Capital shares reserve profits total
 note rm rm rm rm rm

the Company

balance at 1.1.2017  31,207,900 – – 1,565,878 32,773,778

Profit after taxation/
 total comprehensive
 income for the
 financial year  – – – 10,566,550 10,566,550

Contribution by and
 distributions to owners
 of the Company:
 - Issuance of shares 16 56,700,000 – – – 56,700,000
 - Dividend 31 – – – (4,020,790) (4,020,790)
 - Share issue expenses 16 (2,155,029) – – – (2,155,029)

Balance at 31.12.2017/
 1.1.2018  85,752,871 – – 8,111,638 93,864,509

profit after taxation/
 total comprehensive
 income for the financial year  – – – 2,475,853 2,475,853

Contribution by and distributions
 to owners of the Company:
 - purchase of treasury shares 17 – (339,077) – – (339,077)
 - Recognition of share
  option expenses 18 – – 1,116,498 – 1,116,498
 - Dividend 31 – – – (4,017,260) (4,017,260)

Balance at 31.12.2018  85,752,871 (339,077) 1,116,498 6,570,231 93,100,523

StAtEMENtS OF CHANGES IN EQUItY 
FOR tHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONt’D)
 

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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StatEMENtS OF
Cash flOws

FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018

 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
  rm rm rm rm
   (restated)

caSh FLOwS FrOM/(FOr) OPEratINg actIvItIES
Profit before taxation  15,425,397 26,735,272 2,273,519 10,646,133

adjustments for:-
allowance for impairment losses on
 trade receivables  443,050 – – –
Depreciation:
- investment properties   527,363 466,410 – –
- property, plant and equipment  25,042,509 20,485,991 190,062 242,425
Interest expense  7,762,518 5,403,324 177,906 47,221
Loss on deemed disposal due to effects
 of deconsolidation of subsidiaries under
 Member’s Voluntary winding Up  231,417 – – –
property, plant and equipment written off  6,003 315,761 61 2,953
Share of result of an equity accounted
 associate  30 – – –
Share options expenses  1,116,498 – 235,421 –
Dividend income  – – (6,700,000) (12,210,000)
Dividend income from short-term investments  (82,601) (13,570) (36,644) –
Gain on disposal of an investment property  – (153,823) – –
Gain on disposal of property, plant
 and equipment  (5,337,635) (752,363) (47,753) (221,444)
Interest income:
- deposits with licensed banks  (1,040,792) (839,011) (24,549) (236,749)
- trade receivables  – (586) – (586)
- finance lease receivables  (113,018) (30,030) – –
- others  (26,093) (310,680) – (9,161)
Reversal of impairment losses on:
- trade receivables   – (96,220) – –
- other receivables  – (366,536) – –

Operating profit/(loss) before working
 capital changes  43,954,646 50,843,939 (3,931,977) (1,739,208)
Decrease/(Increase) in contract assets  5,008,856 (31,438,412) – –
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities  11,702,751 (11,381,904) – –
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and
 other receivables  (44,060,704) 34,886,585 (3,504,694) 331,930
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and
 other payables  311,861 (8,143,321) (3,413,112) 30,091
Decrease in amount owing by subsidiaries  – – 147,769 10,208,631
Decrease in amount owing to subsidiaries  – – – (22,078)

CASH FROM/(FOR) OpERAtIONS
 CARRIED FORwARD  16,917,410 34,766,887 (10,702,014) 8,809,366

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
 note rm rm rm rm
   (restated)

caSh FrOM/(FOr) OPEratIONS
 BROUGHt FORwARD  16,917,410 34,766,887 (10,702,014) 8,809,366
Interest paid  (7,762,518) (5,403,324) (177,906) (47,221)
tax refund  866,578 408,827 – –
tax paid  (6,654,840) (9,458,328) (147,711) (104,383)
Interest received from trade
 receivables   – 586 – 586

NEt CASH FROM/(FOR)
 OpERAtING ACtIVItIES  3,366,630 20,314,648 (11,027,631) 8,658,348

CASH FLOwS (FOR)/FROM
  INVEStING ACtIVItIES
Net cash flow from deconsolidation
 of subsidiaries under Member’s
 Voluntary winding Up 5 (1,943,359) – – –
Investment in an associate  (30) – (30) –
Repayment from finance lease
 receivables  436,982 95,970 – –
Advances to subsidiaries  – – (5,431,158) (52,910,741)
Advances to an associate company  (5,288) – (3,788) –
Dividend received  – – 6,700,000 12,210,000
Dividend income from short-term
 investments  82,601 13,570 36,644 –
Interest received  1,179,903 1,179,721 24,549 245,910
proceeds from disposal of an
 investment property  – 1,150,000 – –
proceeds from disposal of
 property, plant and equipment  13,469,243 3,073,686 49,013 399,257
purchase of investment properties  (1,514,189) (3,315,549) – –
purchase of property, plant and
 equipment 32(a) (16,022,039) (17,900,000) (67,076) (1,272,510)
(Increase) / Decrease in deposits
 pledged with licensed banks  (14,921,885) 3,115,238 (7,213) (7,077)
withdrawal / (placement) of deposit 
 with tenure more than three months  4,600,000 (4,600,000) 4,600,000 (4,600,000)

NEt CASH (FOR)/ FROM 
 INVEStING ACtIVItIES  (14,638,061) (17,187,364) 5,900,941 (45,935,161)

StAtEMENtS OF CASH FLOwS 
FOR tHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONt’D)
 

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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StatEMENtS OF caSh FLOwS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

 the group the Company
  2018 2017 2018 2017
 note rm rm rm rm
   (restated)

CASH FLOwS FROM/(FOR)
 FINANCING ACtIVItIES
Dividends paid  – (13,520,790) – (13,520,790)
proceeds from issuance of shares  – 56,700,000 – 56,700,000
Share issue expenses  – (2,155,029) – (2,155,029)
purchase of treasury shares  (339,077) – (339,077) –
Repayment to subsidiaries   – – (139,176) (224,833)
Repayment of hire purchase obligations  (24,355,185) (21,570,792) – –
Drawdown of term loans  13,751,244 3,522,909 4,166,276 –
Repayment of term loans  (5,277,200) (4,373,949) (222,635) (120,000)
Net drawdown of bankers’ acceptances  8,011,000 687,914 – –
Net drawdown of bank factoring  1,815,805 – – –
Net drawdown/(repayment) of
 invoice financing  12,139,018 (435,691) – –
Net (repayment)/drawdown of
 revolving credit  (11,000,000) 8,000,000 – –

NEt CASH (FOR)/FROM 
 FINANCING ACtIVItIES  (5,254,395) 26,854,572 3,465,388 40,679,348

NEt (DECREASE)/INCREASE
 IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENtS  (16,525,826) 29,981,856 (1,661,302) 3,402,535

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENtS
 At BEGINNING OF tHE
 FINANCIAL YEAR  23,973,585 (6,008,271) 2,574,423 (828,112)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENtS
 At END OF tHE FINANCIAL YEAR  32(c) 7,447,759 23,973,585 913,121 2,574,423

the annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. general infOrmatiOn

 the company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. the registered office 
and principal place of business are as follows:-

registered office : Suite 10.02, Level 10,
   the gardens South tower,
   Mid valley city, Lingkaran Syed Putra,
   59200 Kuala Lumpur.

Pr6n06pa9	p9a02	o3	bus6n2ss	 :	 No.	Ćċ	&	Ćč,	Ja9an	P28a8a	č/Ĉ,
   Seksyen 8, Kota Damansara,
	 	 	 ĉČčĆą	P2ta96n4	Jaya,
   Selangor Darul Ehsan.

 the financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of 
the directors dated 18 april 2019.

2. prinCipal aCtivities

 the company is principally engaged in the businesses of providing of management services and hiring of 
machineries. the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

3. Basis Of preparatiOn

 the financial statements of the group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to include 
other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and in compliance 
with Malaysian Financial reporting Standards (“MFrSs”), International Financial reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the companies act 2016 in Malaysia.

3.1 During the current financial year, the group has adopted the following new accounting standards and/or 
interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any):-

mfrss and/or iC interpretations (including the Consequential amendments)

MFRS	Ď	F6nan06a9	Instrum2nts	(IFRS	Ď	6ssu21	by	IASB	6n	Ju9y	ćąĆĉ)

MFrS 15 revenue from contracts with customers

Ic Interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

amendments to MFrS 2: classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment transactions

amendments to MFrS 4: applying MFrS 9 Financial Instruments with MFrS 4 Insurance contracts

amendments to MFrS 15: Effective Date of MFrS 15

amendments to MFrS 15: clarifications to MFrS 15 ‘revenue from contracts with customers’

amendments to MFrS 140 – transfers of Investment Property

annual Improvements to MFrS Standards 2014 – 2016 cycles:
•	 Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	Ć:	D292t6on	o3	S5ort-t2rm	Ex2mpt6ons	3or	F6rst-t6m2	A1opt2rs
•	 Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	Ććč:	M2asur6n4	an	Asso06at2	or	Jo6nt	V2ntur2	at	Fa6r	Va9u2

NOtES tO thE
finanCial statements
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

3. Basis Of preparatiOn (COnt’d)

3.1 mfrss and/or iC interpretations (including the Consequential amendments) (Cont’d)

 the adoption of the above accounting standard(s) and/or interpretation(s) (including the consequential 
amendments, if any) did not have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements other than the new 
classification of financial assets under MFRS 9 which is disclosed in Note 40.3 to the financial statements. 
this is because the measurement of financial assets under MFRS 9 and the timing and amount of revenue 
recognised under MFRS 15 are consistent to the Group’s current practice.

 
 the adjustments arose from changes in accounting policies as a consequence of the adoption of above 

accounting standards and interpretation (including the consequential amendments, if any) are presented 
in Note 43 to the financial statements.

3.2 the Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and/or interpretations (including 
the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board 
(MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-

mfrss and/or iC interpretations (including the Consequential amendments)  effective date

MFRS	Ćċ	L2as2s	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

MFRS	ĆČ	Insuran02	Contra0ts	 Ć	January	ćąćĆ

IC	Int2rpr2tat6on	ćĈ	Un02rta6nty	ov2r	In0om2	Tax	Tr2atm2nts	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	Ĉ:	D236n6t6on	o3	a	Bus6n2ss	 Ć	January	ćąćą

Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	Ď:	Pr2paym2nt	F2atur2s	w6t5	N24at6v2	Comp2nsat6on	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets
 b2tw22n	an	Inv2stor	an1	6ts	Asso06at2	or	Jo6nt	V2ntur2	 D232rr21	

Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	ĆąĆ	an1	MFRS	Ćąč:	D236n6t6on	o3	Mat2r6a9	 Ć	January	ćąćą

Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	ĆĆĎ:	P9an	Am2n1m2nt,	Curta69m2nt	or	S2tt92m2nt	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

Am2n1m2nts	to	MFRS	Ććč:	Lon4-t2rm	Int2r2sts	6n	Asso06at2s	an1	Jo6nt	V2ntur2s	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

Am2n1m2nts	to	R232r2n02s	to	t52	Con02ptua9	Fram2wor8	6n	MFRS	Stan1ar1s	 Ć	January	ćąćą

Annua9	Improv2m2nts	to	MFRS	Stan1ar1s	ćąĆĊ	–	ćąĆČ	Cy092s	 Ć	January	ćąĆĎ

 the adoption of the above accounting standards and/or interpretations (including the consequential 
amendments, if any) is expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group upon 
their initial application except as follows:-

 MFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases 
and will replace the current guidance on lease accounting when it becomes effective. Under MFRS 16, the 
classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. All lessees 
are required to recognise their leased assets and the related lease obligations in the statement of financial 
position (with limited exceptions). the leased assets are subject to depreciation and the interest on lease 
liabilities are calculated using the effective interest method. the Group has assessed the initial application 
of MFRS16 on its financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is expected to have 
no material impact on the net profit.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies

ĉ.Ć	 CRITICAL	ACCOUNTING	ESTIMATES	AND	JUDGEMENTS

 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

 Management believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources 
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year other than as disclosed below:-

(a) impairment of investment in subsidiaries and investment properties

 the Group determines whether its investment in subsidiaries and investment properties are impaired 
by evaluating the extent to which the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. 
this evaluation is subject to changes such as market performance, economic and political situation 
of the country. A variety of methods is used to determine the recoverable amount, such as valuation 
reports and discounted cash flows. For discounted cash flows, significant judgement is required 
in the estimation of the present value of future cash flows generated by the assets, which involve 
uncertainties and are significantly affected by assumptions used and judgements made regarding 
estimates of future cash flows and discount rates. 

(b) impairment of trade receivables and Contract assets

 the Group uses the simplified approach to estimate a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for 
all trade receivables and contract assets. the contract assets are grouped with trade receivables 
for impairment assessment because they have substantially the same risk characteristics as the 
trade receivables for the same types of contracts.the Group develops the expected loss rates 
based on the payment profiles of past sales and the corresponding historical credit losses, and 
adjusts for qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. If 
the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying values of 
trade receivables and contract assets.

(c) revenue recognition for Construction Contracts

 the Company recognises construction revenue by reference to the construction progress using the 
input method, determined based on the proportion of construction costs incurred for work performed 
todate over the estimated total construction costs.  the total estimated costs are based on approved 
budgets, which require assessment and judgement to be made on changes in, for example, work 
scope, changes in costs and costs to completion. In making the judgement, management relies on 
past experience and the work of specialists.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

ĉ.Ć	 CRITICAL	ACCOUNTING	ESTIMATES	AND	JUDGEMENTS	(CONT’D)

	 Cr6t60a9	Ju142m2nts	Ma12	6n	App9y6n4	A00ount6n4	Po96062s

 Management believes that there are no instances of application of critical judgement in applying the 
Group’s accounting policies which will have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements other than as disclosed below:-

(a) Classification between investment properties and Owner-occupied properties 

 Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another 
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), 
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the 
property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or 
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

(b) Classification of leasehold land

 the classification of leasehold land as a finance lease or an operating lease requires the use of 
judgement in determining the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to its ownership lie. Despite 
the fact that there will be no transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term and that the lease 
term does not constitute the major part of the indefinite economic life of the land, management 
considered that the present value of the minimum lease payments approximated to the fair value of 
the land at the inception of the lease. Accordingly, management judged that the Group has acquired 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the land through a finance lease.

(c)  Contingent liabilities

 the recognition and measurement for contingent liabilities is based on management’s view of the 
expected outcome on contingencies after consulting legal counsel for litigation cases and experts, 
for matters in the ordinary course of business. Furthermore, the directors are of the view that the 
chances of the financial institutions to call upon the corporate guarantees issued by the Group and 
the Company are remote.

(d)  share based payments

 the Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the 
fair value of the equity investments at the date at which they are granted. the estimating of the fair 
value requires determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, 
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. this also requires determining the 
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option volatility 
and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDAtION

 the consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
made up to the end of the reporting period.

 Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities, if any) controlled by the Group. the Group controls an 
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. potential voting rights are 
considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. the Group also considers it has 
de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current 
ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the effective 
date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

 Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Intragroup losses 
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. where 
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of 
accounting policies with those of the Group. 

(a) Business Combinations 

 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition 
method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition date. the 
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent 
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity 
securities, are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets 
at the date of acquisition. the choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction 
basis. 
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDAtION (CONt’D)

(b) non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial 
position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. profit or loss and each 
component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the 
non-controlling interests. total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even 
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(c) Changes in Ownership interests in subsidiaries without Change of Control

 All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity 
of the Group.

(d) loss of Control

 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal in profit or 
loss which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary 
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were 
disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits). the fair value 
of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as 
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 9 (2017 – MFRS 139) or, 
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

4.3 FUNCtIONAL AND pRESENtAtION CURRENCY

 the individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency. 

 the consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency. 
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.4 FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position when the 
Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

 Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MFRS 132. Interest, 
dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability are reported as an 
expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly 
to equity.

 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to 
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value (other than trade receivables without significant 
financing component which are measured at transaction price as defined in MFRS 15 – Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers at inception). transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of the financial instrument (other than a financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss) 
are added to/deducted from the fair value on initial recognition, as appropriate. transaction costs on the 
financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual policy 
statement associated with each item.

(a) financial assets

 All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirely at either amortised or fair 
value (through profit or loss, or other comprehensive income), depending on the classification of the 
financial assets.

 Debt Instruments

(i) Amortised Cost

 the financial asset is held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income is recognised by applying 
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. when the asset 
has subsequently become credit-impaired, the interest income is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

 the effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. the effective interest rate is 
the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts), excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the 
financial asset or a shorter period (where appropriate).

(ii) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

 the financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 
asset, where the asset’s cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment, interest income 
and foreign exchange difference which are recognised directly in profit or loss. Interest income 
is calculated using the effective interest rate method.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.4 FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS (CONt’D)

(a) financial assets (Cont’d)

 Debt Instruments (Cont’d)

(iii) Fair Value through profit or Loss

 All other financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through 
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

 the Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets change.

Equity Instruments

 All equity investments are subsequent measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in 
profit or loss except where the Group has elected to present the subsequent changes in fair value in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve at initial recognition.

 the designation at fair value through other comprehensive income is not permitted if the equity 
investment is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise.

 Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s 
right to receive payment is established unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of 
the cost of the equity investments.

(b) financial liabilities 

(i) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through profit or Loss

 Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for 
trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. the changes in fair value of these financial liabilities 
are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Other Financial Liabilities

 Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

 the effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. the effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts), through the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter 
period (where appropriate).
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.4 FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS (CONt’D)

(c) equity instruments

 Equity instruments classified as equity are measured initially at cost and are not remeasured 
subsequently.

(i) Ordinary Shares

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

(ii) treasury Shares

 when the Company’s own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the amount of the 
consideration paid, including all costs directly attributable, are recognised as a deduction from 
equity. Own shares purchased that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury 
shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit 
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares.

 where treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sales consideration 
received and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is recognised in equity.

 where treasury shares are cancelled, their costs are transferred to retained profits.

(d) derecognition

 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset 
measured at amortised cost, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of 
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition 
of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In 
contrast, there is no subsequent reclassification of the fair value reserve to profit or loss following 
the derecognition of an equity investment.

 A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised 
in profit or loss.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.4 FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS (CONt’D)

(e) financial guarantee Contracts

 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specific debtor fails to make payment when due 
in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as liabilities at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are recognised as income in profit 
or loss over the period of the guarantee or, when there is no specific contractual period, recognised 
in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. If the debtor fails to make payment relating to a 
financial guarantee contract when it is due and the Group, as the issuer, is required to reimburse the 
holder for the associated loss, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of the credit loss 
determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model and the amount initially recognised 
less cumulative amortisation.

Accounting policies Applied Until 31 December 2017

 As disclosed in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, the Group has applied MFRS 9 retrospectively but has 
elected not to restate comparative information of its financial instruments. As a result, the comparative 
information of the Group’s financial assets continues to be accounted for in accordance with their previous 
accounting policies as summarised below:-

•	 F6nan06a9	ass2ts	w2r2	12s64nat21	at	3a6r	va9u2	t5rou45	pro36t	or	9oss	w52n	t52	36nan06a9	ass2t	was	26t52r	
held for trading or was designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were 
stated at fair value at each reporting date with any gain or loss arising on remeasurement recognised 
in profit or loss.

•	 Unquot21	tra12	r2026vab92s	an1	ot52r	r2026vab92s	w6t5	36x21	or	12t2rm6nab92	paym2nts	w2r2	09ass63621	
as loans and receivables financial assets, measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment loss. Interest income was recognised by applying the effective interest 
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

4.5 INVEStMENtS IN SUBSIDIARIES

 Investments in subsidiaries including the share options granted to employees of the subsidiaries are stated 
at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and are reviewed for impairment at the end 
of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be 
recoverable. the cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

 On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.6 INVEStMENtS IN ASSOCIAtES

 An associate is an entity in which the Group and the Company have a long-term equity interest and where 
it exercises significant influence over the financial and operating policies.

 Investments in associates are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and are 
reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying values may not be recoverable. the cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

 the investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity 
method based on the financial statements of the associate made up to 31 December 2018. the Group’s 
share of the post acquisition profits and other comprehensive income of the associate is included in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, after adjustment if any, to align 
the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences up to 
the effective date on which significant influence ceases or when the investment is classified as held for 
sale. the Group’s interest in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at 
cost plus the Group’s share of the post acquisition retained profits and reserves. the cost of investment 
includes transaction costs.

 when the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest 
is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group 
has an obligation.

 Unrealised gains or losses on transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless cost cannot be 
recovered.

 when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate and the retained interest in the 
former associate is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date 
and the fair value is regarded as the initial carrying amount of the financial asset in accordance with MFRS 
9 (2017 - MFRS 139). Furthermore, the Group also reclassifies its share of the gain or loss previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income of that associate to profit or loss when the equity method is 
discontinued.

4.7 pROpERtY, pLANt AND EQUIpMENt 

 All items of property, plant and equipment, are initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and other costs directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, all property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the asset will flow to the Group and the Company, and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
the carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. the costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

 Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial 
use at the end of the reporting period. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and is transferred to the 
relevant category of assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready for 
commercial use. Cost of capital work-in-progress includes direct cost, related expenditure and interest cost 
on borrowings taken to finance the acquisition of the assets to the date that the assets are completed and 
put into use.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.7 pROpERtY, pLANt AND EQUIpMENt (CONt’D)

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying 
amount of another asset) on a straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over 
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is 
retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. the principal annual rates used for this purpose 
are:-

Buildings 2%
Leasehold land Over the lease period of 86 to 97 years
plant and machinery 12%
Site equipment 10% - 20%
Office equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 12%
Renovation 20%
Furniture and fittings 15% - 20%

 the depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 
end of each reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods of depreciation are consistent 
with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied 
in the items of the property, plant and equipment. Any changes are accounted for as changes in estimate.

 Capital work-in-progress included in property is not depreciated as this asset is not yet available for use.

 when significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset, being the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, is recognised in profit or loss.

4.8 INVEStMENt pROpERtIES

 Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental 
income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the 
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

 Investment properties under construction are properties not ready for commercial use at the end of the 
reporting period. 

 Investment properties are initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the investment property.

 Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, if any.

 Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
investment properties. the estimated useful lives of the investment properties are as follows:-

Buildings 2%
Leasehold land Over the lease period of 86 years

 Freehold land is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and is not depreciated. 
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.8 INVEStMENt pROpERtIES (CONt’D)

 Investment properties under construction are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are not 
depreciated. 

 Investment properties are derecognised when they have either been disposed of or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal.

 On the derecognition of an investment property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

 transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. All transfers do not 
change the carrying amount of the property reclassified.

4.9 IMpAIRMENt 

(a) impairment of financial assets

 the Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments 
that are measured at amortised cost trade receivables, contract assets as well as on financial 
guarantee contracts.

 the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are 
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to 
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

 the amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk 
since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. the Group always recognises lifetime 
expected credit losses for trade receivables and contract assets using the simplified approach. the 
expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the 
Group’s historical credit loss experience and are adjusted for forward-looking information (including 
time value of money where appropriate).

 For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses when there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the 
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the 
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

 the Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for 
investments in debt instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 
fair value reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement 
of financial position.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.9 IMpAIRMENt (CONt’D)

(a) impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

 Accounting policy Applied Until 31 December 2017

 As disclosed in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, the Group has applied MFRS 9 retrospectively 
but has elected not to restate comparative information of its financial instruments. As a result, the 
comparative information on the impairment of Group’s financial assets has been accounted for in 
accordance with its previous accounting policy as summarised below:-

•	 T52	Group	ass2ss21	at	t52	2n1	o3	2a05	r2port6n4	p2r6o1	w52t52r	t52r2	was	ob720t6v2	2v612n02	
that a financial asset (or group of financial assets) was impaired. Impairment losses were 
incurred only if there was objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that event(s) had an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset (or group of financial assets) that could be 
reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost was considered an indicator 
that the assets are impaired.

(b) impairment of non-financial assets

 the carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 – Impairment of Assets does not 
apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when an annual impairment 
assessment is compulsory or there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment 
is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. when 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss shall be recognised. the recoverable amount of an asset 
is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, which is measured by 
reference to discounted future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. where it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

 when there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent 
increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment 
loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been 
determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. the 
reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.10 LEASED ASSEtS

 the determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception of the lease. the arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a 
right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are) not explicitly specified in an 
arrangement.

(a) group as a lessee

 A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

(i) Finance Leases 

 A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured 
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable to that asset. the corresponding liability is included in the 
statements of financial position as hire purchase payables.

 Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance 
costs and the reduction of the outstanding liability. the finance costs, which represent the 
difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are 
recognised in the profit or loss and allocated over the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each accounting period.

 Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and 
equipment and investment properties.

(ii) Operating Leases

 All leases that do not transfer substantially to the Group all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership are classified as operating leases and, the leased assets are not recognised on 
the statements of financial position of the Group. 

 payments made under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a 
straight-line method over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as a 
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line method. Contingent rentals 
are charged to profit or loss in the reporting period in which they are incurred.

(b) group as a lessor

 Operating Leases

 Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rentals are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned.

4.11 CONtRACt ASSEt AND CONtRACt LIABILItY
 
 A contract asset is recognised when the Group’s right to consideration is conditional on something other 

than the passage of time. A contract asset is subject to impairment in accordance with MFRS 9 - Financial 
Instruments. 

 
 A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services 

to a customer for which consideration has been received (or the amount is due) from the customers.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.12 INCOME tAXES 

(a) Current tax

 Current tax assets and liabilities are expected amount of income tax recoverable or payable to the 
taxation authorities. 

 Current taxes are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent 
that the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity).

(b) deferred tax 

 Deferred tax are recognised using the liability method for all temporary differences other than those 
that arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is 
not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. 
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised.

 Current and deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in profit 
or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Current tax assets and liabilities or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity (or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis) and the same taxation authority.

(c) goods and services tax (“gst”)

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GSt except for the GSt in a purchase of assets 
or services which are not recoverable from the taxation authorities, the GSt are included as part of 
the costs of the assets acquired or as part of the expense item whichever is applicable.

 In addition, receivables and payables are also stated with the amount of GSt included (where 
applicable).

 the net amount of the GSt recoverable from or payable to the taxation authorities at the end of the 
reporting period is included in other receivables or other payables.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.13 BORROwING COStS

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their 
intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 

4.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENtS

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, and short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity periods of three months or less. For the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.

4.15 pROVISIONS

 provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. provisions are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. where the effect of the 
time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditure required to 
settle the obligation. the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense in profit or loss.

4.16 EMpLOYEE BENEFItS

(a) short-term Benefits

 wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are measured 
on an undiscounted basis and are recognised in profit or loss and included in the construction costs, 
where appropriate, in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the 
Group.

(b) defined Contribution plans

 the Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss and included in 
the construction costs, where appropriate, in the period to which they relate. Once the contributions 
have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

(c) share-based payment transactions

 the Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan, under which the Group receives 
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Company (known as “share 
options”).

 At grant date, the fair value of the share options is recognised as an expense on a straight-line method 
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually 
vest, with a corresponding credit to employee share option reserve in equity. the amount recognised 
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of the share options that are expected to 
vest. Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the transaction are not taken into 
account in determining the fair value.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.16 EMpLOYEE BENEFItS (CONt’D)

(c) share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, the grant of the share options to the subsidiaries’ 
employees is not recognised as an expense. Instead, the fair value of the share options measured 
at the grant date is accounted for as an increase to the investment in subsidiary undertaking with a 
corresponding credit to the employee share option reserve.

 Upon expiry of the share option, the employee share option reserve is transferred to retained profits.

 when the share options are exercised, the employee share option reserve is transferred to share 
capital if new ordinary shares are issued.

4.17 CONtINGENt LIABILItIES

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is 
not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be 
measured reliably.

 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the 
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. when a change in the probability of an outflow occurs 
so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

4.18 OpERAtING SEGMENtS

 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may 
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any 
of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the 
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and 
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

4.19 EARNINGS pER ORDINARY SHARE

 Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the reporting period, adjusted for own shares held.

 Diluted earnings per ordinary share is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares which comprise share options granted to 
employees.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.20 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENtS

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. the measurement assumes that the 
transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market. For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. However, this 
basis does not apply to share-based payment transactions.

 For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as follows:-

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liability that the 
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 the transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in circumstances 
that caused the transfer. 

4.21 REVENUE FROM CONtRACtS wItH CUStOMERS

 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation 
in the contract with customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is measured at its transaction price, 
being the amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring 
promised goods or services to a customer, net of sales and service tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

 the Group recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to customer. An 
asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

 Depending on the substance of the contract, revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is 
satisfied, which may be at a point in time or over time. the Group transfers control of a good or service at a 
point in time unless one of the following overtime criteria is met:-

•	 T52	0ustom2r	s6mu9tan2ous9y	r2026v2s	an1	0onsum2s	t52	b2n236ts	prov6121	as	t52	Group	p2r3orms.

•	 T52	Group’s	p2r3orman02	0r2at2s	or	2n5an02s	an	ass2t	t5at	t52	0ustom2r	0ontro9s	as	t52	ass2t	6s	
created or enhanced.

•	 T52	Group’s	p2r3orman02	1o2s	not	0r2at2	an	ass2t	w6t5	an	a9t2rnat6v2	us2	an1	t52	Group	5as	an	
enforceable right to payment for performance completed todate.
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.21 REVENUE FROM CONtRACtS wItH CUStOMERS (CONt’D)

(a) Construction services

 Revenue from construction services is recognised over time in the period in which the services 
are rendered using the input method, determined based the proportion of construction costs 
incurred for work performed todate over the estimated total construction costs. transaction price 
is computed based on the price specified in the contract and adjusted for any variable consideration 
such as incentives and penalties. past experience is used to estimate and provide for the variable 
consideration, using most likely method and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly 
probable that a significant reversal will not occur.  

 A receivable is recognised when the construction services are rendered as this is the point in time 
that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the 
payment is due. If the construction services rendered exceed the payment received, a contract 
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the construction services rendered, a contract liability 
is recognised.

(b) hiring of machinery

 Revenue from providing hiring of machinery services is recognised in the period in which the services 
are rendered. As a practical expedient, the Group recognises revenue on a straight-line method over 
the period of service.

(c) rental income

 Revenue from providing renting services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered. 
As a practical expedient, the Group and Company recognise revenue on a straight-line method over 
the period of service.

(d) sale of goods

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Group has transferred control of the goods to 
the customer, being when the goods have been delivered to the customer and upon its acceptance. 
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the usage the goods, and bears the risks of 
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

 Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract and net of 
returns.

 A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the 
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is 
due. 

(e) rendering of services

 Revenue from providing dayworks services is recognised in the period in which the services are 
rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided in the 
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer 
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. 
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4. signifiCant aCCOunting pOliCies (COnt’d)

4.22 OtHER OpERAtING INCOME

(a) interest income

 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

(b) dividend income

 Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is 
established.

 Dividend income from short-term investment is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective 
interest method.

(c) management fee

 Management fee is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

5. investments in suBsidiaries

  the Company
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Unquoted shares, at cost    10,328,312 10,328,312
Share options granted to employees of subsidiaries   881,077 –

     11,209,389 10,328,312

the details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

name of subsidiary

principal place of 
Business/
Country of 

incorporation

percentage of
issued share
Capital held

by parent principal activities
2018

%
2017

%

Advancecon Infra
 Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 providing earthworks and civil
 engineering services and sales of
 construction materials.

Advancecon Machinery
 Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 providing earth-moving machineries
 for hire.

Advancecon properties
 Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 property investment.

SK-II tipper & truck
 Services Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 providing tipper trucks for hire.



 

O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 

 O
t

h
e

r
s

 C
O

r
p

O
r

a
t

e
 g

O
v

e
r

n
a

n
C

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

C
ia

l
 s

t
a

t
e

m
e

n
t

85
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   

annual repOrt 2018

NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

5. investments in suBsidiaries (COnt’d)

the details of the subsidiaries are as follows:- (Cont’d)

name of subsidiary

principal place of 
Business/
Country of 

incorporation

percentage of
issued share
Capital held

by parent principal activities
2018

%
2017

%

Inspirasi Hebat 
 Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 the company has  temporarily ceased
 its operations. the company was
 principally engaged in the business
 of providing on-site rock crushing
 services. 

^ Advancecon Rock
  Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100 100 In the process of Member’s Voluntary
 winding Up.

^ Advancecon trading Malaysia 100 100 In the process of Member’s Voluntary
 winding Up.

^ On 6 February 2018, Special Resolutions were passed by the shareholders of Advancecon Rock Sdn. Bhd. 
and Advancecon trading Sdn. Bhd., respectively to initiate the process of Member’s Voluntary winding Up 
and accordingly, liquidators have been appointed. As a result, the Group has accounted these investments 
as deemed disposal and has deconsolidated the results of the subsidiaries from the Group. 

 the financial effects arising from this deemed disposal are summarised below:-

      the group
      2018
      rm

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments    (1,648,585)
Current tax assets     2,256
Short-term investments     1,781,758
Cash and bank balances      161,601
Other payables and accruals     (15,298)

Carrying amount of net assets disposed of     281,732
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries    (231,417)
transfer to other investment #     (50,315)

      –

proceeds from deemed disposals     ##

Less: cash and bank balances of subsidiaries disposed of     (1,943,359)

Net cash outflow from deemed disposal of subsidiaries   (1,943,359)

# this represent the initial cost of investments which is now, classified as other investment, pending the 
completion of the Member’s Voluntary winding Up.

 
## the proceeds will only made known upon the winding up process is completed, which is expected to complete 

during the financial year 2019.

there were no disposals or deemed disposal of subsidiaries in the last financial year.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
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6. investments in an assOCiate

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Unquoted shares, at cost  30 – 30 –
Share of post-acquisition loss  (30) – – –

   – – 30 –
     

the details of the associate are as follows:-

name of associate
principal place of 

Business

effective
equity

interest principal activity
2018

%
2017

%

Advancecon (Sarawak)
 Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 30 – providing earthworks and civil
 engineering services and sales of
 construction materials.

(a) the associate was incorporated during the financial year.

(b) Summarised financial information has not been presented as the associate is not material to the Group.
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7. prOpertY, plant and eQuipment

     transfer to
  at   finance lease   depreciation at
  1.1.2018 additions reclassifications receivables disposals write-offs Charges 31.12.2018
the group rm rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

2018        
        
Carrying Amount

Leasehold land 9,098,013 13,346,621 – – (5,430,796) – (196,511) 16,817,327
Buildings 9,536,877 – (5,307,647) – (1,106,638) – (84,565) 3,038,027
plant and machinery 120,869,159 21,876,886 – (1,985,370) (1,025,136) – (22,185,454) 117,550,085
Site equipment 1,527,327 687,734 – – (2) (2,783) (370,594) 1,841,682
Office equipment 464,231 173,894 – – – (1,088) (171,199) 465,838
Motor vehicles 9,678,277 3,937,709 – – (422,907) (987) (2,003,613) 11,188,479
Renovation 44,333 – – – – – (18,817) 25,516
Furniture and fittings 53,045 1,249 – – (1) (1,145) (11,756) 41,392
Capital work-in-progress  96,628 277,910 – – (146,128) – – 228,410

  151,367,890 40,302,003 (5,307,647) (1,985,370) (8,131,608) (6,003) (25,042,509) 151,196,756

     transfer to
  at   finance lease   depreciation at
  1.1.2017 additions reclassifications receivables disposals write-offs Charges 31.12.2017
  rm rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

2017        
        
Carrying Amount        

Leasehold land 5,872,982 3,300,000 – – – – (74,969) 9,098,013
Buildings 2,222,090 2,073,680 5,379,372 – – – (138,265) 9,536,877
plant and machinery 80,888,364 62,236,110 – (2,187,000) (1,769,212) (299,005) (18,000,098) 120,869,159
Site equipment 1,076,379 774,691 – – – (12,427) (311,316) 1,527,327
Office equipment 433,163 196,605 – – (1,048) (4,210) (160,279) 464,231
Motor vehicles 9,277,165 2,724,794 – – (551,063) – (1,772,619) 9,678,277
Renovation 47,048 14,000 – – – – (16,715) 44,333
Furniture and fittings 64,894 – – – – (119) (11,730) 53,045
Capital work-in-progress  5,207,354 268,646 (5,379,372) – – – – 96,628

  105,089,439 71,588,526 – (2,187,000) (2,321,323) (315,761) (20,485,991) 151,367,890
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7. prOpertY, plant and eQuipment (COnt’d)
 

    at  accumulated Carrying
    Cost depreciation amount
the group   rm rm rm
   
2018   
   
Leasehold land   17,031,145 (213,818) 16,817,327
Buildings   3,265,939 (227,912) 3,038,027
plant and machinery   188,507,545 (70,957,460) 117,550,085
Site equipment   3,426,234 (1,584,552) 1,841,682
Office equipment   1,361,383 (895,545) 465,838
Motor vehicles   17,485,075 (6,296,596) 11,188,479
Renovation   222,982 (197,466) 25,516
Furniture and fittings   110,806 (69,414) 41,392
Capital work-in-progress    228,410 – 228,410

    231,639,519 (80,442,763) 151,196,756

2017 

Leasehold land   9,449,128 (351,115) 9,098,013
Buildings   10,088,752 (551,875) 9,536,877
plant and machinery   172,027,636 (51,158,477) 120,869,159
Site equipment   2,838,095 (1,310,768) 1,527,327
Office equipment   1,194,609 (730,378) 464,231
Motor vehicles   14,989,002 (5,310,725) 9,678,277
Renovation   235,382 (191,049) 44,333
Furniture and fittings   116,106 (63,061) 53,045
Capital work-in-progress    96,628 – 96,628

    211,035,338 (59,667,448) 151,367,890
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7. prOpertY, plant and eQuipment (COnt’d)

  at    depreciation at
  1.1.2018 additions disposal write-off Charges 31.12.2018
the Company rm rm rm rm rm rm
      
2018      
      
Carrying Amount      
      
Leasehold land 3,628,002 – – – (40,790) 3,587,212
Building 3,103,346 – – – (65,319) 3,038,027
plant and machinery – 25,076 – – (23,285) 1,791
Office equipment 85,840 – – (61) (18,064) 67,715
Motor vehicles 33,961 – (1,260) – (23,787) 8,914
Renovation 44,332 – – – (18,817) 25,515
Capital work-in-
 progress – 140,000 – – – 140,000

  6,895,481 165,076 (1,260) (61) (190,062) 6,869,174

  at    depreciation at
  1.1.2017 additions disposals write-off Charges 31.12.2017
  rm rm rm rm rm rm

2017

Carrying Amount      
      
Leasehold land 344,149 3,300,000 – – (16,147) 3,628,002
Building 1,067,336 2,073,680 – – (37,670) 3,103,346
plant and machinery 133,583 – (70,008) – (63,575) –
Office equipment 61,158 44,830 – (2,953) (17,195) 85,840
Motor vehicles 232,889 – (107,805) – (91,123) 33,961
Renovation 47,047 14,000 – – (16,715) 44,332

  1,886,162 5,432,510 (177,813) (2,953) (242,425) 6,895,481



90
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   
annual repOrt 2018

 

O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 

 O
t

h
e

r
s

 C
O

r
p

O
r

a
t

e
 g

O
v

e
r

n
a

n
C

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

C
ia

l
 s

t
a

t
e

m
e

n
t

NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

7. prOpertY, plant and eQuipment (COnt’d)

    at  accumulated Carrying
    Cost depreciation amount
the Company   rm rm rm
   
2018 

Leasehold land   3,684,524 (97,312) 3,587,212
Building   3,265,939 (227,912) 3,038,027
plant and machinery   211,000 (209,209) 1,791
Site equipment   103,099 (103,099) –
Office equipment   210,993 (143,278) 67,715
Motor vehicles   106,138 (97,224) 8,914
Renovation   99,619 (74,104) 25,515
Furniture and fittings   5,210 (5,210) –
Capital work-in-progress    140,000 – 140,000

    7,826,522 (957,348) 6,869,174
   

2017   
   
Leasehold land   3,684,524 (56,522) 3,628,002
Building   3,265,939 (162,593) 3,103,346
plant and machinery   39,815 (39,815) –
Site equipment   250,265 (250,265) –
Office equipment   211,183 (125,343) 85,840
Motor vehicles   310,619 (276,658) 33,961
Renovation   99,619 (55,287) 44,332
Furniture and fittings   5,210 (5,210) –

    7,867,174 (971,693) 6,895,481

(a) Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction which are not ready for commercial use at 
the end of the reporting period.

(b) Included in the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment of the Group at the end of the reporting 
year were the following assets acquired under hire purchase terms:- 

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

plant and machinery    59,511,993 55,560,715
Motor vehicles    9,123,125 8,279,964

     68,635,118 63,840,679
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7. prOpertY, plant and eQuipment (COnt’d)

(c) the carrying amounts of the following property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company 
were pledged to licensed banks as security for banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company as 
disclosed in Notes 22, 26 and 27 to the financial statements:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Leasehold land  16,817,327 5,810,335 3,587,212 340,324
Buildings  3,038,027 7,477,021 3,038,027 1,043,490

   19,855,354 13,287,356 6,625,239 1,383,814

8. investment prOperties

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Cost     
At	Ć	January	 	 	 	 ĈĈ,čĎČ,ĆČč	 ĈĆ,ċąĈ,ĈĉĎ
Addition during the financial year    1,514,189 3,315,549
Disposal during the financial year    – (1,021,720)
transfer from property, plant and equipment
 to investment properties (Note 7)   5,379,372 –

At 31 December     40,790,739 33,897,178

accumulated depreciation
At	Ć	January	 	 	 	 (ĎċĎ,ĊĉĈ)	 (Ċćč,ċČċ)
Depreciation during the financial year   (527,363) (466,410)
Disposal during the financial year    – 25,543
transfer from property, plant and equipment
 to investment properties (Note 7)   (71,725) –

At 31 December     (1,568,631) (969,543)

Net carrying value    39,222,108 32,927,635

Represented by:-
Completed investment properties:
- leasehold land    6,305,258 6,381,608
- freehold land    1,926,680 1,926,680
- buildings    30,990,170 21,594,897

     39,222,108 29,903,185

Investment properties under construction:
- buildings    – 3,024,450

     39,222,108 32,927,635
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8. investment prOperties (COnt’d)

 the fair values of the completed investment properties of the Group as at the reporting date are estimated at RM 
43,168,536 (2017 - RM32,068,814) based on directors’ assessment of the current prices in an active market 
for the respective properties within each vicinity.

 At the end of the previous reporting period, the fair value of the investment properties under construction could 
not be reliably determined until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed, 
whichever is earlier.

 Investment properties of the Group with a total carrying value of RM38,469,357 (2017 - RM32,261,585) have 
been charged to financial institutions for banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Notes 22, 26 and 
27 to the financial statements.

9. finanCe lease reCeivaBles

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Minimum finance lease payments:
- not later than 1 year    1,056,000 504,000
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years   2,950,960 1,867,480

     4,006,960 2,371,480
Less: Future finance charges    (367,542) (280,450)

present value of finance lease receivables   3,639,418 2,091,030

Analysed by:-     
Current assets    890,840 399,149
Non-current assets    2,748,578 1,691,881

     3,639,418 2,091,030
     

(a) the Group entered into finance lease arrangements for certain of its earth-moving heavy equipment. All 
leases are denominated in RM. the average term of finance leases range from 4 to 5 years.

(b) the interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. the effective 
interest rates contracted range from 4.55% to 9.49% (2017- 4.55% to 5.86%).

(c) the finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither past due nor impaired.
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10. trade reCeivaBles

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm
      (restated)

Non-current
trade receivables    – 155,675

Current   
trade receivables    67,381,641 38,584,456
Allowance for impairment losses    (453,318) (10,268)

     66,928,323 38,574,188

     66,928,323 38,729,863

Allowance for impairment losses:-   
At	Ć	January	 	 	 	 Ćą,ćċč	 Ćąċ,ĉčč
Addition during the financial year     443,050 –
Reversal during the financial year    – (96,220)

At 31 December    453,318 10,268

 the Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 5 to 60 (2017 - 5 to 60) days. Other credit terms are assessed 
and approved on a case-by-case basis.

11. COntraCt assets/(liaBilities)

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm
      (restated)

Contract assets

Contract assets relating to construction contracts   79,097,980 84,106,836

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts  (20,679,138) (8,976,387)

(a) the contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to consideration for construction work completed 
on construction contracts but not yet billed as at the reporting date. the amount will be invoiced within 1 
(2017- 1) year.

 Included in contract assets are retention sum receivables totalling RM41,085,297 (2017 - RM34,583,754). 
the retention sums are expected to be collected within the periods ranging from 1 to 4 (2017 - 1 to 4) years.

(b) the contract liabilities primarily relates to advance considerations received from few customers for 
contruction services of which the revenue will be recognised over the remaining contract term of specific 
contract it relates to, ranging from 6 to 24 (2017 - 6 to 24) months.
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FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

12. Other reCeivaBles, depOsits and prepaYments

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Other receivables  19,426,053 1,443,359 4,019,139 186,785
Deposits  2,295,920 2,576,990 45,040 54,480
prepayments  1,850,693 1,732,912 14,162 19,620
Goods and services tax recoverable 1,431,696 2,240,322 13,363 326,125

   25,004,362 7,993,583 4,091,704 587,010

Allowance for impairment losses:-
At	Ć	January	 	 –	 ĉĉċ,ĊĈċ	 –	 –
Reversal during the financial year  – (366,536) – –
written off during the financial year – (80,000) – –

At 31 December  – – – –

 Included in other receivables of the Group at the end of reporting period is an amount of RM8,888,600 (2017 – Nil) 
being the remaining proceeds from the disposal of a piece of leasehold land during the financial year for a total 
consideration of RM9,070,000. 

13. amOunts Owing BY/(tO) suBsidiaries

  the Company
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Amount owing by:-     
trade balances     632,571 780,340
Non-trade balances    78,642,401 73,211,243

     79,274,972 73,991,583

Amount owing to:-     
Non-trade balances    (110,883) (250,059)

(a) the trade balances are subject to a normal trade credit term of 30 (2017 - 30) days. 

(b) the non-trade balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 

(c) the amounts owing are to be settled in cash. 
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14. shOrt-term investments

 Investments in fixed income trust funds represent investments in highly liquid money market instruments, which 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

15. depOsits with liCensed BanKs

 Included in the deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company at the end of the reporting period 
was an amount of RM32,637,176 and RM248,314 (2017 - RM17,715,291 and RM241,101) which has been 
pledged to licensed banks as security for banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company as disclosed 
in Notes 22, 26, and 27 to the financial statements.

 the effective interest rates of deposits at the end of the reporting year were as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   % % % %

Effective interest rates  2.90 to 3.50 2.70 to 3.65 3.25 3.00 to 3.65

the maturity periods of the deposits were as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
 
Maturity period (days)  30 to 365 30 to 365 365 180 to 365

16. share Capital

 the group/the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
  number of shares rm rm

issued and fully paid-up

Ordinary shares
At	Ć	January:	 	 ĉąć,ąČĎ,ąąą	 ĈĆć,ąČĎ,ąąą	 čĊ,ČĊć,čČĆ	 ĈĆ,ćąČ,Ďąą
- Issue of shares  – 90,000,000 – 56,700,000
- Share issue expenses  – – – (2,155,029)

At 31 December  402,079,000 402,079,000 85,752,871 85,752,871

 the holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared 
by the Company, and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company. the ordinary shares 
have no par value.
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17.  treasurY shares

 During the financial year, the Company has purchased 1,161,000 (2017 - Nil) of its issued ordinary shares from the 
open market at an average price of RM 0.29 (2017 - Nil) per share between the months of October to December 
(2017 - Nil). the total consideration paid for the purchase was RM 339,077 (2017 - Nil) including transaction costs. 
the ordinary shares purchased are held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127(6) of the Companies 
Act 2016.

 Of the total 402,079,000 (2017 - 402,079,000) issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares at the end of the reporting 
period, 1,161,000 (2017 - Nil) ordinary shares are held as treasury shares by the Company. None (2017 - Nil) of 
the treasury shares were resold or cancelled during the financial year.

18.  reserves

 employee share Option reserve

 the employee share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees. the 
reserve is made up of the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded over the vesting period 
commencing from the grant date of equity-settled share options, and is reduced by the expiry or exercise of the 
share options.

 the Employee Share Option Scheme of the Company (“ESOS”) is governed by the ESOS By-Laws and was approved 
by	s5ar25o912rs	on	Ćč	January	ćąĆč.	T52	ESOS	6s	to	b2	6n	3or02	3or	a	p2r6o1	o3	Ċ	y2ars	23320t6v2	3rom	ċ	Mar05	
2018.

 the main features of the ESOS are as follows:-

(a) Eligible persons are employees and executive directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies which 
are not dormant, who have been confirmed in service/has served for at least 1 year before the date of the 
offer.

(b) where the executive Director or employee is under an employment contract, the contract is for a duration 
of at least two (2) years and shall have not expired within six (6) months from the Date of Offer.

(c) the maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company, which may be available under the scheme, 
shall not exceed in aggregate 15%, or any such amount or percentage as may be permitted by the relevant 
authorities of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any one time during the existence of 
the ESOS.

(d) the option price shall be determined by the ESOS Committee based on the 5-day weighted average market 
price of ordinary shares of the Company immediately preceding the offer date of the option, with a discount 
of not more than 10%.

(e) the option may be exercised by the grantee by notice in writing to the Company in the prescribed form during 
the option period in respect of all or any part of the new ordinary shares of the Company comprised in the 
ESOS.

(f) All new ordinary shares issued upon exercise of the options granted under the ESOS will rank pari passu in 
all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company, provided always that new ordinary shares 
so allotted and issued, will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions 
declared, where the entitlement date of which is prior to date of allotment and issuance of the new ordinary 
shares.
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18.  reserves (COnt’d)

 employee share Option reserve (Cont’d)

 the option prices and the details in the movement of the options granted are as follows:-

  number of Options over Ordinary shares
   Contractual at 1    at 31
  exercise life of  January     december
 date of Offer price Options 2018 granted exercised lapsed forfeited 2018 

20 September 2018 RM0.35 2 Years – 20,000,000 – – (380,000) 19,620,000

 the options which were forfeited during the financial year were due to resignation of employees.
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NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)
 

18.  reserves (COnt’d)

 employee share Option reserve (Cont’d)

 No person to whom the share option has been granted above has any right to participate by virtue of the option 
in any share issue of the any other company.

 During the financial year, the Company has granted 20,000,000 (2017 - Nil) share options under the ESOS. these 
options expire on 19 March 2021 and are exercisable if the employee remains in service from the date of grant.

 the fair values of the share options granted were estimated using a binomial model, taking into account the terms 
and conditions upon which the options were granted. the fair value of the share options measured at grant date 
and the assumptions used are as follows:-

  the group/the Company
     2018 2017

Fair value of share options at the grant date (RM)   0.10 –

weighted average ordinary share price (RM)   0.38 –
Exercise price of share option (RM)   0.35 –
Expected volatility (%)    30.43 –
Expected life (years)    2 –
Risk-free rate (%)    3.77 –
Expected dividend yield (%)    – –

19. deferred taX assets/(liaBilities)

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

At	Ć	January	 	 (ċ,ċćĉ,ąčĉ)	 (ĉ,ČĈĉ,ĉċČ)	 (ćą,Čćĉ)	 (ĆąĆ,ČĈĉ)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 30) 1,875,157 (1,889,617) 180,873 81,010

At 31 December  (4,748,927) (6,624,084) 160,149 (20,724)

 the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised at the end of the reporting year and after appropriate offsetting 
are as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Deferred tax assets:-
Unutilised tax losses  171,529 – 171,529 –

Deferred tax liabilities:-
Accelerated capital allowances 
 over depreciation  (5,060,611) (6,464,245) (11,380) (20,724)
Others  140,155 (159,839) – –

   (4,748,927) (6,624,084) 160,149 (20,724)
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20. lOng-term BOrrOwings

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Hire purchase payables (Note 21)  45,947,568 43,371,501 – –
term loans (Note 22)  32,842,850 21,374,650 4,216,150 464,524

   78,790,418 64,746,151 4,216,150 464,524

21. hire purChase paYaBles

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Minimum hire purchase payments:
- not later than 1 year    18,959,609 16,221,432
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years      49,533,979 47,683,384

     68,493,588 63,904,816
Less: Future finance charges    (6,595,617) (7,231,385)

present value of hire purchase payables   61,897,971 56,673,431

Analysed by:-    
Current liabilities (Note 26)    15,950,403 13,301,930
Non-current liabilities (Note 20)    45,947,568 43,371,501

     61,897,971 56,673,431

22. term lOans

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Current liabilities (Note 26)  2,206,899 5,201,055 312,015 120,000
Non-current liabilities (Note 20)  32,842,850 21,374,650 4,216,150 464,524

   35,049,749 26,575,705 4,528,165 584,524
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22. term lOans (COnt’d)

Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

  number of date of the group the Company
term   monthly monthly Commencement amount Outstanding amount Outstanding
loan   instalment instalments of repayment 2018 2017 2018 2017
 rm   rm rm rm rm

1 10,000 120 November 2012 464,524 584,524 464,524 584,524
ć	 ć,ĊčČ	 Ĉąą	 January	ćąĆċ	 ĉćċ,Ċćą	 ĉĈČ,ĉĈĊ	 –	 –
Ĉ	 Ć,ĎĎĊ	 Ĉąą	 January	ćąĆċ	 Ĉćč,čćĉ	 ĈĈČ,ćĈĎ	 –	 –
ĉ	 ć,ĉĈĆ	 Ĉąą	 January	ćąĆċ	 ĉąą,čĉą	 ĉĆĆ,ąĎč	 –	 –
Ċ	 ć,ĉĊć	 Ĉąą	 January	ćąĆċ	 ĈĎč,ĉċą	 ĉĆĆ,ĈČĎ	 –	 –
ċ	 ćč,čĈĈ	 ćĉą	 Ju9y	ćąĆČ	 ĉ,ĈĈĎ,ąĉą	 ĉ,ĉčć,ċąć	 –	 –
7 3,209 168 February 2016 334,862 357,322 – –
8 6,172 180 February 2017 621,169 647,814 – –
9 4,662 180 February 2017 469,046 489,332 – –
10 8,967 240 February 2018 1,363,046 1,394,618 – –
11 5,147 240 April 2017 762,139 785,868 – –
12 5,567 240 August 2017 822,880 850,082 – –
ĆĈ	 Ď,Ĉćą	 ćĉą	 Ju9yćąĆč	 Ć,ĉĈč,ċĎč	 Čćċ,ċąą	 –	 –
Ćĉ	 č,Ċčą	 ćĉą	 Ju9y	ćąĆč	 Ć,ĈćĊ,ćČĈ	 ċċĎ,Ĉąą	 –	 –
15 7,600 240 August 2016 1,087,259 1,124,234 – –
16 30,337 120 February 2017 2,935,421 3,284,166 – –
ĆČ	 ć,ĊĎĈ	 Ĉąą	 JanuaryćąĆč	 ĉĉċ,ĆĎĆ	 ĉĊċ,ċąą	 –	 –
Ćč	 ć,Ďąĉ	 Ĉąą	 JanuaryćąĆč	 ĉĎĎ,ċćĉ	 ĊĆĆ,ćąą	 –	 –
19 200,000 23 December 2016 – 3,400,000 – –
 Balloon repayment 1       
20 23,809 84 February 2017 1,452,385 1,738,097 – –
21 47,619 84 February 2017 2,904,771 3,476,195 – –
ćć	 ĈĆ,čČą	 Ćčą	 Jun2	ćąĆč	 ĉ,ąċĈ,ċĉĆ	 –	 ĉ,ąċĈ,ċĉĆ	 –
23 36,990 180 December 2018 3,871,372 – – –
24 41,020 180 December 2018 4,293,764 – – –

    35,049,749 26,575,705 4,528,165 584,524
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22. term lOans (COnt’d)

(a) term loan 1 is secured by:-

(i) a legal charge over a piece of leasehold land and building of the Company; and
(ii) the deposits with a licensed bank of the Company.

(b) term loans 2, 3, 4 and 5 are secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for loan amounts of RM458,400, RM353,400, RM430,800 and RM434,400 
respectively; 

(ii)  a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over 4 units of property of a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company.

(c)  term loan 6 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM4,557,500;
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a unit of office of a subsidiary;
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company.

(d) term loan 7 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM396,540; 
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a property of a subsidiary; and
(iii) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company.

(e) term loan 8 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM672,000; 
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a piece of vacant bungalow land of a subsidiary; 

and
(iii) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company. 

(f) term loan 9 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM507,600; 
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a piece of vacant bungalow land of a subsidiary; 

and
(iii) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company. 

(g) term loan 10 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM1,399,400; 
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a unit of office suite of a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; 
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(v) an assignment of rental proceeds over a unit of office suite of a subsidiary. 
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22. term lOans (COnt’d)

(h)  term loan 11 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM803,280;
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a unit of double storey terrace house of a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company.

(i) term loan 12 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM868,800;
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of 

a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; 
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(v) an assignment of rental proceeds created over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of a 

subsidiary.

(j) term loan 13 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM1,453,200;
(ii) a deed of assignment and power attorney over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of a 

subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company;
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(v) an assignment of rental proceeds created over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of a 

subsidiary.

(k) term loan 14 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM1,338,600;
(ii) a deed of assignment and power attorney over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of a 

subsidiary;
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; 
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(v) an assignment of rental proceeds created over a unit of double storey semi-detached house of a 

subsidiary.

(l) term loan 15 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM1,175,915;
(ii) a legal charge over a unit of double storey zero-lot bungalow of a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company;  
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(v) an assignment of rental proceeds created over a unit of double storey zero lot bungalow of a subsidiary.

(m) term loan 16 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM4,000,000;
(ii) a legal charge over a piece of leasehold land of a subsidiary which has been disposed off during the 

financial year;
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company;
(iv) a corporate guarantee of a subsidiary; and
(v) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company.
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22. term lOans (COnt’d)

(n) term loans 17 and 18 are secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for loan amounts of RM456,600 and RM511,200 respectively; 
(ii) a deed of assignment and a power of attorney over 2 units of property of a subsidiary; 
(iii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iv) a joint and several guarantee of the directors of the Company.

(o) term loan 19 was secured by:-

(i)  a corporate guarantee of the Company;
(ii)  a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and
(iii)  a third party all monies first legal charge of a subsidiary.

(p) term loans 20 and 21 are secured by:-

(i) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(ii) the deposits with a licensed bank of a subsidiary.

(q) term loan 22 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for loan amount of RM4,160,000;
(ii) a registered opan all monies 1st party charge stamped nominally over a unit of 5 storey shop office; 

and
(iii) a basic buiding debenture over the property.

(r) term loan 23 is secured by:-

(i) a facility agreement for the sum of RM3,877,000;
(ii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iii) a registered open all monies 1st party charge stamped nominally over a piece of leasehold land of a 

subsidiary.

(s) term loan 24 is secured by:-

(i)  a facility agreement for the sum of RM4,300,000;
(ii) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and
(iii) a registered open all monies 1st party charge stamped nominally over a piece of leasehold land of a 

subsidiary.
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23. trade paYaBles

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

trade payables  38,929,299 35,879,912 15,808 27,964
Retention sums  10,217,951 8,913,763 – –

   49,147,250 44,793,675 15,808 27,964

(a) the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group and the Company range from 14 to 60 (2017 - 14 to 
60) days.

(b) the retention sums are unsecured, interest-free and expected to be paid within a period of 1 to 4 (2017 - 1 
to 4) years.

24. Other paYaBles and aCCruals

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Other payables  9,632,295 12,372,331 337,671 4,234,799
Accruals  6,288,958 12,905,695 684,872 90,700

   15,921,253 25,278,026 1,022,543 4,325,499

25. dividend paYaBle

  the group/the Company
     2018 2017

 In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018:
- First interim single-tier dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share  4,017,260 –
 

T52	abov2	16v612n1	5a1	b22n	pa61	subs2qu2nty	to	t52	s5ar25o912rs	on	Ĉ	January	ćąĆĎ.
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26. shOrt-term BOrrOwings

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Hire purchase payables (Note 21)  15,950,403 13,301,930 – –
term loans (Note 22)  2,206,899 5,201,055 312,015 120,000
Bankers’ acceptances  12,047,000 4,036,000 – –
Bank factoring  1,815,805 – – –
Invoice financing  16,156,348 4,017,330 – –
Revolving credit  3,000,000 14,000,000 – –

   51,176,455 40,556,315 312,015 120,000

the bankers’ acceptances, invoice financing, revolving credit and bank factoring are secured by:-

(a) the deposits with licensed banks of a subsidiary;

(b) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; 

(c) a corporate guarantee of the Company; and

(d) a legal charge over a few buildings and a few pieces of leasehold land of a subsidiary.

27. BanK Overdrafts

 the bank overdrafts are secured by:-

(a) a legal charge over a building and a piece of leasehold land of a subsidiary;

(b) a corporate guarantee of the Company;

(c) the deposits with licensed banks of the Company and certain subsidiaries; 

(d) a joint and several guarantee of two of the directors of the Company; and

(e) a deed of assignment of certain contract proceeds by a subsidiary.
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28. revenue

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Revenue recognised at a point
 in time
Sale of goods  19,473,770 19,027,750 – –
Hiring of machinery  1,271,727 535,040 12,000 200,000
Day work revenue  2,513,094 703,892 – –
Rental income  344,131 280,433 – –
Cabin living quarters rental  1,411 6,399 – –
Dividend income  – – 6,700,000 12,210,000
Management fee  – – 1,229,089 –

Revenue recognised over time
Contract revenue  249,256,331 245,435,058 – –

   272,860,464 265,988,572 7,941,089 12,410,000

(a) the disaggregation of revenue is presented under “Operating Segment” in Note 38 to the financial 
statements.

(b) the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation that are unsatisfied or partially 
unsatisfied as at the end of the reporting period are summarised below (other than contracts for original 
periods of one year or less):-

  the group
   2019 2020 2021 total
   rm rm rm rm

Contract revenue  245,817,454 250,229,305 250,229,305 746,276,064

Comparative information is not presented by virtue of the exemption given in MFRS 15.C5(d).

29. prOfit BefOre taXatiOn

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

profit before taxation is arrived at
 after charging/(crediting):-

Allowance for impairment losses  
 on trade receivables  443,050 – – –
Auditors’ remuneration:
 - statutory audit  167,000 125,000 38,000 38,000
 - non-statutory audit  5,000 195,600 5,000 195,600
Depreciation:
 - investment properties  527,363 466,410 – –
 - property, plant and equipment 25,042,509 20,485,991 190,062 242,425
Direct operating expenses on
 investment properties:
 - income generating
  investment properties  79,531 55,546 – –
 - non-income generating 
  investment properties  210,233 135,455 – –
Directors’ remuneration (Note 33(a)) 4,045,027 3,640,103 3,503,420 443,138
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29. prOfit BefOre taXatiOn (COnt’d)

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Interest expense:
- bank factoring  89,717    99,006 – –
- bank overdrafts  521,479 610,134 14,475 16,017
- bankers’ acceptances  416,330 163,932 – –
- hire purchase  3,604,389 2,523,868 – –
- invoice financing  988,493 436,633 – –
- revolving credit  510,561 188,586 – –
- term loans  1,631,549 1,381,165 163,431 31,204
property, plant and equipment
 written off  6,003 315,761 61 2,953
Share of result of an equity
 accounted associate  30 – – –
Staff costs (including other
 key management personnel
 as disclosed in Note 33(b):
 - salaries, bonuses, allowances
  and wages  38,367,349 36,273,615 911,630 58,750
 - defined contribution plans  3,090,287 2,526,157 110,438 7,134
 - share option expenses  900,255 – 70,393 –
 - other benefits  2,619,230 2,027,831 70,682 63,516
Compensation received from 
 trade receivables arising 
 from litigation  – (20,800) – (20,800)
Dividend income from
 short-term investments  (82,601) (13,570) (36,644) –
Loss on deemed disposal due to
 effects of deconsolidation of
 subsidiaries under Member’s
 Voluntary winding Up  231,417 – – –
Gain on disposal of an
 investment property  – (153,823) – –
Gain on disposal of property, 
 plant and equipment  (5,337,635) (752,363) (47,753) (221,444)
Interest income:
- deposits with licensed 
 banks  (1,040,792) (839,011) (24,549) (236,163)
- trade receivables  – (586) – (586)
- finance lease receivables  (113,018) (30,030) – –
- others  (26,093) (310,680) – (9,161)
 Reversal of impairment
 losses on: 
 - trade receivables  – (96,220) – –
 - other receivables  – (366,536) – –
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30. inCOme taX eXpense

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Current tax:
- current financial year  6,512,697 6,358,177 – 166,922
- under/(over)provision in the
 previous financial year  112,718 24,398 (21,461) (6,329)
Real property gains tax  57,000 – – –

   6,682,415 6,382,575 (21,461) 160,593
Deferred tax (Note 19):
- origination and reversal
 of temporary differences  (940,798) 2,249,119 (180,873) (81,010)
- overprovision in the
 previous financial year  (934,359) (359,502) – –

   (1,875,157) 1,889,617 (180,873) (81,010)

   4,807,258 8,272,192 (202,334) 79,583

 For years of assessment 2017 and 2018, the Malaysian statutory tax rate will be reduced by 1% to 4%, based on 
the prescribed incremental percentage of chargeable income from business, compared to that of the immediate 
preceding year of assessment. 

 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to income 
tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

profit before taxation  15,425,397 26,735,272 2,273,519 10,646,133

tax at the statutory tax rate of 24% 3,702,095 6,416,465 545,645 2,555,072

tax effects of:-
Non-deductible expenses  2,612,534 2,280,189 890,277 461,240
Non-taxable income  (652,765) (38,337) (1,616,795) (2,930,400)
Real property gains tax  57,000 – – –
Deferred tax assets not recognised
 during the financial year  4,351 2,409 – –
Utilisation of deferred tax
 assets previously not
 recognised   – (53,430) – –
Under/(Over)provision in the
 previous financial year:
 - current tax  112,718 24,398 (21,461) (6,329)
 - deferred tax  (934,359) (359,502) – –
Differential in tax rates  (94,316)  – – –

Income tax expense for the
 financial year  4,807,258 8,272,192 (202,334) 79,583
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30. inCOme taX eXpense (COnt’d)

 Income tax savings during the financial year arising from:-

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Utilisation of deferred tax assets previously not recognised arising from:
- tax losses    – 10,495
- capital allowances    – 48

     – 10,543

No deferred tax assets are recognised at the end of the reporting period in respect of the following items:-

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Unutilised tax losses    518,750 500,626
Unabsorbed capital allowances    10,709 10,706

       529,459 511,332

31.  dividend

  the group/ the Company
     2018 2017
     rm rm

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018:   
- First interim dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share    4,017,260 –

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017:   
- First interim dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share    – 4,020,790

     4,017,260 4,020,790

32. Cash flOw infOrmatiOn

(a) the cash disbursed for the purchase of property, plant and equipment is as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Cost of property, plant and 
 equipment purchased  40,302,003 71,588,526 165,076 5,432,510
Amount financed through 
 hire purchase (Note 32(b)) (16,265,666) (35,475,080) – –
Other payables  (8,014,298) (18,213,446) (98,000) (4,160,000)

Cash disbursed for purchase
 of property, plant and
 equipment  16,022,039 17,900,000 67,076 1,272,510
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32. Cash flOw infOrmatiOn (COnt’d)

(b) the reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:- 

  hire purchase  Bankers’ invoice revolving Bank
  payables term loans  acceptances financing Credit factoring total
  rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

the group

2018

At	Ć	January		 Ċċ,ċČĈ,ĉĈĆ	 ćċ,ĊČĊ,ČąĊ	 ĉ,ąĈċ,ąąą	 ĉ,ąĆČ,ĈĈą	 Ćĉ,ąąą,ąąą	 –	 	ĆąĊ,Ĉąć,ĉċċ
       
Changes in Financing
 Cash Flows
proceeds from drawdown – 13,751,244 30,148,791 45,387,294 26,000,000 57,637,362  172,924,691
Repayment of borrowing
 principal (24,355,185) (5,277,200) (22,137,791) (33,248,276) (37,000,000) (55,821,557) (177,840,009)
Repayment of borrowing
 interests  (3,604,389) (1,631,549)  (416,330)    (988,493)    (510,561)     (89,717)   (7,241,039)

Non-cash Changes       
New hire purchase
 (Note 32(a)) 16,265,666 – – – – –  16,265,666
Reclassification of other
 payables to hire
 purchase payables 13,314,059 – – – – –  13,314,059
Finance charges
 recognised in profit
 or loss 3,604,389   1,631,549   416,330    988,493    510,561     89,717   7,241,039

At 31 December 61,897,971  35,049,749  12,047,000  16,156,348   3,000,000   1,815,805 129,966,873
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32. Cash flOw infOrmatiOn (COnt’d)

(b) the reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:- (Cont’d)

  hire purchase  Bankers’ invoice revolving Bank
  payables term loans  acceptances financing Credit factoring total
  rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

the group

2017

At	Ć	January		 Ĉĉ,ĉĎĉ,ćĉĈ	 ćČ,ĉćċ,ČĉĊ	 Ĉ,Ĉĉč,ąčċ	 ĉ,ĉĊĈ,ąćĆ	 ċ,ąąą,ąąą	 –	 ČĊ,Čćć,ąĎĊ

Changes in Financing
 Cash Flow
proceeds from drawdown – 3,522,909 10,824,980 15,817,373 23,000,000 12,554,538 65,719,800
Repayment of borrowing
 principal (21,570,792) (4,373,949) (10,137,066) (16,253,064) (15,000,000) (12,554,538) (79,889,409)
Repayment of borrowing
 interests (2,523,868) (1,381,165) (163,932) (436,633) (188,586) (99,006) (4,793,190)

Non-cash Changes       
New hire purchase
 (Note 32(a)) 35,475,080 – – – – – 35,475,080
Reclassification of
 other payables
 to hire purchase payables 8,274,900 – – – – – 8,274,900
Finance charges recognised
 in profit or loss 2,523,868 1,381,165 163,932 436,633 188,586 99,006 4,793,190

At 31 December 56,673,431 26,575,705 4,036,000 4,017,330 14,000,000 – 105,302,466
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32. Cash flOw infOrmatiOn (COnt’d)

(b) the reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows (cont’d):- 

    amount Owing
    to subsidiaries term loans total
    rm rm rm

the Company

2018 

At	Ć	January		 	 	 ćĊą,ąĊĎ	 Ċčĉ,Ċćĉ	 čĈĉ,ĊčĈ

Changes in Financing Cash Flows    
Management Fee   110,883 – 110,883
Repayment   (250,059) – (250,059)
proceeds from drawdown   – 4,166,276 4,166,276
Repayment of borrowing principal  – (222,635) (222,635)
Repayment of borrowing interests  – (163,431) (163,431)

Non-cash Changes    
Finance charges recognised in profit or loss   – 163,431 163,431

At 31 December   110,883 4,528,165 4,639,048

2017

At	Ć	January		 	 	 ĉČĉ,čĎć	 Čąĉ,Ċćĉ	 Ć,ĆČĎ,ĉĆċ

Changes in Financing Cash Flows    
payment on behalf by   64,988 – 64,988
Repayment   (289,821) – (289,821)
Repayment of borrowing principal  – (120,000) (120,000)
Repayment of borrowing interests  – (31,204) (31,204)

Non-cash Changes    
Finance charges recognised in profit or loss   – 31,204 31,204

At 31 December   250,059 584,524 834,583

(c) For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Deposits with licensed banks  32,637,176 22,315,291 248,314 4,841,101
Short-term investments  4,194,411 2,293,570 636,644 –
Cash and bank balances  7,708,889 24,581,370 276,477 2,574,423
Bank overdrafts  (4,455,541) (2,901,355) – –

   40,084,935 46,288,876 1,161,435 7,415,524
Less: Deposits pledged to
 licensed banks  (32,637,176) (17,715,291) (248,314) (241,101)
Less: Deposit with tenure
 more than 3 months  – (4,600,000) – (4,600,000)

   7,447,759 23,973,585 913,121 2,574,423
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33. KeY management persOnnel COmpensatiOn

 the key management personnel of the Group and of the Company include executive directors and non-executive 
directors of the Company and certain members of senior management of the Group and of the Company.  

 the key management personnel compensation during the financial year are as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

(a)  directors

 Directors of the Company

 Short-term employee
  benefits:
  - fees  214,200 204,000 214,200 204,000
  - salaries, bonuses and
   other benefits  3,342,632 3,117,671 2,901,392 218,468

   3,556,832 3,321,671 3,115,592 422,468
 Defined contribution plans  271,952 318,432 222,800 20,670
 Share option expenses  216,243  – 165,028 –

 total directors’ remuneration
  (Note 29)  4,045,027  3,640,103 3,503,420 443,138

 the estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind provided by the Group and the Company to the directors 
of the Company were RM94,633 and RM79,950 (2017 - RM96,859 and RM6,662) respectively.

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

(b)  Other Key management personnel    

 Short-term employee benefits 1,484,308  1,060,517 488,239 –
Share option expenses     181,531  – 45,525 –
Defined contribution plans     176,880  122,772 58,404 –

total compensation for other
 key management personnel

  (Note 29)   1,842,719  1,183,289 592,168 –
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34.  related partY disClOsures

(a) identities of related parties

 parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or 
indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making 
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject 
to common control.  

 In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group has related party 
relationships with its directors, key management personnel and entities within the same group of companies.

(b) related party transactions and Balances

 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company also carried 
out the following transactions with the related parties during the financial year:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

subsidiaries
Received or receivable:-
Dividend income  – – 6,700,000 12,210,000
Management fee  – – 1,229,089 –
Rental income:
- premises  – – 96,000 96,000
- hiring of machinery  – – 12,000 200,000
proceeds from disposal ofplant, 
 property and equipment   – – 15 29,729
payment on behalf to  – – 43,395 –
Advances to  – – 23,872,000 68,157,000

paid or payable:-
Management fee  – – 110,883 –
payment on behalf by  – – – 64,988

director
paid and payable:-
Rental of premises  66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000

 the significant outstanding balances of the related parties together with their terms and conditions are 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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35. Capital COmmitments

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Approved and contracted for:-

purchase of property, plant and equipment   2,565,000 22,820,788
purchase of investment properties    – 1,395,900

     2,565,000 24,216,688
   

36. Operating lease COmmitment

 the future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:-

  the group
     2018 2017
     rm rm

Not later than 1 year    420,000 1,260,000
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years   – 420,000

     420,000 1,680,000

37. earnings per share

  the group
     2018 2017

profit after taxation (RM)    10,618,139 18,463,080

weighted average number of ordinary shares:-   
Or16nary	s5ar2s	at	Ć	January	 	 	 	 ĉąć,ąČĎ,ąąą	 ĈĆć,ąČĎ,ąąą
 Effect of treasury shares held     (157,600) –
 Effect of ordinary shares issued    – 44,136,986

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  401,921,400 356,215,986

Basic earnings per share (Sen)    2.64 5.18
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37. earnings per share (COnt’d)

  the group
     2018 2017

weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 401,921,400 356,215,986

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration:
 - employee share options in issue   65,478 –

weigjted aerage number of ordinary shares for diluted earning per
 share computation    401,986,878 356,215,986

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (Sen)   2.64 5.18

38. Operating segments

 Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group Chief 
Executive Officer as its chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess 
their performance on a quarterly basis. For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units 
based on their services provided.

 the Group is organised into 2 main reportable segments as follows:-

(a) Construction and Support Services – involved in earthworks and civil engineering services; and

(b) property Investments – involved in sales of investment properties for capital gain and rental of investment 
properties.

 Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating segments 
are presented under unallocated items. Unallocated items comprise mainly current tax assets, current tax liabilities, 
goods and services tax recoverable, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. 

38.1  BUSINESS SEGMENtS

   Construction
   and support property Consolidation
   services  investment adjustments total
the group  rm rm rm rm
31 december 2018

revenue     
External revenue  272,516,333 344,131 – 272,860,464
Inter-segment revenue  74,744,573 – (74,744,573) –

Consolidated revenue  347,260,906 344,131 – 272,860,464
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38. Operating segments (COnt’d)

38.1  BUSINESS SEGMENtS (CONt’D)

   Construction
   and support property Consolidation
   services  investment adjustments total
the group  rm rm rm rm
31 december 2018

Represented by:-

Revenue recognised at a point in time

Sale of goods  19,473,770 – – 19,473,770
Hiring of machinery   66,837,238 – (65,565,511) 1,271,727
Day work revenue  2,513,094 – – 2,513,094
Rental income  – 344,131 – 344,131
Cabin living quarters rental  1,411 – – 1,411
Dividend income  6,700,000 – (6,700,000) –
Management fee  1,229,089 – (1,229,089) –

Revenue recognised over time
Contract revenue  250,506,304 – (1,249,973) 249,256,331

   347,260,906 344,131  272,860,464

results     
Segment results     21,925,441
Interest income     1,179,903
Dividend income from short-term investments    82,601

      23,187,945
Finance costs     (7,762,518)
Share of result of an equity accounted associate    (30)

Consolidated profit before taxation    15,425,397
Income tax expense     (4,807,258)

Consolidated profit after taxation     10,618,139

assets
Segment assets  468,073,413 48,654,065 (108,474,148) 408,253,330
Deferred tax assets     160,149
Goods and services tax recoverable    1,431,696
Current tax assets     1,509,428

Consolidated total assets     411,354,603

liabilities     
Segment liabilities  272,419,365 50,148,610 (98,380,660) 224,187,315
Deferred tax liabilities     4,909,076
Current tax liabilities     272,022

Consolidated total liabilities     229,368,413
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38. Operating segments (COnt’d)

38.1  BUSINESS SEGMENtS (CONt’D)

   Construction 
   and support property Consolidation
   services investment adjustments total
the group  rm rm rm rm
31 december 2018     
     
Other segment items:     
Capital expenditure:     
- investment properties  – 1,563,711 (49,522) 1,514,189
- property, plant and
 equipment  40,391,163 – (89,160) 40,302,003
Depreciation:     
- investment properties  – 566,578 (39,215) 527,363
- property, plant and
 equipment  25,003,294 – 39,215 25,042,509
Direct operating expenses
 on investment properties:    
  - income generating     
  investment properties  – 79,531 – 79,531
 - non-income generating
  investment properties  – 474,015 (263,782) 210,233
Interest expense  6,854,688 907,830 – 7,762,518
property, plant and equipment
 written off  6,003 – – 6,003
Allowance for impairment losses
 on trade receivables  443,050 – – 443,050
Loss on deemed disposal due
 to effects of deconsolidation
 of subsidiaries under Member’s
 Voluntary winding Up  231,417 – – 231,417
Gain on disposal of property,
 plant and equipment  (1,844,614) – (3,493,021) (5,337,635)
Gain on disposal of an      
 investment property  – (3,493,076) 3,493,076 –
Share of results of an equity
 accounted associate  30 – – 30
Share option expenses  1,116,498 – – 1,116,498
Interest income:     
- deposits with licensed 
 banks  (1,040,792) – – (1,040,792)
- finance lease receivables  (113,018) – – (113,018)
- others  (15,238) (10,855) – (26,093)
Dividend income from
 short-term investments  (82,601) – – (82,601)
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38. Operating segments (COnt’d)

38.1 BUSINESS SEGMENtS (CONt’D)

   Construction
   and support property Consolidation
   services  investment adjustments total
the group  rm rm rm rm
31 december 2017

revenue
External revenue  265,708,139 280,433 – 265,988,572
Inter-segment revenue  70,518,336 – (70,518,336) –

Consolidated revenue  336,226,475 280,433 (70,518,336) 265,988,572

results     
Segment results  42,975,523 (99,636) (11,930,582) 30,945,305
Interest income     1,179,721
Dividend income from short-term investments    13,570

      32,138,596
Finance costs     (5,403,324)

Consolidated profit before taxation    26,735,272
Income tax expense     (8,272,192)

Consolidated profit after taxation     18,463,080

assets     
Segment assets  411,656,586 44,305,284 (91,795,124) 364,166,746
Goods and services tax recoverable    2,240,322
Current tax assets     2,270,569

Consolidated total assets     368,677,637

liabilities     
Segment liabilities  222,712,664 46,672,042 (82,132,797) 187,251,909
Deferred tax liabilities     6,624,084
Current tax liabilities     193,754

Consolidated total liabilities     194,069,747
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38. Operating segments (COnt’d)

38.1  BUSINESS SEGMENtS (CONt’D)

   Construction 
   and support property Consolidation
   services investment adjustments total
the group  rm rm rm rm
31 december 2017

Other segment items: 
Capital expenditure:     
- investment properties  – 3,315,549 – 3,315,549
- property, plant and
 equipment  71,349,619 268,646 (29,739) 71,588,526
Depreciation:     
- investment properties  – 525,232 (58,822) 466,410
- property, plant and
 equipment  20,355,444 71,725 58,822 20,485,991
Direct operating expenses
 on investment properties:
 - income generating
  investment properties  – 55,546 – 55,546
 - non-income generating
  investment properties  – 198,788 (63,333) 135,455
Interest expense  4,708,397 694,927 – 5,403,324
property, plant and equipment
 written off  315,761 – – 315,761
Gain on disposal of property,
 plant and equipment  (752,373) – 10 (752,363)
Gain on disposal of an
 investment property  – (153,823) – (153,823)
Interest income:     
- deposits with licensed banks (839,011) – – (839,011)
- trade receivables  (586) – – (586)
- finance lease receivables  (30,030) – – (30,030)
- others  (309,762) (918) – (310,680)
Dividend income from
 short-term investments  (13,570) – – (13,570)
Reversal of impairment losses on
- trade receivables  (96,220) – – (96,220)
- non-trade receivables  (366,536) – – (366,536)
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38. Operating segments (COnt’d)

Ĉč.ć		 MAJOR	CUSTOMERS

 the following are major customers with revenue equal to or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

  revenue segment
the group rm

2018 

Customer A 52,144,535 Construction and Support Services
Customer B 48,797,626  Construction and Support Services
Customer C 35,005,935  Construction and Support Services

2017    
Customer B 87,334,956 Construction and Support Services
Customer D 56,973,053 Construction and Support Services
Customer A 28,413,429 Construction and Support Services

39. material litigatiOn

 advancecon infra sdn. Bhd. (advancecon infra”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of advancecon holdings 
Berhad in the high Court of malaya (“the Court”) at shah alam Civil suit no. Ba-22C-50-11/2018 vs infra 
tech projects malaysia sdn. Bhd. (“infra tech” or “the defendant”)

 Advancecon Infra, through its solicitors, Messrs Arthur wang, Lian & Associates had on 9 November 2018 filed 
and served a sealed copy of the writ of Summons together with the Statement of Claim, both dated 2 November 
2018 against Infra tech projects Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (Company No. 654784-A) (“Infra tech” or “the Defendant”).

 the filing of the writ of Summons together with the Statement of Claim arose from the Advancecon Infra’s claim 
for damage and losses suffered due to Infra tech’s engagement as a sub-contractor by the Advancecon Infra under 
Ĉ	L2tt2rs	o3	Awar1	1at21	ćą	January	ćąĆČ	an1	Č	F2bruary	ćąĆČ	(“L2tt2rs	o3	Awar1”)	r2sp20t6v29y	3or	t52	Pro720t	
known as “phase 1 Earthwork for Cadangan Serah Balik and Berimilik Semula Dibawah Sekysen 204D Kanun tanah 
Negara Untuk pembangunan Bercampur perumahan Dan perniagaan, Di Atas pt8 (H.S.(D) 22218), pt 9 (H.S.(D) 
22219) Dan pt20090 (H.S.(D) 244038), Mukim Bukit Raja, Daerah petaling, Seksyen U12, Shah Alam, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan (“BS49 project”) which was awarded to Infra tech.
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39. material litigatiOn (COnt’d)

 Due to the alleged breach of the Letters of Award by the Defendant, Advancecon Infra is claiming for the following: 

(a) A declaration that the Defendant has breached the terms and conditions of all the 3 Letters of Award under 
the BS49 project; 

(b)  A declaration that Advancecon Infra was allowed to make deductions and set off from payments to the 
Defendant under all the 3 Letters of Award under the BS49 project;

(c) A declaration that Advancecon Infra has the right to deduct/set off the total sum amounting to 
RM1,417,174.75 for the 3 payment Certificates No. 5, 6 and 7 that are payable to the Defendant by 
Advancecon Infra;

(d)  the sum of RM1,052,157.69 being the total outstanding balance remedial costs incurred due to the slope 
failures at HIEDYC and pVD Group Improvement at Show Village Area (“KtA2 Area”) and CDYC, pVD and 
Geogrid Ground Improvement at phase 1&2 Slope Area (“KtA1 Area”);

(e) Interests on the sum of RM1,052,157.69 at the rate of 5% per annum from the date of this judgement until 
the date of full and final settlement;

(f) Solicitors’ cost and

(g) Such further or other relief as deemed fit by the Court.

the first case management was fixed on 12 December 2018.

 Advancecon Infra had received the Defence and Counterclaim from the Defendant dated 11 December 2018 and 
5a1	36921	an1	s2rv2	t52	R2p9y	to	D232n02	an1	D232n02	to	Count2r09a6m	1at21	ĆĆ	January	ćąĆĎ.

 Advancecon Infra had received the sealed Amended Defence and Counterclaim dated 4 February 2019 from the 
Defendant on 13 February 2019.

 Advancecon Infra had filed and served the unsealed Amended Defence and Counterclaim dated 27 February 2019 
to the Defendant on 27 February 2019.

 the Company announced that further to the case management held on 7 March 2019, the Court directed as 
follows:-

(a) the Defendant to file and serve Reply to Amended Defence to Amended Counterclaim on 13 March 2019; 
and

(b) Advancecon Infra and Defendant (collectively referred as “the parties”) to file Bundle of pleadings, Common 
Bundle of Documents, Agreed Facts, Issues to be tried, Summary of Case and List of witnesses before the 
next date, 29 April 2019.

the Court has fixed next case management on 29 April 2019.

 Advancecon Infra had on 13 March 2019 received the Defendant’s Reply to Amended Defence to Counterclaim 
dated 13 March 2019.
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40. finanCial instruments

 the Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk 
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. the Group’s overall financial risk management policy focuses on 
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial 
performance. 

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES

 the Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(a) market risk 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

 the Group does not have any transactions or balances denominated in foreign currencies and 
hence, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. the Group’s exposure to interest 
rate risk arises mainly from borrowings with variable rates. the Group’s policy is to obtain the 
most favourable interest rates available and by maintaining a balanced portfolio mix of fixed 
and floating rate borrowings.

 the Group’s deposits with licensed banks are carried at amortised cost. therefore, they are 
not subject to interest rate risk as defined by MFRS 7 since neither their carrying amounts nor 
the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

 the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk based on the carrying amounts of the financial 
instruments at the end of the reporting period is summarised as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

floating rate
 instruments

Financial Liabilities
term loans 35,049,749 26,575,705 4,528,165 584,524
Bankers’
 acceptances 12,047,000 4,036,000 – –
Bank factoring 1,815,805 – – –
Invoice financing 16,156,348 4,017,330 – –
Revolving credit 3,000,000 14,000,000 – –
Bank overdrafts 4,455,541 2,901,355 – –

  72,524,443 51,530,390 4,528,165 584,524
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(a) market risk (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

 Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

 the following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the 
interest rates at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:- 

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Effects on profit
 After taxation

Increase of 100
 basis points (551,186) (391,631) (34,414) (4,442)
Decrease of 100   
 basis points 551,186 391,631 34,414 4,442

(iii) Equity price Risk

 the Group does not have any quoted investments and hence, is not exposed to equity price 
risk.

(b) Credit risk

 the Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from trade 
and other receivables. the Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit 
approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets 
(including cash and bank balances), the Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high 
credit rating counterparties.

 the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiaries, and 
corporate guarantee given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. 
the Company monitors the results of these subsidiaries regularly and repayments made by the 
subsidiaries.

(i) Credit Risk Concentration profile

 the Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by 3 customers 
which constituted approximately 58% of its trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.  
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii) Exposure to Credit Risk

 At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the 
carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial 
position of the Group and the Company after deducting any allowance for impairment losses 
(where applicable).

 In addition, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk also includes corporate guarantees 
provided to its subsidiaries as disclosed under the ‘Maturity Analysis’ of item (c) below, 
representing the outstanding banking facilities of the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting 
period. these corporate guarantees have not been recognised in the Company’s financial 
statements since their fair value on initial recognition were not material.

(iii) Assessment of Impairment Losses

 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the financial assets at amortised 
cost and contract assets are credit impaired.

 the gross carrying amounts of those financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery (i.e. the debtor does not have assets or sources of income to generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the debt) despite they are still subject to enforcement activities.

 trade Receivables and Contract Assets

 the Group applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a 
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

 to measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been 
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. the contract 
assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substially the same risk characteristics as 
the trade receivables for the same types of contract. therefore, the Group concluded that the 
expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for 
the contract assets.

 the Group considers any receivables having significant balances and more than 120 days 
overdue are deemed credit impaired.

 For construction contracts, the Group assessed the expected credit loss of each customer 
individually based on their financial information and past trends of payments as there are only 
a few customers. All of these customers have low risk of default as they have a strong capacity 
to meet their debts.
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

 trade Receivables and Contract Assets (Cont’d)

 the information about the exposure to credit risk and the loss allowances calculated under 
MFRS 9 for trade receivables and contract assets are summarised below:-

   gross lifetime loss Carrying
   amount allowance amount
the group  rm rm rm
   
2018

trade receivables
Current (not past due)  27,653,802 – 27,653,802
past due:   
- less than 2 months  19,058,778 – 19,058,778
- 2 to 4 months  13,876,772 (15,129) 13,861,643
- over 4 months  6,259,513 (212,388) 6,047,125
- more than 1 year  320,067 (13,092) 306,975

   67,168,932 (240,609) 66,928,323
Credit impaired:   
- individually impaired  212,709 (212,709) –

   67,381,641 (453,318) 66,928,323
Contract assets   
Current (not past due)  79,097,980 – 79,097,980

   146,479,621 (453,318) 146,026,303
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

 trade Receivables and Contract Assets (Cont’d)

 In the last financial year, the loss allowance on trade receivables was calculated under MFRS 
139. the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:-

  gross individual Collective Carrying
  amount impairment impairment amount
the group rm rm rm rm
  (restated)   (restated)
    
2017    
    
Not past due 18,207,774 – – 18,207,774
    
past due:    
- less than 2 months 5,603,192 – – 5,603,192
- 2 to 4 months 12,678,799 – – 12,678,799
- over 4 months 1,866,934 – – 1,866,934
- more than 1 year 383,432 (10,268) – 373,164

  38,740,131 (10,268) – 38,729,863

 the movements in the loss allowances in respect of trade receivables and contract assets   
are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements respectively.

 Finance Lease Receivables, Other Receivables and Amount Owing by An Associate

 Finance lease receivables, other receivables and amount owing by an associate are also subject 
to the impairment requirements of MFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial and 
hence, it is not provided for.

 Deposits with Licensed Banks, Cash and Bank Balances

 the Group considers banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. therefore, the Group 
is of the view that the loss allowance is immaterial and hence, it is not provided for.
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

 Amount Owing By Subsidiaries

 the Company applies the 3-stage general approach to measuring expected credit losses for all 
inter-company balances. Generally, the Company considers loans and advances to subsidiaries 
have low credit risks. the Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk 
when a subsidiary’s financial position deteriorates significantly. As the Company is able to 
determine the timing of payments of the subsidiaries’ loans and advances when they are 
payable, the Company considers the loans and advances to be in default when the subsidiaries 
are not able to pay when demanded. the Company considers a subsidiary’s loan or advance 
to be credit impaired when the subsidiary is unlikely to repay its loan or advance in full or the 
subsidiary is continuously loss making or the subsidiary is having a deficit in its total equity. 

 
 the Company determines the probability of default for these loans and advances individually 

using internal information available.

 the identified impairment loss was immaterial and hence, is not provided for.
 
 Financial Guarantee Contracts
            
 All of the financial guarantee contracts are considered to be performing, have low risks of default 

and historically there were no instances where these financial guarantee contracts were called 
upon by the parties of which the financial guarantee contracts were issued to. Accordingly, no 
loss allowances were identified based on 12-month expected credit losses.  



 

O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
v

e
r

v
ie

w
 

 O
t

h
e

r
s

 C
O

r
p

O
r

a
t

e
 g

O
v

e
r

n
a

n
C

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

C
ia

l
 s

t
a

t
e

m
e

n
t

129
aDvaNcEcON hOLDINgS bErhaD (426965-M)   

annual repOrt 2018

NOtES tO thE FINaNcIaL StatEMENtS 
FOr thE FINaNcIaL YEar ENDED 31 DEcEMbEr 2018 (CONt’D)

 

40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(c) liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. the Group practises prudent 
risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding through 
certain committed credit facilities.

 Maturity Analysis

 the following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

  effective  Contractual
  interest Carrying undiscounted within 1 - 5 Over 5
  rate amount Cash flows 1 Year Years Years
the group % rm rm rm rm rm

2018

Non-derivative
 Financial Liabilities

trade payables – 49,147,250 49,147,250 49,147,250 –   –
Other payables and accruals – 15,921,253 15,921,253 15,921,253 –   –   
Dividend payable – 4,017,260 4,017,260 4,017,260 – –
Hire purchase payables 3.67 - 8.45 61,897,971 68,493,588 18,959,609 49,533,979 –
term loans 4.64 - 7.97 35,049,749 52,406,599 4,310,276 16,334,188 31,762,135
Bankers’ acceptances 4.12 - 5.51  12,047,000 12,047,000 12,047,000 – –
Bank factoring  7.92 1,815,805 1,815,805 1,815,805 – –
Invoice financing 5.36 - 8.32 16,156,348 16,156,348 16,156,348 – –
Revolving credit 5.90 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 – –
Bank overdrafts 7.82 - 7.99 4,455,541 4,455,541 4,455,541 – –

   203,508,177 227,460,644 129,830,342 65,868,167 31,762,135

2017

Non-derivative
 Financial Liabilities

trade payables – 44,793,675 44,793,675 44,793,675 – –
Other  payables and accruals – 25,278,026 25,278,026 25,278,026 – –
Hire purchase payables 3.96 - 8.45 56,673,431 63,904,816 16,221,432 47,683,384 –
term loans 4.34 - 8.06 26,575,705 35,573,740 6,523,067 11,415,880 17,634,793
Bankers’ acceptances 4.94 - 5.22 4,036,000 4,036,000 4,036,000 – –
Invoice financing 6.42 - 7.67 4,017,330 4,017,330 4,017,330 – –
Revolving credit  4.93 - 5.39 14,000,000 14,000,000 14,000,000 – –
Bank overdrafts 7.67 2,901,355 2,901,355 2,901,355 – –

   178,275,522 194,504,942 117,770,885 59,099,264 17,634,793
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENt pOLICIES (CONt’D)

(c) liquidity risk (Cont’d)

 Maturity Analysis (Cont’d)

  effective  Contractual
  interest Carrying undiscounted within 1 - 5 Over 5
  rate amount Cash flows 1 Year Years Years
the Company % rm rm rm rm rm

2018

trade payables – 15,808 15,808 15,808 – –
Other payables and accruals – 1,022,543 1,022,543 1,022,543 – –
Amount owing to subsidiaries – 110,883 110,883 110,883 – –
Dividend payable – 4,017,260 4,017,260 4,017,260 – –
term loans 4.77 - 5.11 4,528,165 6,225,577 523,307 1,900,475 3,801,795
Financial guarantee
Contracts in relation to
 corporate guarantee 
 given to certain
 subsidiaries* – – 122,738,266 122,738,266  – –

   9,694,659 134,130,337 128,428,067 1,900,475 3,801,795

2017

trade payables – 27,964 27,964 27,964 – –
Other payables and accruals – 4,325,499 4,325,499 4,325,499 – –
Amount owing to subsidiaries – 250,059 250,059 250,059 – –
term loan 4.88 584,524 655,279 145,686 509,593 –
Financial guarantee contracts
 in relation to corporate
 guarantee given to certain
 subsidiaries* – – 101,088,359 101,088,359 – –

   5,188,046 106,347,160 105,837,567 509,593 –

*  the contractual undiscounted cash flows represent the outstanding credit facilities of 
the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period. the financial guarantees have not been 
recognised in since their fair value on initial recognition were not material.
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.2 CApItAL RISK MANAGEMENt

 the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an optimal 
capital structure so as to support their businesses and maximise shareholders’ value. to achieve this 
objective, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes in economic 
conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing 
new shares.

 the Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and 
regulatory, if any. the debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. the Group includes 
within net debt, loans and borrowings from financial institutions less cash and cash equivalents.  

 the debt-to-equity ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting year was as follows:-

  the group the Company
   2018 2017 2018 2017
   rm rm rm rm

Hire purchase payables  61,897,971 56,673,431 – –
term loans  35,049,749 26,575,705 4,528,165 584,524
Bankers’ acceptances  12,047,000 4,036,000 – –
Bank factoring  1,815,805 – – –
Invoice financing  16,156,348 4,017,330 – –
Revolving credit  3,000,000 14,000,000 – –
Bank overdrafts  4,455,541 2,901,355 – –

   134,422,414 108,203,821 4,528,165 584,524
Less: 
- Deposits pledged to
 licensed banks  (32,637,176) (17,715,291) (248,314) (241,101)
- Deposits with tenure of
 more than 3 months    – (4,600,000) – (4,600,000)
- Short-term investments  (4,194,411) (2,293,570) (636,644) –
- Cash and bank balances  (7,708,889) (24,581,370) (276,477) (2,574,423)

Net debt/(surplus) of cash
 and cash equivalents  89,881,938 59,013,590 3,366,730 (6,831,000)

total equity  181,986,190 174,607,890 93,100,493 93,864,509

Debt-to-equity ratio  0.49 0.34 0.04 #

 
# the debt-to-equity ratio of the Company is not presented as its cash and cash equivalents exceeded 

the total external borrowings as at 31 December 2017.
  

there was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.3 CLASSIFICAtION OF FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS

     the group the Company
     2018 2018
     rm rm

financial assets

Amortised Cost  
Finance lease receivables    3,639,418 –
trade receivables    66,928,323 –
Other receivables and deposits   23,153,669 4,077,542
Amount owing by subsidiaries   – 79,274,972
Amount owing by an associate   5,288 3,788
Deposits with licensed banks   32,637,176 248,314
Cash and bank balances    7,708,889 276,477

     134,072,763 83,881,093

Mandatory at Fair Value through profit of Loss  
Short-term investments    4,194,411 636,644

financial liabilities

Amortised Cost  
trade payables    49,147,250 15,808
Other payables and accruals   15,921,253 1,022,543
Amount owing to subsidiaries   – 110,883
Dividend payable    4,017,260 4,017,260
Hire purchase payables    61,897,971 –
term loans    35,049,749 4,528,165
Bankers’ acceptances    12,047,000 –
Bank factoring    1,815,805 –
Invoice financing    16,156,348 –
Revolving credit    3,000,000 –
Bank overdrafts    4,455,541 –

     203,508,177 9,694,659
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.3 CLASSIFICAtION OF FINANCIAL INStRUMENtS (CONt’D)

     the group the Company
     2017 2017
     rm rm
     (restated)
  
financial assets

Loans and Receivables Financial Assets  
Finance lease receivables    2,091,030 –
trade receivables    38,729,863 –
Other receivables and deposits   6,260,671 567,390
Amount owing by subsidiaries   – 73,991,583
Deposits with licensed banks   22,315,291 4,841,101
Cash and bank balances    24,581,370 2,574,423

     93,978,225 81,974,497

Fair Value through profit or Loss  
Short-term investments    2,293,570 –
  
  
financial liabilities  
  
Other Financial Liabilities  
trade payables    44,793,675 27,964
Other payables and accruals   25,278,026 4,325,499
Amount owing to subsidiaries   – 250,059
Hire purchase payables    56,673,431 –
term loans    26,575,705 584,524
Bankers’ acceptances    4,036,000 –
Invoice financing    4,017,330 –
Revolving credit    14,000,000 –
Bank overdrafts    2,901,355 –

     178,275,522 5,188,046
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.4 FAIR VALUE INFORMAtION

 the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company which are maturing within the next 12 months approximated 
their carrying amounts due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments or repayable on demand terms.

 the following table sets out the fair value profile of financial instruments that are carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value at the end of 
the reporting period:-
   
  fair value of financial instruments fair value of financial instruments total 
  Carried at fair value not Carried at fair value fair Carrying
  level 1 level 2 level 3 level 1 level 2 level 3 value amount
the group rm rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

2018 
         
Financial Assets
Finance lease receivables – – – – 3,596,534  – 3,596,534  3,639,418
Short-term investments 4,194,411 – – – – – 4,194,411 4,194,411

Financial Liabilities
Hire purchase payables – – – – 61,866,543 – 61,866,543 61,897,971
term loans – – – – 35,049,749 – 35,049,749 35,049,749

2017 
         
Financial Assets
Finance lease receivables – – – – 2,087,103 – 2,087,103 2,091,030
Short-term investments 2,293,570 – – – – – 2,293,570 2,293,570

Financial Liabilities
Hire purchase payables – – – – 56,747,359 – 56,747,359 56,673,431
term loans – – – – 26,575,705 – 26,575,705 26,575,705
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.4 FAIR VALUE INFORMAtION (CONt’D)

  fair value of financial instruments fair value of financial instruments total 
  Carried at fair value not Carried at fair value fair Carrying
  level 1 level 2 level 3 level 1 level 2 level 3 value amount
the Company rm rm rm rm rm rm rm rm

2018 

Financial Assets
Short-term investments 636,644 – – – – – 636,644 636,644

Financial Liability
term loans – – – – 4,528,165 – 4,528,165 4,528,165

2017 
         
Financial Liability
term loan – – – – 584,524 – 584,524 584,524
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40. finanCial instruments (COnt’d)

40.4 FAIR VALUE INFORMAtION (CONt’D)

(a) fair value of financial instruments Carried at fair value

(i) the fair values of the short-term investments are determined using their quoted closing prices 
at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) there was no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the financial year.

(b) fair value of financial instruments not Carried at fair value

the fair values, which are for disclosure purposes, have been determined using the following basis:-

(i) the fair values of the Group and the Company’s term loans that carry floating interest rates 
approximated their carrying amounts as they are repriced to market interest rates on or near 
the reporting date. 

(ii) the fair values of the Group’s and the Company’s finance lease receivables, and hire purchase 
payables that carry fixed interest rates are determined by discounting the relevant future 
contractual cash flows using current market interest rates for similar instruments at the end 
of the reporting period. the interest rates used to discount the estimated cash flows are as 
follows:-

  the group
     2018 2017
     % %

 Financial lease receivables 6.20 to 6.23  5.82
 Hire purchase payables 3.22 to 6.36 3.97 to 6.33

41. signifiCant events during the finanCial Year

(a)	 On	Ćč	January	ćąĆč,	a99	r2so9ut6ons	as	pr2s0r6b21	6n	r29at6on	to	t52	propos21	2stab96s5m2nt	o3	an	Emp9oy22’s	
Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) of up to 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares, 
if any) were duly passed by way of poll at the Extraordinary General Meeting. the effective date of the ESOS 
has been fixed on 6 March 2018.

(b) On 6 February 2018, Special Resolutions were passed by the shareholders of Advancecon Rock Sdn. Bhd. 
and Advancecon trading Sdn. Bhd., respectively to initiate the process of Member’s Voluntary winding Up 
and accordingly, liquidators have been appointed.

(c) On 12 April 2018, Advancecon Machinery Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into 2 separate Sale 
and purchase Agreement with perbadanan Kemajuan Negeri Selangor to purchase 2 pieces of industrial 
land located at Seksyen 6 Kota puteri Daerah Gombak for a total purchase consideration of approximately 
RM13,700,000. the Group intends to construct a workshop on these 2 pieces of industrial land to allow 
the Group to have better flexibility and convenience for its internal servicing team to perform repair and 
maintenance services for its machinery and equipment catered for the projects on a timely basis.

(d) On 29 August 2018, Advancecon properties Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a Sale and 
purchase Agreement with Acmar Auto parts (M) Sdn Bhd for the disposal of a piece of leasehold industrial 
land in port Klang, Selangor for a total purchase consideration of RM9,070,000.

(e) On 12 October 2018, a new 20% owned associate named Advancecon (Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd. was incorporated 
in Malaysia under the Companies Act 2016. Its principal activities are to provide earthworks and civil 
engineering services and sales of construction materials.
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42. signifiCant events OCCurring after the reOrting periOd

(a) On 26 March 2019, the Company had incorporated a new subsidiary known as Advancecon Solar Sdn. Bhd.
with an issued share capital of RM100 comprising 100 ordinary shares.

(b) On 26 March 2019, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Kumpulan Semesta 
Sdn. Bhd. to collaborate and to explore opportunities in the solar energy industry in Malaysia, particularly in 
respect of the proposed Large Scale Solar project 3 by the Energy Commission (Suruhanjaya tenaga).

 
43. Changes in aCCOunting pOliCies

 As mentioned in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, the Group has adopted MFRS 15 during the financial year. 
the financial impacts upon the adoption of this accounting standard are summarised below:-

 statements of financial position (extract):-

  at 1 January 2018
    as previously mfrs 15 as
    reported adjustments restated
    rm rm rm

Assets

Contract assets   – 84,106,836 84,106,836
Amount owing by contract customers  8,762,940 (8,762,940) –
trade receivables    114,073,759 (75,343,896) 38,729,863

Liabilities

Contract liabilities   – 8,976,387 8,976,387
Amount owing to contract customers  8,976,387 (8,976,387) –
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LISt OF  
prOperties

no
title details/
postal address

description 
Of property /
existing use

land area 
/ Built-up

area
(sq. ft.)

approximate 
age Of

Building
(Years)

tenure/ date
Of expiry Of

the lease

audited
net Book 

value as at 
31.12.2018

(rm)

date Of
acquisition

1. h.S (M) 23117,P.t.NO. 831,
tempat Kota Puteri, Seksyen 6,
bandar batu arang,
Daerah gombak, 
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Lot	ćĈ,Ja9an	Kota	Put2r6	ċ,
Kawasan Industri Seksyen 6,  
Kota Puteri, bandar batu arang,
Daerah gombak.

a parcel of 
leasehold
industrial

land

Land area: 
241,391

built up area: Not 
applicable

Not applicable Leasehold
(99 years)/

4 February 2104

6,955,688 12 april 2018

2. h.S.(D) 173541, P.t.No.32213,
Pekan baru Sungai buloh, 
District of Petaling, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

No.	č,	Ja9an	PJU	Ĉ/ĆċD	
tropicana Indah 
ĉČĉĆą	P2ta96n4	Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

a parcel of 
leasehold 
residential

land

Land area: 
21,269

built up area: Not 
applicable

Not applicable Leasehold
(99 years)/

27 May 2101

6,305,258 ćĎ	Ju9y	ćąĆĊ

3. h.S (M) 23116,P.t.No. 830,
tempat Kota Puteri, Seksyen 6,
bandar batu arang,
Daerah gombak, 
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Lot	ćĆ,Ja9an	Kota	Put2r6	ċ,
Kawasan Industri Seksyen 6,  
Kota Puteri, bandar batu arang,
Daerah gombak.

a parcel of 
leasehold
industrial

land

Land area: 
217,679

built up area: Not 
applicable

Not applicable Leasehold
(99 years)/

4 February 2104

6,274,427 12 april 2018

4. h.S(D) 242482, P.t. 10061, 
Pekan baru Sungai buloh, 
Daerah Petaling,
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

No. 20, 
Ja9an	P28a8a	č/Ĉ,S28ys2n	č,
Kota Damansara,
ĉČčĆą	P2ta96n4	Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan

One (1) unit
of five (5)

storey
shop office

Land area:
4,349

built up area: 
21,408

Sixteen (17) years Leasehold
(99 years)/ 

17 December 2106

5,269,095 29 September 2017
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no
title details/
postal address

description 
Of property /
existing use

land area 
/ Built-up

area
(sq. ft.)

approximate 
age Of

Building
(Years)

tenure/ date
Of expiry Of

the lease

audited
net Book 

value as at 
31.12.2018

(rm)

date Of
acquisition

5. PN 52716, Lot 20007
Section 95a and geran 79381,
Lot 20006 Section 95a

bO1-a-08-1, Menara 2,
No.	Ĉ,	Ja9an	Ban4sar,
KL Eco city,
59200 Kuala Lumpur

whole of 8th

floor of a
twenty (20) 

storey building 
office tower 

block

Land area:
Not applicable
built up area: 

4,381

three (3) years Leasehold
(99 years)/ 

5 December 2113

5,200,060 5 august 2013

6. geran 316473, Lot 64445, 
town of glenmarie, 
District of Petaling, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

No.Ć,Ja9an	P2n4atur0ara
u1/51E,Seksyen u1, 
40150 Shah alam, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

One (1) unit
of three (3) 

storey
bungalow

Land area:
7,158

built up area: 
4,790

Eight (8) years Freehold 3,747,001 4 September 2015

7. hS(D) 279746, Lot No. Pt 1981
town of glenmarie, 
District of Petaling, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

No.	Ćč,	Ja9an	P2n4atur0ara,
u1/51h, Seksyen u1, 
40150 Shah alam, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan 

One (1) unit
of three (3) 

storey
semi-detached 

house

Land area:
8,253

built up area: 
3,940

Six (6) years Freehold 3,129,559 4 September 2015

8. Land Parcel No. S1001
Phase 1a03-rio villa Eco Sanctuary
PN 114310,Lot 74124
(formerly known as
hS(D) 39255 Pt 41293, 
hS(D) 39256 Pt 41294, 
hS(D) 39257 Pt41295) 
Mukim tanjong Dua belas, 
District of Kuala Langat, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

Postal address : No.52,
Ja9an	E0o	Santuar6	Ć/Ć,	E0o	Santuar6,
42500  telok Panglima garang,
Selangor Darul Ehsan

One (1) unit
of double storey
semi-detached 

house

Land area:
4,800

built up area: 
3,577

One (1) year Leasehold
(99 years)/

9 November 2110

2,273,935 ćč	Jun2	ćąĆĊ

LISt OF PrOPErtIES 
(CONt’D)
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no
title details/
postal address

description 
Of property /
existing use

land area 
/ Built-up

area
(sq. ft.)

approximate 
age Of

Building
(Years)

tenure/ date
Of expiry Of

the lease

audited
net Book 

value as at 
31.12.2018

(rm)

date Of
acquisition

9. Land Parcel No. S1002
Phase 1a03-rio villa Eco Sanctuary
PN 114310,Lot 74124
(formerly known as
hS(D) 39255 Pt 41293, 
hS(D) 39256 Pt 41294, 
hS(D) 39257 Pt41295) 
Mukim tanjong Dua belas, 
District of Kuala Langat, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

Postal address : No.50,
Ja9an	E0o	Santuar6	Ć/Ć,	E0o	Santuar6,
42500  telok Panglima garang,
Selangor Darul Ehsan

One (1) unit
of double storey
semi-detached 

house

Land area:
4,004

built up area: 
3,522

One (1) year Leasehold
(99 years)/

9 November 2110

2,094,612 ćč	Jun2	ćąĆĊ

10. hS(D) 164582 Pt 40672 
Mukim Semenyih, 
District of ulu Langat, 
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan

No.	ĊĊ,	Ja9an	E0o5699	Ĉ/ĆB	
Setia Ecohill
43500 Semenyih,
Selangor Darul Ehsan 

One (1) unit of 
double storey 

zero lot 
bungalow

Land area:
6,712

built up area: 
3,304

three (3) years Freehold 1,863,372 14 March 2016

LISt OF PrOPErtIES 
(CONt’D)
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aNaLYSIS OF  
sharehOldings

aS at 29 March 2019

total Issued Share : 402,209,000 Ordinary Shares 
  (including 1,161,000 treasury Shares as per record of Depositors as at 29 March 2019)
types of Shares : Ordinary Share
voting rights : One vote per Ordinary Share on a poll

distriButiOn Of sharehOldings as at 29 marCh 2019

   no. of no. of % of issued
size of shareholdings  shareholders shares  share Capital

Less than 100  8 100 0.00
100 to 1,000  218 145,300 0.04
1,001 to 10,000  1,107 6,629,900 1.65
10,001 to 100,000  833 29,628,600 7.39
100,001 – 20,052,399 *  184 243,621,850 60.74
20,052,400 and above **  4 121,022,250 30.18

total    2,354 401,048,000 100.00

Note:-
* Less than 5% of Issued holdings
**  5% and above of Issued holdings

# Excluding a total of 1,161,000 ordinary shares bought back by the company and retained as treasury Shares as 
per record of Depositors as at 11 March 2019

thirtY largest seCurities aCCOunt hOlders
(aCCOrding tO the register Of depOsitOrs as at 29 marCh 2019)

   % of issued
 name no. of shares share Capital

1. alliancegroup Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 38,500,000 9.60
 Pledged Securities account for Dato’ Phum ang Kia (7003846) 
2. Dato’ Phum ang Kia 30,063,750 7.50
3. Lim Swee chai 28,858,250 7.20
4. Pham Soon Kok 23,600,250 5.88
5. amsec Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 15,830,000 3.95
 Pledged Securities account for Lim Swee chai 
6. Lim Kok tiong 14,923,550 3.72
7. Maybank Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 14,875,250 3.71
 Pledged Securities account for Yeo an thai 
8. rhb Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 13,290,000 3.31
 OSK capital Sdn bhd for Yayasan Islam terengganu 
9. Maybank Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 13,000,000 3.24
 Pledged Securities account for Dato’ Phum ang Kia  
10. amanahraya trustees berhad 11,304,000 2.82
 Pb Islamic Smallcap Fund 
11. chan Keng Kong 11,019,150 2.75
12. Lam wing King 10,789,250 2.69
13. amsec Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 10,200,000 2.54
 Pledged Securities account for Dato’ Phum ang Kia 
14. rhb Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 7,300,000 1.82
 Pledged Securities account for Lim Swee chai 
15. tung Kai hung 7,000,000 1.75
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thirtY largest seCurities aCCOunt hOlders
(aCCOrding tO the register Of depOsitOrs as at 29 marCh 2019) (COnt’d)

   % of issued
 name no. of shares share Capital

16. Db (Malaysia) Nominee (tempatan) Sendirian berhad 6,651,200 1.66
 Deutsche trustees Malaysia berhad for
 Eastspring Investments Islamic Small-cap Fund 
17. Puah Kian Yiew 6,176,850 1.54
18. tung Kai hung 5,875,250 1.46
19. Yap goon Ying 5,777,250 1.44
20. rhb Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd
 Pledged Securities account for Pham Soon Kok 5,000,000 1.25
21. Yap goon Ying 5,000,000 1.25
22. amsec Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 4,800,000 1.20
 Pledged Securities account - ambank (M) berhad for
 Dato’ Phum ang Kia (Smart) 
23. cimsec Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 4,470,000 1.11
 cIMb bank for Datuk chiau beng teik (MY2975) 
24. citigroup Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 3,388,400 0.84
 Kumpulan wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) (ESPg Iv Sc E) 
25. hLIb Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 2,846,700 0.71
 Pledged Securities account for Yap Kok weng 
26. citigroup Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 2,122,900 0.53
 Employees Provident Fund board (PhEIM) 
27. Loh Lap Keong 2,000,000 0.50
28. Maybank Nominees (tempatan) Sdn bhd 2,000,000 0.50
 Pledged Securities account for chan Keng Kong 
29. Mohammed abdulaziz S alajaji 1,625,000 0.41
30. tai thong Ming 1,525,400 0.38

 
suBstantial sharehOlders as per register Of suBstantial sharehOlders

  direct interest indirect interest
 name  no. of shares % no. of shares %

1. Dato’ phum Ang Kia  96,563,750 24.08 – –
2. Lim Swee Chai  53,038,250 13.22 – –
3. pham Soon Kok  28,600,250 7.13 – –

direCtOrs’ sharehOldings as per register Of direCtOrs’ sharehOldings

  direct interest indirect interest
 name  no. of shares % no. of shares %

1. Dato’ phum Ang Kia  96,563,750 24.08 – –
2. Lim Swee Chai  53,038,250 13.22 – –
3. Ir. Yeo An thai  14,875,250 3.71 – –
4. tung Kai Hung  12,875,250 3.21 – –
5. Yeoh Chong Keat  25,000 0.01 – –
6. Fathi Ridzuan bin Ahmad Fauzi  25,000 0.01 – –
7. Mohd Zaky bin Othman  – – – –

ANALYSIS SHAREHOLDINGS
AS At 29 MARCH 2019 (CONt’D)
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nOtiCe is hereBY given that the twenty-Second (22nd) annual general Meeting (“agM”) of advancecon holdings 
B2r5a1	(“t52	Company”)	w699	b2	5291	at	Gr22ns	III	(Sports	W6n4),	Trop60ana	Go93	&	Country	R2sort,	Ja9an	K29ab	Trop60ana,	
ĉČĉĆą	P2ta96n4	Jaya,	S29an4or	Daru9	E5san	on	T5urs1ay,	ćą	Jun2	ćąĆĎ	at	Ćą.ąą	a.m.	3or	t52	3o99ow6n4	purpos2s:

agenda

as OrdinarY Business

1. to receive the audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2018 together with the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon.

please refer to 
explanatory note 1

2. to approve the payment of Directors’ fees and other benefits of up to rM350,000 
6n	r2sp20t	o3	t52	p2r6o1	3rom	ćĆ	Jun2	ćąĆĎ	unt69	t52	0on09us6on	o3	t52	n2xt	AGM	
of the company.

 Ordinary resolution 1
(please refer to 

explanatory note 2)

3. to re-elect the following Directors, who retire by rotation in accordance with article 
95 of the company’s articles of association and being eligible, have offered 
themselves for re-election:

(a) tung Kai hung

(b) Mohd Zaky bin Othman

Ordinary resolution 2

Ordinary resolution 3
(please refer to 

explanatory note 3)

4. to re-appoint Messrs. crowe Malaysia PLt (formerly known as Messrs. crowe 
horwath) as auditors of the company and to authorise the Directors to fix their 
remuneration.

Ordinary resolution 4 
(please refer to

explanatory note 4)

as speCial Business

to consider and if thought fit, with or without modifications to pass the following resolutions:

5.  authOritY tO issue and allOt shares pursuant tO seCtiOns 75 and 76 
Of the COmpanies aCt 2016 

“that subject to Sections 75 and 76 of the companies act 2016 (“the act”) and 
approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, the Directors be 
and are hereby authorised to issue and allot shares in the company from time to 
time, at such price, upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to 
such persons whomsoever and as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, 
deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued during the 
preceding 12 months does not exceed 10% of the total number of the issued 
shares (excluding treasury shares) of the company for the time being aND that 
the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of 
and quotation for the additional shares so issued from bursa Malaysia Securities 
berhad (“bursa Securities”); 

aND that such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of this 
resolution and continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next agM of the 
company or at the expiry of the period within which the next agM is required to be 
held after the approval was given, whichever is earlier, unless revoked or varied by 
an ordinary resolution of the company at a general meeting.”

Ordinary resolution 5
(please refer to

explanatory note 5)

  

NOtIcE OF  
twentY-seCOnd annual general meeting
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6. prOpOsed renewal Of authOritY tO purChase its Own shares Of up tO 
10% Of the tOtal numBer Of issued shares in the COmpanY 

“that, subject always to the act, the provisions of the articles of association of 
the company, the Main Market Listing requirements of bursa Securities (“Listing 
requirements”) and the approvals of all relevant authorities (if any), the board of 
Directors of the company be and is hereby unconditionally and generally authorised, 
to purchase such number of issued shares in the company as may be determined by 
the Directors of the company from time to time through bursa Securities upon such 
terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest 
of the company provided that:

(i)  the maximum aggregate number of shares which may be purchased and held 
by the company must not exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares 
of the company at any point in time (“Proposed Share buy-back”); 

(ii)  the maximum amount to be allocated for the Proposed Share buy-back shall 
not exceed the aggregate of the company’s retained profits based on the 
latest audited financial statements and/or the latest management accounts 
(where applicable) available at the time of purchase of the Proposed Share 
buy-back; and

(iii)  the shares of the company so purchased may be cancelled, retained as 
treasury shares, distributed as dividends or resold on bursa Securities, or a 
combination of any of the above, or be dealt with in such manner allowed by 
the act and Listing requirements from time to time. 

that the authority conferred by this resolution will commence immediately upon 
the passing of this resolution and will continue to be in force until: 

(a)  the conclusion of the next agM of the company following the general meeting 
at which such resolution is passed at which time the authority will lapse unless 
by ordinary resolution passed at that meeting, the authority is renewed either 
unconditionally or subject to conditions;

(b)  the expiration of the period within which the next agM of the company is 
required by law to be held; or 

(c)  the authority is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the 
shareholders of the company in a general meeting; 

whichever occurs first, but shall not prejudice the completion of the purchase by 
the company before the aforesaid expiry date and, in any event, in accordance with 
the provisions of the act, the rules and regulations made pursuant thereto and the 
guidelines issued by bursa Securities and/or any other relevant authority.

Ordinary resolution 6
(please refer to

explanatory note 6) 

aND that authority be and is hereby unconditionally and generally given to the 
Directors to take all such steps as are necessary or expedient (including without 
limitation, the opening and maintaining of central depository account(s) under 
the Securities Industry (central Depositors) act 1991, and the entering into all 
agreements, arrangements and guarantees with any party or parties) to implement, 
finalise and give full effect to the Proposed Share buy-back with full powers to 
assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments (if any) as 
may be imposed by the relevant authorities and with full power to do all such acts 
and things thereafter in accordance with the act, the provisions of the constitution 
of the company, the Listing requirements and all other relevant governmental and/ 
or regulatory authorities.”

NOtIcE OF twENtY-SEcOND aNNuaL gENEraL MEEtINg 
(CONt’D)
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7. prOpOsed adOptiOn Of new COnstitutiOn Of the COmpanY

“that the proposed new constitution as set out in Part b of the circular to 
Shareholders dated 30 april 2019 be and is hereby adopted as the constitution 
of the company in place of the existing Memorandum and articles aND that the 
Directors of the company be and is hereby authorised to assent to any conditions, 
modifications and/or amendments as may be required by any relevant authorities, 
and to do all acts and things and take such steps as may be considered necessary 
to give full effect to the foregoing.” 

special resolution
(please refer to

explanatory note 7)

8. to transact any other ordinary business for which due notice have been given.

BY Order Of the BOard

tan tong lang (maiCsa 7045482)
thien lee mee (ls 0009760)
company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
Dated this 30th day of april 2019 

notes: 

Ć.	 In	r2sp20t	o3	12pos6t21	s20ur6t62s,	on9y	m2mb2r	w5os2	nam2s	app2ar	6n	t52	Company’s	R20or1	o3	D2pos6tors	as	at	ĆĈ	Jun2	

2019 shall be eligible to attend, participate, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend, participate, speak 

and vote on his/ her behalf.

2. a member shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies. where a member appoints two (2) proxies, he/she shall 

specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

 

3. a proxy may but need not be a shareholder of the company and a shareholder may appoint any person to be his proxy without 

limitation. there shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. a proxy appointed to attend and vote at the meeting 

shall have the same rights as the shareholder to speak at the meeting.

4. where a member of the company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the company for multiple 

beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt 

authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. the instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing, 

or if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6. the original instrument appointing a proxy be deposited at the company’s Share registrar Office, boardroom Share registrars 

Sdn bhd (formerly known as Symphony Share registrars Sdn bhd), situated at Level 6, Symphony house, Pusat Dagangan Dana 

Ć,	Ja9an	PJU	ĆA/ĉċ,	ĉČĈąĆ	P2ta96n4	Jaya,	S29an4or	Daru9	E5san,	not	 92ss	t5an	ĉč	5ours	b23or2	t52	t6m2	s2t	3or	5o916n4	t56s	

meeting.

personal data privacy:-

by submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/ or representative(s) to attend, participate, speak and vote at this meeting, a 

member of the company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the company (or its agents) 

for the purpose of the processing and administration by the company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for this 

meeting and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to this meeting, and in 

order for the company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/ or guidelines (collectively, the 

“Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/ or representative(s) to 

the company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/ or representative(s) for the collection, 

use and disclosure by the company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/ or representative(s) for the Purposes, 

and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages 

as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.

NOtIcE OF twENtY-SEcOND aNNuaL gENEraL MEEtINg 
(CONt’D)
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NOtIcE OF twENtY-SEcOND aNNuaL gENEraL MEEtINg 
(CONt’D)
 

explanatory notes to Ordinary and special Business:

1. item 1 of the agenda

 to receive the audited financial statements for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2018

 this Agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provisions of Sections 248(2) and 340(1)(a) of the Act do not require a 

formal approval of the shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, this Agenda item is not put forward to the 

shareholders for voting.

2. item 2 of the agenda

 to approve the payment of Directors’ fees and other benefits payable

 pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Act, fees and benefits payable to the Directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall 

be approved by shareholders at a general meeting. the Company is requesting for the shareholders’ approval for the payment 

of fees in accordance with the proposed remuneration structure set out below: 

director’s fee

(rm)

meeting allowance

(rm)

Business travel,

accommodation

and etc.

(rm)

Independent

Non-Executive Chairman

7,700 per month 500.00 per meeting 20,000 per annum

Independent

Non-Executive Director

5,500 per month 500.00 per meeting 20,000 per annum

3.  item 3 of the agenda

 Re-election of retiring Directors 

 Article 95 provides that one-third of the Directors of the Company for the time being shall retire by rotation at the AGM of 

the Company. All the Directors shall retire from office once at least in each three years but shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. 

tung Kai Hung and En. Mohd Zaky Bin Othman are standing for re-election as Directors of the Company. En. Mohd Zaky, who is 

an Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”), has reaffirmed his independence based on independence criteria applied by 

the Company which is also used in the yearly assessment of INEDs independence and fulfilled the independence definitions as 

prescribed under the Listing Requirements.

 For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Directors to stand for re-election at this meeting and in line with practice 

5.1 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, the Nomination Committee has assessed each of the retiring Directors 

under Resolutions 2 and 3, and considered the following: 

(a)  the Directors performance and contribution based on the results of the annual evaluation of board; 

(b)  the Director’s level of contribution to the Board deliberations through his skills, experience and strength in qualities; and 

(c)  their abilities to act in the best interests of the Company in decision-making. 

 Based on the results of the annual evaluation of board, the individual Directors met the performance criteria required of an 

effective and high performance Board. Hence, the Board has recommended the re-election of Mr. tung and En. Mohd Zaky as 

Directors of the Company. 
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explanatory notes to Ordinary and special Business: (Cont’d)

4.  item 4 of the agenda 

 re-appointment of auditors

 the audit committee and the board have considered the re-appointment of Messrs. crowe Malaysia PLt (formerly known as 

Messrs. crowe horwath) as auditors of the company and collectively agreed that they have met the relevant criteria prescribed 

by Paragraph 15.21 of Listing requirements.

5. item 5 of the agenda 

 authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the companies act 2016

 the company would like to act expeditiously on opportunities to expand the group’s business, if and when they arise. the 

proposed Ordinary resolution 5, if passed, will authorise the Directors to issue and allot ordinary shares up to 10% of the total 

number of the issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the company and will provide flexibility to the company for any 

possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares, for the purpose of funding current and/or 

future investment project(s), working capital and/or acquisition. 

 In order to avoid incurring additional cost and time involved in convening a general meeting to approve such an allotment of 

shares, it is thus considered appropriate that the Directors be authorised to issue and allot shares in the company up to 10% 

of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the company in the forthcoming agM. the renewed general 

Mandate will commence from the date of the 22nd agM and such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the 

next agM or at the expiry of the period within which the next agM is required to be held after the approval was given, whichever 

is the earlier, unless such approval is revoked or varied by a resolution of the company at a general meeting. 

 the general mandate for the allotment of shares is a renewal mandate. No shares had been issued and allotted by the company 

s6n02	obta6n6n4	t52	sa61	aut5or6ty	3rom	6ts	s5ar25o912rs	at	t52	9ast	AGM	5291	on	ćČ	Jun2	ćąĆč.

6.  item 6 of the agenda

 Proposed renewal of authority to purchase its own shares of up to 10% of the total number of issued shares in the company 

 the proposed Ordinary resolution 6, if passed, will enable the Directors of the company to purchase company’s shares up to 

10% of the total number of issued shares of the company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the total 

amount of the retained profits of the company based on the latest audited financial statements and/or the latest management 

accounts (where applicable) available at the time of purchase of the Proposed Share buy-back. 

 Further information on the proposed renewal of authority to purchase its own shares is set out in the Share buy-back Statement 

to Shareholders dated 30 april 2019 which is dispatched together with the company’s annual report 2018.

7. item 7 of the agenda

 Proposed adoption of a New company’s constitution

 the proposed Special resolution if passed, will bring the company’s constitution in line with the enforcement of the act, Listing 

requirements and to enhance administrative efficiency. the proposed new constitution shall take effect once the Special 

resolution has been passed by a majority of not less than 75% of such members who are entitled to vote and do vote in person 

or by proxy at the 22nd agM.

NOtIcE OF twENtY-SEcOND aNNuaL gENEraL MEEtINg 
(CONt’D)
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fOrm Of prOXY

I/we, ..................................................................................................................................................  (FuLL NaME IN bLOcK caPItaL)

*NrIc/company No.  ...............................................................................................of ................................................................................

..........................................................................................................................................................................................  (FuLL aDDrESS)

being a member(s) of advanCeCOn hOldings Berhad (426965-m)  hereby appoint (Proxy 1) 

.............................................................................................................................................................  (FuLL NaME IN bLOcK caPItaL)

*NrIc No./Passport No. .........................................................................................of ................................................................................

..........................................................................................................................................................................................  (FuLL aDDrESS)

and failing* him/her (Proxy 2)  ....................................................................................................(FuLL NaME IN bLOcK caPItaL)

*NrIc No./Passport No. .........................................................................................of ................................................................................

..........................................................................................................................................................................................  (FuLL aDDrESS)
and failing *him/her, the chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on *my/our behalf at the 
twenty-Second (“22nd”) annual general Meeting (“agM”) of the company to be held at greens III (Sports wing), 
Trop60ana	Go93	&	Country	R2sort,	Ja9an	K29ab	Trop60ana,	ĉČĉĆą	P2ta96n4	Jaya,	S29an4or	Daru9	E5san	on	T5urs1ay,	
ćą	Jun2	ćąĆĎ	at	Ćą.ąą	a.m.	an1	at	any	a17ournm2nt	t52r2o3.

the proportion of *my/our holding to be represented by *my/our proxies are as follows:-

first proxy

No. of Shares:   ............................................

Percentage :   ............................................  %

second proxy

No. of Shares:   ............................................

Percentage :   ............................................  %

*My/Our proxy is to vote as indicated below:-

agenda for against

Ordinary resolutions

1 to approve the payment of Directors’ fees and other benefits of up to 
RMĈĊą,ąąą	6n	r2sp20t	o3	t52	p2r6o1	3rom	ćĆ	Jun2	ćąĆĎ	unt69	t52	0on09us6on	
of the next agM of the company.

2 to re-elect tung Kai hung as Director.

3 to re-elect Mohd Zaky bin Othman as Director.

4 to re-appoint Messrs. crowe Malaysia PLt (formerly known as Messrs. crowe 
horwath) as auditors of the company and to authorise the Directors to fix 
their remuneration.

5 authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the 
companies act 2016

6 Proposed renewal of authority to purchase its own shares of up to 10% of 
the total number of issued shares in the company

special resolution

7 Proposed adoption of new constitution of the company

Please indicate with an “x” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast.  If no specific instruction 
is given on the voting, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting on the resolution at his/her discretion.

Dated this  .................................  day of ............................  2019
  ...........................................................................
 * Signature/common Seal of shareholder
 contact no.:

*  Strike out whichever not applicable

✄

No. of Shares held

cDS account No.

tel No. (during office hours)

advanCeCOn hOldings Berhad (426965-m)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)



the Share registrar of

advanCeCOn hOldings Berhad (426965-m)

boardroom Share registrars Sdn bhd

(formerly known as Symphony Share registrars Sdn bhd)

Level 6, Symphony house, Pusat Dagangan Dana 1

Ja9an	PJU	ĆA/ĉċ,	ĉČĈąĆ	P2ta96n4	Jaya,	S29an4or	Daru9	E5san

Stamp

Please fold here

Please fold here

Fold this flap for sealing

Notes: 

Ć.	 In	r2sp20t	o3	12pos6t21	s20ur6t62s,	on9y	m2mb2r	w5os2	nam2s	app2ar	6n	t52	Company’s	R20or1	o3	D2pos6tors	as	at	ĆĈ	Jun2	ćąĆĎ	s5a99	b2	29646b92	to	att2n1,	part606pat2,	
speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend, participate, speak and vote on his/ her behalf.

2. a member shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies. where a member appoints two (2) proxies, he/she shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings 
to be represented by each proxy.

3. a proxy may but need not be a shareholder of the company and a shareholder may appoint any person to be his proxy without limitation. there shall be no restriction as 
to the qualification of the proxy. a proxy appointed to attend and vote at the meeting shall have the same rights as the shareholder to speak at the meeting.

4. where a member of the company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account 
(“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5. the instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the appointer is a corporation, either 
under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6. the original instrument appointing a proxy be deposited at the company’s Share registrar Office, boardroom Share registrars Sdn bhd (formerly known as Symphony 
Share registrars Sdn bhd),	s6tuat21	at	L2v29	ċ,	Symp5ony	Hous2,	Pusat	Da4an4an	Dana	Ć,	Ja9an	PJU	ĆA/ĉċ,	ĉČĈąĆ	P2ta96n4	Jaya,	S29an4or	Daru9	E5san,	not	92ss	t5an	ĉč	
hours before the time set for holding this meeting.

personal data privacy:-

by submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and /or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of twenty-
Second (22nd) agM dated 30th day of april 2019. 



16,18 & 20 Jalan Pekaka 8/3,
Seksyen 8, Kota Damansara,
47810 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

Tel : +603 6157 9563
Fax : +603 6157 0469
Email : info@advancecon.com.my

www.advancecon.com.my
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

STOCK CODE : 5281 
COMPANY NAME : ADVANCECON HOLDINGS BERHAD 
FINANCIAL YEAR : December 31, 2018 
 

 

OUTLINE: 

 

SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing 

Requirements. 

 

SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES 

PERSUANT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA 

MALAYSIA 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures) 

of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is 

only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the 

Exchange that are required to comply with the above Guidelines. 
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SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing 

Requirements. 

 

Intended Outcome 

Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the 

company. 

 

Practice 1.1 

The board should set the company’s strategic aims, ensure that the necessary resources are 
in place for the company to meet its objectives and review management performance. The 

board should set the company’s values and standards, and ensure that its obligations to its 
shareholders and other stakeholders are understood and met. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Advancecon Holdings Berhad ;͞AdǀaŶĐeĐoŶ͟ oƌ ͞the CoŵpaŶǇ͟Ϳ is led 

by an experienced, competent and diversified Board that is made up 

of Directors with appropriate competencies, knowledge, skills and 

experience from diverse backgrounds. The Directors collectively, set 

the CoŵpaŶǇ’s stƌategiĐ oďjeĐtiǀes aŶd eŶsuƌe that the ŶeĐessaƌǇ 
resources are in place for the Company to meet its objectives and 

review management performance.  

 

The Board is responsible for the oversight and overall management of 

the Company. The Executive Directors are responsible to manage the 

day-to-day operations of the business, implementation of Board 

policies and making strategic decisions for the business while the 

Independent Non-EǆeĐutiǀe DiƌeĐtoƌs ;͞INED͟Ϳ ĐoŶtƌiďute theiƌ 

independent judgment to the Board on issues of strategy and 

performance. 

 

The Board is guided by its Board Charter and the Code of Conduct and 

Ethics ;͞Code͟Ϳ ǁhiĐh ĐleaƌlǇ sets out the Boaƌd’s ƌoles aŶd 
responsibilities and the standard of conduct expected of Directors 

respectively.  

 

Board Committees, which operate within its respective defined Terms 

of Reference ;͞TOR͟Ϳ, have been established to assist the Board in the 

discharge of its specific duties and responsibilities. Hence, the 

Chairmen of the respective Committees report to the Board the 

outcome of deliberations of each Committee’s meetings. 

 

IŶ oƌdeƌ to eŶsuƌe the effeĐtiǀe disĐhaƌge of the Boaƌd’s fuŶĐtioŶs aŶd 
responsibilities in meeting the objectives of the Company and of the 

Group, the Board had carried out the following activities during the 

fiŶaŶĐial Ǉeaƌ eŶded ϯϭ DeĐeŵďeƌ ϮϬϭ8 ;͞FYϮϬϭ8͟Ϳ: 
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(a) The Chairman ensures that decisions are taken on a sound and 

well-informed basis, including by ensuring that all strategic and 

critical issues are considered by the Board and that Directors 

receive the relevant information on a timely basis. 

 

(b) The MaŶageŵeŶt’s peƌfoƌŵaŶĐe uŶdeƌ the leadeƌship of the 
Gƌoup Chief EǆeĐutiǀe OffiĐeƌ ;͞Gƌoup CEO͟Ϳ is ŵoŶitoƌed   
through a yearly performance evaluation. 

 

(c) The Boaƌd thƌough the NoŵiŶatioŶ Coŵŵittee ;͞NC͟Ϳ is 
responsible to ensure the Board is represented by individuals 

with an optimal mix of qualifications, skills and experience.  

 

(d) The ReŵuŶeƌatioŶ Coŵŵittee ;͞RC͟Ϳ is ƌespoŶsiďle to foƌŵulate 
and review the remuneration for Directors and Senior 

Management of the Company to ensure the same remain 

competitive, appropriate and in alignment with the prevailing 

market practices. 

 

(e) Through the Risk Management and Sustainability Committee 

;͞RM“C͟Ϳ, the Board oversees the risk management framework 

of the Group. The RMSC assists the Board to fulfill its 

responsibilities with regards to risk governance and risk 

management in order to manage the overall risks exposure of 

the Gƌoup. The Audit Coŵŵittee ;͞AC͟Ϳ reviews the internal 

controls of the Group to ensure, as far as possible, the protection 

of its assets aŶd its shaƌeholdeƌs’ iŶteƌest. 
 

(f) The Board maintains an open communication policy that enables 

the Board and its Management to communicate effectively with 

shareholders and members of the general public. Whenever 

appropriate, the Board or the relevant management personnel 

will respond to queries from the stakeholders on a timely 

manner 

 

(g) The Board ensures that financial statements prepared for each 

financial year have been made out in accordance with the 

applicable approved accounting standards and give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at 

the end of the financial year. In preparing the financial 

statements the Board has: 

 

• Ensure adherence to accounting policies and applied them 

consistently.  

• Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent.  

• Ensured that all applicable accounting standards have been 

adhered to.  
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• Ensured financial statements are prepared on the going 

concern basis as the Directors have a reasonable expectation, 

having made enquiries that the Group has adequate resources 

to continue in operations for the foreseeable future. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the 

company. 

 

Practice 1.2 

A Chairman of the board who is responsible for instilling good corporate governance 

practices, leadership and effectiveness of the board is appointed. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Mr Yeoh Chong Keat is Chairman / INED of the Company. He is 

responsible for leadership of the Board and presides over the 

meetings of the Board to ensure that the Board performs its roles and 

responsibilities effectively at the same time and discharges its 

fiduciary duties diligently. 

 

Other than leading the Board meetings and meetings of shareholders, 

the Chairman ensures that all relevant issues for the successful 

steǁaƌdship of the Gƌoup’s ďusiŶess aƌe on the Board agenda to 

facilitate effective decision making by the Board. 

 

During the FY2018, the Chairman had: 

 

(a) Provided leadership for the Board so that the board can perform 

its roles and responsibilities effectively and setting its agenda. 

The Chairman is also responsible for creating an environment for 

open, robust and effective debate. This includes ensuring, via the 

Company Secretary, that the Directors receive accurate, timely 

and clear information. 

 

(b) Set the Board agenda with Company Secretary and ensured that 

Board members receive complete and accurate information in a 

timely manner. 

 

(c) Led Board meetings and discussions. 

 

(d) Managing Boardroom dynamics by promoting a culture of 

openness and debate; encouraging active participation and 

allowing dissenting views to be freely expressed. 

 

(e)  Acting as the conduit between Management and the Board, 

although all Directors shall have the opportunity to get to know 

key members of the Management team. 

 

(f)  Ensured appropriate steps are taken to provide effective 

communication with stakeholders and that their views are 

communicated to the Board as a whole. 
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(g)  Led the Board in establishing and monitoring good corporate 

governance practices in the company. 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the 

company. 

 

Practice 1.3 

The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by different individuals. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The positions of Chairman and Group CEO of Advancecon are held by 

two different individuals. The Chairman, Mr Yeoh Chong Keat leads 

and manages the Board in its collective oversight of management by 

focusing on governance and compliance whereas the Group CEO, 

Dato’ Phum Ang Kia manages the business strategy and day-to-day 

operations of the Company.  

 

The roles of Chairman and the Group CEO are segregated and clearly 

defined by their individual position descriptions. The distinct and 

separate roles of the Chairman and Group CEO, with their clear 

division of roles and responsibilities ensures a balance of power and 

authority, such that no one individual has unfettered decision-making 

powers. 

 

The roles of the Chairman and Group CEO are defined in the Board 

Charter which is available on the CoŵpaŶǇ’s website at 

www.advancecon.com.my. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the 

company. 

 

Practice 1.4 

The board is supported by a suitably qualified and competent Company Secretary to provide 

sound governance advice, ensure adherence to rules and procedures, and advocate 

adoption of corporate governance best practices. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board is assisted by two Company Secretaries who are qualified to 

act as company secretaries under Section 235(2) of the Companies Act 

2016 ;͞the AĐt͟Ϳ. One of them is a member of Malaysian Institute of 

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (MAICSA) whilst the the 

other is a Licensed Company Secretary (LS).  

 

During the FY2018, the Company Secretaries had performed the 

following tasks:  

 

(a)  Supported the Board and played an important role to facilitate 

the overall compliance with the Act, Main Market Listing 

Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Beƌhad ;͞Buƌsa 
“eĐuƌities͟Ϳ ;͞MMLR͟Ϳ and other relevant laws and regulations 

by updating the Board at the Board meetings. 

 

(b)  Assisted the Board and Board Committees to function effectively 

and in accordance with their respective TOR and best practices 

and ensuring adherence to the existing Board policies and 

procedures. 

 

(c)  Attended Board Meetings and ensured the proper conduct of the 

meetings. Deliberations and decisions were accurately minuted 

and kept in the minutes books.  

 

(d)  Managed processes pertaining to the annual shareholders 

meeting. 

 

(f)  “eƌǀed as a foĐal poiŶt foƌ stakeholdeƌs’ ĐoŵŵuŶiĐatioŶ aŶd 
engagement on corporate governance issues.  

 

The roles and responsibilities of the Company Secretaries are set out 

iŶ the CoŵpaŶǇ’s Boaƌd Chaƌteƌ, ǁhiĐh is aǀailaďle oŶ the CoŵpaŶǇ’s 
website at www.advancecon.com.my. 
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The Company Secretaries had attended the necessary training 

programmes, conferences, seminars and/or forums organised by the 

CoŵpaŶies CoŵŵissioŶ of MalaǇsia ;͞CCM͟Ϳ, MAIC“A, the “eĐuƌities 
CoŵŵissioŶ MalaǇsia ;͞“C͟Ϳ aŶd Buƌsa “eĐuƌities as ǁell as iŶ house 
training so as to keep themselves abreast with the latest changes in 

laws and regulatory requirements that are relevant to their profession 

and to provide the necessary advisory role to the Board. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the 

company. 

 

Practice 1.5 

Directors receive meeting materials, which are complete and accurate within a reasonable 

period prior to the meeting. Upon conclusion of the meeting, the minutes are circulated in a 

timely manner. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Unless otherwise agreed, notice of each meeting confirming the 

venue, time, date and agenda of the meeting together with relevant 

Board papers shall be forwarded to each director no later than seven 

days before the date of the meeting.  

 

This is to ensure that the Board papers comprising due notice of issues 

to be discussed, supporting information and documentations were 

provided to the Board sufficiently in advance. Furthermore, Directors 

are given sufficient time to read the Board papers and seek for any 

clarification or further explanation from Management and the 

Company Secretaries. The deliberations of the Board in terms of the 

issues disĐussed duƌiŶg the ŵeetiŶgs aŶd the Boaƌd’s ĐoŶĐlusioŶs iŶ 
discharging its duties and responsibilities are recorded in the minutes 

of meetings by the Company Secretaries. 

 

The Board has access to all information within the Company to enable 

them to discharge their duties and responsibilities and is supplied in a 

timely basis with information and reports on financial, regulatory and 

audit matters by way of Board papers for informed decision making.  

 

Senior Management and/or external consultants may be invited to 

attend Board Meetings to advise and/or furnish the Board with 

relevant information.  

 

To facilitate smooth operation of the businesses of the Group, follow 

up actions requested by the Board or Board Committees pertaining to 

the decisions of the Board or the Board Committees, were addressed 

by the Management within the timeline given. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 
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Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

There is demarcation of responsibilities between the board, board committees and 

management.  

 

There is clarity in the authority of the board, its committees and individual directors. 

 

Practice 2.1 

The board has a board charter which is periodically reviewed and published on the 

company’s website. The board charter clearly identifies–  

▪ the respective roles and responsibilities of the board, board committees, 

individual directors and management; and 

▪ issues and decisions reserved for the board. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board is guided by its Board Charter which clearly sets out the 

Boaƌd’s stƌategiĐ iŶteŶt, ƌoles aŶd ƌespoŶsiďilities iŶ disĐhaƌgiŶg its 
fiduciary and leadership functions. The Board Charter serves as a main 

source of reference and also provides insights to prospective Board 

members and Senior Management. It clearly explains the relationship 

and interaction between the Board, Board Committees, Chairman and 

Executive Directors. Hence, the Board Charter is reviewed periodically 

and updated in accordance with the needs of the Company to ensure 

its effeĐtiǀeŶess aŶd ĐoŶsisteŶĐǇ ǁith the Boaƌd’s oďjeĐtiǀes aŶd 
corporate vision.  

 

The Board Charter was adopted by the Board on 28 November 2017. 

The current Board Charter is accessible for reference on the 

CoŵpaŶǇ’s ǁeďsite at www.advancecon.com.my. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy 

corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.  

 

The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered 

acceptable behaviour and practice in the company. 

 

Practice 3.1 

The board establishes a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the company, and together with 

management implements its policies and procedures, which include managing conflicts of 

interest, preventing the abuse of power, corruption, insider trading and money laundering.  

 

The Code of Conduct and Ethics is published on the company’s website. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board is committed in maintaining a corporate culture which 

engenders ethical conduct. The Board has formalised the Code as a 

guidance to be followed by Directors and all employees with regards 

to the Gƌoup’s staŶdaƌd of iŶtegƌitǇ aŶd ƌules of Đonduct to be 

observed in the performance of work and business practices.  

 

The core sections of the Code covered the following principles:  

• Act with Integrity and Ethics 

• Protect Advancecon Assets and Intellectual Property 

• Comply with Laws and Regulations 

• Working with One Another 

 

The Board will periodically review the Code when necessary to ensure 

it remains relevant and appropriate. The details of the Code are 

aǀailaďle foƌ ƌefeƌeŶĐe at the CoŵpaŶǇ’s ǁeďsite at 
www.advancecon.com.my. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy 

corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.  

 

The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered 

acceptable behaviour and practice in the company. 

 

Practice 3.2 

The board establishes, reviews and together with management implements policies and 

procedures on whistleblowing. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board has established a Whistle Blowing Policy to provide an 

avenue to facilitate employees of the Group or members of the public 

to raise any concerns or disclose any improper conduct within the 

Group and to take appropriate action to resolve it effectively. 

 

Whistle-blowers can report any improper conduct by email to the AC 

Chairman, En Mohd Zaky bin Othman at 

mohd_zaky@advancecon.com.my or post it to AdǀaŶĐeĐoŶ’s offiĐe.  
 

The WhistleďloǁiŶg PoliĐǇ is aǀailaďle oŶ the CoŵpaŶǇ’s ǁeďsite at 
www.advancecon.com.my. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.1 

At least half of the board comprises independent directors. For Large Companies, the board 

comprises a majority independent directors. 

 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

:  

Explanation for 

departure 

: The current Board comprises seven members with three being INED.  

 

Designation Number of 

Directors 

Percentage 

(%) 

Executive Directors 4 57.14 

Independent and Non-Executive Directors 3 42.86 

Total 7 100.00 

 

The Board is in compliance with Chapter 15.02 of the MMLR, which 

requires that at least two Directors or one-third of the Board of the 

Company, whichever is the higher, are INED. 

 

The Board is mindful that it does not comprise at least half of INED as it 

is of the view that the present INED, with the breadth of professional 

background and experience, have enabled the Board to exercise 

objective judgement on various issues through their sharing of 

impartial, objective and unbiased opinions and viewpoints. The Board is 

satisfied that the Independent Directors are independent of 

management and free from management and/or any business or other 

relationship which could interfere with the exercise of independent 

judgement, objectivity and the ability to act in the best interest of the 

Company. 

 

The current composition of the Board Committees (with the exception 

of the RMSC) however is made up of only INED. This affirms the Boaƌd’s 
commitment towards independence in Board leadership and provides 

stƌoŶg ĐheĐk aŶd ďalaŶĐe iŶ the Boaƌd’s goǀeƌŶaŶĐe fuŶĐtioŶ. 
Therefore, the lack of the necessary number of INED has not 

jeopardised the independence of Board deliberations and all decisions 

have been made in the best interest of the Company and the Group.  

 

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 
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Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.2 

The tenure of an independent director does not exceed a cumulative term limit of nine years. 

Upon completion of the nine years, an independent director may continue to serve on the 

board as a non-independent director.  

 

If the board intends to retain an independent director beyond nine years, it should justify and 

seek annual shareholders’ approval. If the board continues to retain the independent director 

after the twelfth year, the board should seek annual shareholders’ approval through a two-

tier voting process. 

 

Application : Not applicable - No independent director(s) serving beyond 9 years 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: During the FY2018, none of the Independent Directors have served as 

Independent Director for a cumulative of nine years or more. 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.3 - Step Up 

The board has a policy which limits the tenure of its independent directors to nine years. 

 

Application : Not Adopted 

Explanation on 

adoption of the 

practice 

:  

 



 

 

19 

 

Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.4 

Appointment of board and senior management are based on objective criteria, merit and with 

due regard for diversity in skills, experience, age, cultural background and gender. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board recognises that having a range of different skills, 

backgrounds and experiences is essential to ensure effective decision 

making and governance in the best interests of the Company.  

 

The normal selection criteria of a Director are based on an effective 

blend of competencies, skills, experience and knowledge so as to 

strengthen the Board. 

 

The NC is responsible for identifying, assessing and recommending the 

right candidates to the Board as well as reviewing the composition and 

performance of the Board. In making its recommendations, the NC will 

consider, among others, the mix of skills, knowledge, experience, 

diversity (including gender diversity), background, integrity, 

competence, time commitment and independence in order to meet 

the strategic objectives and business requirements of the Group. 

 

During the FY2018, the diversity for the Board and Senior 

Management are as follows:  

 

Board of Directors  

Gender: Male (7); Female (0)  

Age: 40-49 (1); 50-59 (2); 60 & above (4)  

Ethnicity: Malay (2); Chinese (5); Indian (0)  

 

Senior Management  

Gender: Male (3); Female (0)  

Age: 30-39 (1); 40-49 (2); 50-59 (0); 60 & above (0)  

Ethnicity: Malay (0); Chinese (3); Indian (0) 

 

Having assessed the size, composition and diversity of the Board 

annually, the NC and the Board opined that the existing Board has the 

requisite competencies and capacity to effectively discharge its 

functions and responsibilities. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.5 

The board discloses in its annual report the company’s policies on gender diversity, its 
targets and measures to meet those targets. For Large Companies, the board must have at 

least 30% women directors. 

 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

:  

Explanation for 

departure 

: The Board is supportive of the recommendation of MCCG to the 

establishment of boardroom and workforce gender diversity policy. 

The Board does not have specific policies on setting target for the 

appointment of female Director to the Board. 

 

The NC will evaluate, assess and recommend the right candidate to 

the Board based on the ĐaŶdidates’ ĐoŵpeteŶĐǇ, skills, ĐhaƌaĐteƌ, tiŵe 
commitment, knowledge, experience and other qualities in meeting 

the needs of the Group. Equal opportunity is given and the Board does 

not practise discrimination of any form, whether based on age, 

gender, race and religion throughout the organisation. Nevertheless, 

the Board will evaluate and match the criteria of the potential 

candidate as well as considering the boardroom diversity for any new 

proposed appointment of directors.  

 

Currently, our Board members comprise all male Directors. However, 

to be iŶ liŶe ǁith the ĐouŶtƌǇ’s aspiƌatioŶal target of 30% 

representation of women on Board, the Board may consider 

appointing female Directors in future to bring about gender diversity. 

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.6 

In identifying candidates for appointment of directors, the board does not solely rely on 

recommendations from existing board members, management or major shareholders. The 

board utilises independent sources to identify suitably qualified candidates. 

 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The current process with regards to the appointment of new Directors 

to the Board is based on the recommendation of the NC. The Board 

relies on the existing network and referrals from existing board 

members, senior management and major shareholders as primary 

means to source for new Directors as they represent a tried and tested 

method to sourcing high-calibre directors with a sound understanding 

of the business. 

 

The Directors appointment process is carried out based on methodical 

and robust process undertaken by the NC. Candidates recommended 

are thoroughly assessed based on their competence, integrity, 

character, time commitment and experience as stated in Paragraph 

2.20A of Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into 

account diverse perspectives and insights. 

 

Practice 4.7 

The Nominating Committee is chaired by an Independent Director or the Senior Independent 

Director. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The NC is made up entirely of INEDs in compliance with paragraph 

15.08A(1) of the MMLR.  

 

The NC is chaired by Mr Yeoh Chong Keat, who is the Independent 

Non-Executive Chairman of the Group.  

 

The composition of the NC can be found on Page 4 of the Annual 

Report ϮϬϭ8 ;͞AR͟Ϳ under Corporate Information. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Stakeholders are able to form an opinion on the overall effectiveness of the board and 

individual directors. 

 

Practice 5.1 

The board should undertake a formal and objective annual evaluation to determine the 

effectiveness of the board, its committees and each individual director. The board should 

disclose how the assessment was carried out and its outcome.  

 

For Large Companies, the board engages independent experts periodically to facilitate 

objective and candid board evaluations. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: During the FY2018, the NC conducted a formal and objective internal 

annual assessment of the Board performance as a whole, the Board 

Committees and individual Directors, based on self and peer 

assessment which was undertaken internally. The assessment covers 

the size and composition of the Board as well as skill mix, industry 

experience, roles and responsibilities, and effectiveness of the Board, 

Board Committees and individual Directors based on a set of 

questionnaires and rating system. 

 

Below are the criteria used to assess Board, Board Committees and 

individual Directors respectively during the financial year:  

 

(a)  DiƌeĐtoƌs’ self-assessment 

•  kŶoǁledge aďout the Gƌoup’s ǀisioŶ aŶd ŵission;  

•  individual roles, responsibilities and functions including but 

not limited to participation / deliberation at Board 

meetings, kŶoǁledge aďout the Gƌoup’s fiŶaŶĐial status / 
performance and the state of affairs of the Group; 

•  competency and contribution.  

 

(b)  Board and Board Coŵŵittees’ assessŵeŶt  
•  Board mix authority and composition to function 

effectively;  

•  quality of information and decision making process with 

regards to financial performance and audit, risk 

management, internal control and communication with 

stakeholders.  

 

The NC has adopted the saŵe Đƌiteƌia of ͞IŶdepeŶdeŶĐe͟ used iŶ the 
defiŶitioŶ of ͞iŶdepeŶdeŶt diƌeĐtoƌs͟ pƌesĐƌiďed uŶdeƌ the MMLR aŶd 
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance ;͞CG͟Ϳ ;͞MCCG͟Ϳ. 
 

The results of the assessments were compiled by the Company 

Secretary for deliberation and recommendation at the NC meeting 

and the NC will subsequently table the matter to the Board for their 
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consideration.  

 

The Board had undertaken the annual evaluation of themselves, its 

committees and each individual director for FY2018. The Board was 

satisfied with the outcome of the evaluation and was of the view that 

the internal evaluation was adequate to determine the overall 

effectiveness of the Board and individual Directors.  

 

The Board recognises that it is important that all Directors should be 

able to dedicate sufficient time to the Company to discharge their 

responsibilities effectively. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into 

account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior 

management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.  

 

Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent 

process. 

 

Practice 6.1 

The board has in place policies and procedures to determine the remuneration of directors 

and senior management, which takes into account the demands, complexities and 

performance of the company as well as skills and experience required. The policies and 

procedures are periodically reviewed and made available on the company’s website. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The RC is authorised by the Board to establish a formal and 

transparent procedure for developing policy on Executive DiƌeĐtoƌs’ 
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual 

Directors.  

 

The Board believes in a remuneration policy that fairly supports the 

DiƌeĐtoƌs’ ƌespoŶsiďilities aŶd fiduĐiaƌǇ duties iŶ steeƌiŶg the Gƌoup to 
achieve its long-term goals and enhance shaƌeholdeƌs’ ǀalue. The 
Board offers a competitive remuneration package in order to attract, 

develop and retain talented individuals to serve as Directors.  

 

The RC’s principal objective is to evaluate, deliberate and recommend 

to the Board a remuneration policy for the Executive Directors that is 

fairly guided by market norms and industry practice. The RC also 

recommends the Executive DiƌeĐtoƌs’ ƌeŵuŶeƌatioŶ aŶd ďeŶefits 
based on their individual performances and that of the Group.  

 

The determination of the remuneration for INED is a matter of the 

Board as a whole. The level of remuneration for INED reflects the 

amount paid by other comparable organisations, adjusted for the 

experience and levels of responsibilities undertaken by the particular 

INED concerned.  

 

The remuneration package of INED will be a matter to be deliberated 

by the Board, with the Director concerned abstaining from 

deliberations and voting on deliberations in respect of his individual 

ƌeŵuŶeƌatioŶ. The aggƌegate aŶŶual DiƌeĐtoƌs’ fees aŶd otheƌ ďeŶefits 
payable are to be approved by shareholders at the Annual General 

MeetiŶg ;͞AGM͟Ϳ ďased oŶ ƌeĐoŵŵeŶdatioŶs of the Boaƌd. 
 

The remuneration components of key Senior Management shall 

consist of basic salary, performance based bonus, benefits-in-kind and 

other incentives (where applicable). The remuneration of key Senior 
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Management is determined at a level which enables the Company to 

attract, develop and retain high performing and talented individual 

with the relevant experience, level of expertise and skills. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into 

account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior 
management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.  

 

Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent 

process. 

 

Practice 6.2 

The board has a Remuneration Committee to implement its policies and procedures on 

remuneration including reviewing and recommending matters relating to the remuneration of 

board and senior management.  

 

The Committee has written Terms of Reference which deals with its authority and duties and 

these Terms are disclosed on the company’s website. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: In line with the best practices of MCCG, the Board has set up a RC 

which comprises exclusively of INEDs in order to assist the Board for 

determining the remuneration of DiƌeĐtoƌs’ and Senior Management. 

 

AŵoŶgst the RC’s fuŶĐtioŶs aŶd duties outliŶed iŶ its TOR aƌe:  
 

(a) To pƌoǀide assistaŶĐe aŶd iŵpleŵeŶt the CoŵpaŶǇ’s poliĐies 
and procedures on remuneration including reviewing and 

recommending matters relating to remuneration and key 

performance indicators of the Directors and Senior 

Management.  

 

(b)  To ensure the Gƌoup’s ƌeŵuŶeƌatioŶ paĐkage aŶd keǇ 
performance indicators are appropriately established after 

taking into account the demands, complexities and performance 

of the Company as well as skills and experience required and are 

aligŶed ǁith ouƌ Gƌoup’s ǀisioŶ, ǀalues aŶd ďusiŶess oďjeĐtiǀes, 
market trends and information sources on the rates of salary for 

similar jobs in selected group of comparable companies.  

 

(c) To ensure a fair differential between the remuneration of 

Directors and Senior Management and other levels of 

management is maintained.  

 

(d) To review and determine the benefits in kind for the Directors 

and Senior Management. 

 

(e) To provide assistance to the Board on matters relating to, 

amongst others, and ensure alignment of management 

grievances pertaining to compensation, compensation strategy, 

management development and other compensation 
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arrangements in line with market practice.  

 

The present members of the RC are as follows: 

• Fathi Ridzuan bin Ahmad Fauzi, Chairman (INED)  

• Yeoh Chong Keat, Member (Independent Non-Executive 

Chairman)  

• Mohd Zaky bin Othman, Member (INED)  

 

The TOR of the RC ĐaŶ ďe ǀieǁed at the CoŵpaŶǇ’s ǁeďsite at 
www.advancecon.com.my. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 

management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration 

the company’s performance. 
 

Practice 7.1 

There is detailed disclosure on named basis for the remuneration of individual directors. The 

remuneration breakdown of individual directors includes fees, salary, bonus, benefits in-kind 

and other emoluments. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The details of the DiƌeĐtoƌs’ ReŵuŶeƌatioŶ oŶ a Ŷaŵed ďasis aŶd paid 
by the Company and its subsidiaries (including the components of 

diƌeĐtoƌs’ fees, salaƌǇ, ďoŶus, ďeŶefits iŶ-kind and other emoluments) 

during the FY2018 were disclosed in the CG Overview Statement of 

the CoŵpaŶǇ’s Annual Report. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 

management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration 

the company’s performance. 
 

Practice 7.2 

The board discloses on a named basis the top five senior management’s remuneration 
component including salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments in bands of 

RM50,000. 

 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

:  

Explanation for 

departure 

: Disclosure on the remuneration of the top five Senior Management in 

the bands of RM50,000 is not provided in the CG Overview Statement 

of the CoŵpaŶǇ’s Annual Report.  

 

The remuneration of the Executive Directors have been tabled in the 

CG Overview Statement of the Annual Report.  

 

At this juncture, the Board is of the opinion that the disclosure on the 

remuneration of the other Senior Management on a named basis 

would not be in the best interest of the Group due to confidentiality 

and sensitivity concerns as well as the issue of competition and staff 

poaching.  

 

The Board will ensure that the remuneration of the Senior 

Management commensurate with their duties and responsibilities and 

the performance of the Company. 

 

Based on the above rationale, the Company is not in favour of 

disclosing the remuneration of the top five Senior Management on a 

named basis 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 

management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration 

the company’s performance. 
 

Practice 7.3 - Step Up 

Companies are encouraged to fully disclose the detailed remuneration of each member of 

senior management on a named basis. 

 

Application : Not Adopted 

Explanation on 

adoption of the 

practice 

:  
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Intended Outcome 

There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  

 

The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and 
recommendations. The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 

Practice 8.1 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman of the board. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the AC 

are assumed by different Directors.  

 

The Chairman of the Board is Mr Yeoh Chong Keat while the Chairman 

of the AC is En Mohd Zaky Bin Othman. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  

 

The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and 
recommendations. The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 

Practice 8.2 

The Audit Committee has a policy that requires a former key audit partner to observe a 

cooling-off period of at least two years before being appointed as a member of the Audit 

Committee. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Paƌagƌaph ϱ.ϰ;ǆͿ of the TOR of AC states, ͞To require a former key 

audit partner to observe a cooling-off period of at least two years 

before being appointed as a member of the Committee.͟ 

 

None of the members of the AC was a former key audit partner during 

the FY2018. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   

 



 

 

35 

 

Intended Outcome 

There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  

 

The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and 
recommendations. The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 

Practice 8.3 

The Audit Committee has policies and procedures to assess the suitability, objectivity and 

independence of the external auditor. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The role of the AC in relation to the external auditors, Messrs Crowe 

Malaysia PLT (Formerly known as Crowe Horwath) ;͞EA͟Ϳ is found in 

the AC Report included in the Annual Report. Management maintains 

a transparent working relationship with EA in seeking professional 

advice and ensuring compliance with the applicable accounting 

standards.  

 

The AC will meet with EA without the presence of Management to 

ensure that the independence and objectivity of EA are not 

compromised and matters of concerns expressed by the AC will be 

raised at that meeting. 

 

In November 2018, EA presented the Audit Planning Memorandum 

;͞APM͟Ϳ to the AC and they have given written assurance and 

confirmation that they are and have been, independent throughout 

the conduct of the audit engagement in accordance with the terms of 

all relevant professional and regulatory requirements.  

 

Prior to the re-appointment of EA for the forthcoming AGM, the AC 

had in January 2019 undertaken an annual assessment of the quality 

of audit which encompassed the performance of EA, the quality of 

their communications with the AC and the Company and their 

independence, objectivity and professionalism. After the review, the 

AC was satisfied with the suitability of EA based on their quality of 

audit, performance, competency and sufficiency of resources the 

external audit team provided to the Group. The AC was also satisfied 

that the provision of the non-audit services provided by EA to the 

Company for the FY2018 did not in any way impair their objectivity 

and independence as external auditors of the Company. 

 

Having taken into consideration of the above, the Board, through the 

AC opined that the EA are independent and suitably qualified to act. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  

 

The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and 
recommendations. The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 

Practice 8.4 - Step Up 

The Audit Committee should comprise solely of Independent Directors. 

 

Application : Adopted 

Explanation on 

adoption of the 

practice 

: The AC consists of three members, who are all Independent Non-

Executive Directors ;͞INED͟Ϳ.  
 

The members of the AC are as follows:  

• Mohd Zaky Bin Othman, Chairman (INED) 

• Yeoh Chong Keat, Member (Independent Non-Executive 

Chairman)  

• Fathi Ridzuan Bin Ahmad Fauzi, Member (INED)  

 

All the three INED have satisfied the independence test based on the 

criteria set out in the MMLR. 
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Intended Outcome 

There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  

 

The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and 
recommendations. The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 

Practice 8.5 

Collectively, the Audit Committee should possess a wide range of necessary skills to 

discharge its duties. All members should be financially literate and are able to understand 

matters under the purview of the Audit Committee including the financial reporting process.  

 

All members of the Audit Committee should undertake continuous professional development 

to keep themselves abreast of relevant developments in accounting and auditing standards, 

practices and rules. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Members of the AC have diverse background and collectively, possess 

a wide range of necessary skills to discharge their duties to be able to 

understand matters under the purview of the AC including the 

financial reporting process. 

 

During the year, members of the AC were guided on the key audit 

matters, significant audit issues highlighted in the Audit Planning 

Memorandum and briefed by the external auditors on financial 

reporting and other updates. 

 

The Quarterly Interim Financial Reports are briefed to the members of 

the AC, discussed and deliberated amongst the members before the 

said Report was recommended to be tabled to the Board for approval. 

 

The AC members had attended training programmes to keep abreast 

of relevant industry issues, market development and trends including 

accounting and auditing standards to enable them to sustain their 

active participation in the functions of the AC. 

 

Details of the training and seminars attended by the Directors during 

the FY2018 are set out in the CG Overview Statement in the Annual 

Report of the Company. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 
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Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 

necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  

 

The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 

foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 

 

Practice 9.1 

The board should establish an effective risk management and internal control framework. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board recognises the importance of a sound system of risk 

management and internal control to safeguard shareholders' 

investment and the Group's assets. The Board acknowledges its 

primary responsibility to ensure that risks in the Group are identified, 

measured and managed with appropriate system of risk management 

and internal controls, and to ensure that the effectiveness, adequacy 

and integrity of the risk management and internal control systems are 

reviewed on an on-going basis. 

 

The Group has in place an on-going process for identifying, evaluating 

and managing significant risks that may affect the achievement of 

business objectives for the year and up to the date of this report. The 

top risks are reported to the Board on regular basis for their 

deliberation.  

 

The RMSC continuously evaluates and monitors the significant risks 

relevant to the Group, appraises and assesses the efficacy of controls 

implemented to mitigate those risks through a formalised monitoring 

and reporting process. Reviews are conducted by the RMSC on a 

regular basis with additional reviews as and when required.  

 

Internal control and risk-related matters which require the attention 

of the Board were recommended by the RMSC to the Board for its 

deliberation and approval and matters or decisions made within the 

RMSC’s puƌǀieǁ ǁere escalated to the Board for its notation.  

 

An overview of the state of risk management and internal control 

within the Group governed by the Risk Management Framework can 

be found on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 

;͞“ORMIC͟Ϳ of the Annual Report. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 

necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  

 

The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 

foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 

 

Practice 9.2 

The board should disclose the features of its risk management and internal control 

framework, and the adequacy and effectiveness of this framework. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The featuƌes of the Gƌoup’s ƌisk ŵaŶageŵeŶt aŶd iŶteƌŶal ĐoŶtƌol 
framework, and the adequacy and effectiveness of this framework is 

disclosed in the SORMIC and can be found on Pages 30 to 32 of the 

Annual Report. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 

necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  

 

The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 

foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 
 

Practice 9.3 - Step Up 

The board establishes a Risk Management Committee, which comprises a majority of 

independent directors, to oversee the company’s risk management framework and policies. 
 

Application : Adopted 

Explanation on 

adoption of the 

practice 

: The Risk Management Committee was established on 29 August 2017. 

Subsequently, on 28 November 2017, the Board had renamed it to Risk 

MaŶageŵeŶt aŶd “ustaiŶaďilitǇ Coŵŵittee ;͞RM“C͟Ϳ, hoǁeǀeƌ it 
comprises 1 INED and 2 EDs. The composition is as follow: 

Chairman - Fathi Ridzuan Bin Ahmad Fauzi (Independent Non-Executive 

Director) 

 

Member   - Ir. Yeo An Thai (Executive Director) 

 

Member   - Tung Kai Hung (Executive Director) 

 

The RMSC is entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing risk 

management and sustainability matters. 
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Intended Outcome 

Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework 

and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework. 

 

Practice 10.1 

The Audit Committee should ensure that the internal audit function is effective and able to 

function independently. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: The Board had outsourced the Internal Audit Function to an 

independent professional service firm, namely, Sterling Business 

Alignment Consulting Sdn Bhd which provides an independent 

assurance to the Board on the efficiency, effectiveness and adequacy 

of the Gƌoup’s sǇsteŵ of iŶteƌŶal ĐoŶtƌols.  

 

The internal audit functions are carried out in accordance to the risk 

based internal audit plan approved by the AC. The internal audit plan 

is deǀeloped takiŶg iŶto ĐoŶsideƌatioŶ the Gƌoup’s ƌisk pƌofiles aŶd 
concerns of the Management and the Board. The internal auditor 

reports directly to the AC. Further details of the internal audit 

activities are set out in the AC Report and the SORMIC of the Annual 

Report.  

 

The appointment of the internal auditor was reviewed by the AC 

annually and endorsed by the Board. The internal auditors have 

unrestricted access to the AC, Board and management. 

 

The internal audit personnel constantly keep themselves abreast with 

developments in the profession, relevant industry and regulations 

through attendance at conferences/trainings. 

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework 

and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework. 

 

Practice 10.2 

The board should disclose–  

▪ whether internal audit personnel are free from any relationships or conflicts of 

interest, which could impair their objectivity and independence;  

▪ the number of resources in the internal audit department;  

▪ name and qualification of the person responsible for internal audit; and  

▪ whether the internal audit function is carried out in accordance with a recognised 

framework. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: In accordance with the Internal Audit Charter (Section 5. 

Independence & Objectivity), internal Auditors are required to confirm 

to the AC, at least annually, the organisational independence of the 

internal audit activity.  

 

Majority of Internal Auditors under the external service provider are 

members of The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia.  

 

During the year, the internal audit function was carried out in 

aĐĐoƌdaŶĐe ǁith the Coŵŵittee of “poŶsoƌiŶg OƌgaŶisatioŶs ;͞CO“O͟Ϳ 
model.  

  

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate 

mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.  
 

Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the 

company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility. 

 

Practice 11.1 

The board ensures there is effective, transparent and regular communication with its 

stakeholders. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: Advancecon ensures that its communication with the shareholders 

and various stakeholders is transparent, timely and with quality 

disclosures. Advancecon also actively engages all its stakeholders 

through various platforms including the announcements via Bursa 

LINK, disĐlosuƌes oŶ AdǀaŶĐeĐoŶ’s ǁeďsite aŶd eŶgageŵeŶt thƌough 

the iŶǀestoƌ ƌelatioŶs ;͞IR͟Ϳ ďƌiefiŶgs.  

 

The Board ensures the Company announces its quarterly results on 

timely basis to the shareholders and also make necessary 

announcement to its stakeholders.  

 

Advancecon via its website, includes an IR section which provides all 

relevant information on the Company and is accessible to the public. 

This IR section enhances the IR function by including all 

announcements made by Advancecon.  

 

The IR function is established to enable continuous communication 

between the Company and its stakeholders. The stakeholders are 

encouraged to channel their enquiries to the Group CFO whose name, 

contact number and e-mail address i.e. 

iŶǀestoƌs@adǀaŶĐeĐoŶ.Đoŵ.ŵǇ is pƌoǀided oŶ AdǀaŶĐeĐoŶ’s ǁeďsite.  
 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate 

mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.  
 

Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the 

company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility. 

 

Practice 11.2 

Large companies are encouraged to adopt integrated reporting based on a globally 

recognised framework. 

 

Application : Not applicable 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

:  

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 

and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 

 

Practice 12.1 

Notice for an Annual General Meeting should be given to the shareholders at least 28 days 

prior to the meeting. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: During the FY2018, the Company had given its shareholders more than 

28 days notice of the 21st AGM i.e. on 30 April 2018 prior to the 

meeting which was held on 27 June 2018.  

 

The 22nd AGM of the Company is scheduled on 20 June 2019 and the 

Notice for the AGM has been despatched to shareholders of the 

Company on 30 April 2019 which is more than 28 days prior to the 

meeting.  

 

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   

 



 

 

49 

 

Intended Outcome 

Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 

and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 

 

Practice 12.2 

All directors attend General Meetings. The Chair of the Audit, Nominating, Risk Management 

and other committees provide meaningful response to questions addressed to them. 

 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

: All the Board members attended the 21st AGM of the Company held 

on 27 June 2018.  

 

The Chairman presides over the AGM and where appropriate, directs 

shaƌeholdeƌs’ Ƌueƌies to the ChaiƌŵaŶ of AC, NC aŶd RC ƌespeĐtiǀely 

during the meeting.  

 

The Company uploaded the outcome of AGM oŶ the CoŵpaŶǇ’s 
website as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the said 

meeting. 

  

Explanation for 

departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 

Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 

and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 

 

Practice 12.3 

Listed companies with a large number of shareholders or which have meetings in remote 

locations should leverage technology to facilitate–  

▪ including voting in absentia; and  

▪ remote shareholders’ participation at General Meetings. 
 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 

application of the 

practice 

:  

Explanation for 

departure 

: The location of the General Meetings has always been held at strategic 

location, at Petaling Jaya/Kuala Lumpur, which is easily accessible by 

the shareholders.  

 

The Company does not have a large number of shareholders. 

Therefore, the Company does not consider leveraging on the 

technology to facilitate voting in absentia and remote shareholders 

participation at general meeting. 

   

The Board is guided by the provision of the M&A (Articles of 

Association) to facilitate proxy voting at all general meetings, which 

allows shareholders to cast their votes if they are unable to attend the 

relevant general meetings.  

 

Notice of general meeting and circular to shareholders will contain the 

relevant information pertaining to the resolutions to be tabled and 

shareholders may contact the Company for clarification by contacting 

the personnel whose email and telephone number are published at 

the CoŵpaŶǇ’s ǁeďsite.  
 

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are 

encouraged to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES 

PERSUANT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA 

MALAYSIA 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures) 

of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is 

only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the 

Exchange that are required to comply with the above Guidelines. 

 

Click here to enter text. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


